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ABBREVIATIONS

[LE

In this annual report, the following abbreviations have the following meanings unless otherwise specified:
RAFRA  BRXBREEN - THEEEFUNTRE

“BCFC” or “Club”
[BCFC] sk [Bk& ]

“Board”
===

“Company”

[AnE ]

“Director(s)”

[E=%]

“Group”
[RE&EE]

“Hong Kong Companies Ordinance”

NI ST

“Listing Rules”
[ LA

“SFO”
(585 R B R R A]

“Share(s)”
[ A& 17 ]

“Shareholder(s)”
[ARER

“Stock Exchange”
[ Bgh 52 P

“UK®
[5EE ]

“GBP”
[ 8% ]

“HK$” and “HK cents”
[ 7] &I
“US$”

[ZEt]

Lo

[%]

BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED {#RmM 5 =R AR A A

Birmingham City Football Club PLC, the principal subsidiary of the Group
Birmingham City Football Club PLC * A& B Z = ZK B A A

the Board of Directors of the Company

ARBIZEEE

Birmingham Sports Holdings Limited
BAMEBEERARLDF

the director(s) of the Company
RARBIZESE

the Company and its subsidiaries
KRB REMERF

Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
BB R F6225 (A BHERD

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
Bt ARE s B AR A

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)

BEEEDESTIE(GEE L EEEN)

ordinary share(s) of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company
RABIRAPEREEC.ONB T T@k

the holder(s) of the Shares
Betn 2 #F5 B A

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
ERBMARIMARLDR

the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland
APFERIEEREES TH

Pound Sterling, the lawful currency of the UK
R AEZEFRE

Hong Kong dollars and Hong Kong cents, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

BITREN - BB ZEEEHS

United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States of America
EL ENBERBZETEE

per cent.
Bkl




CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to report to the Shareholders
the results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2019.

PERFORMANCE AND RESULTS

The Group’s revenue for the year ended 30 June 2019 was
HK$210.4 million (2018: HK$208 million), representing an increase
of 1.2% as compared with the previous year. The loss attributable
to owners of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2019 was
HK$360.9 million (2018: HK$425 million).

BUSINESS PROSPECT AND LOOKING FORWARD

The Group is principally engaged in the operation of Birmingham City
Football Club in the UK and in the investment of properties in the
Kingdom of Cambodia (“Cambodia”).

During the 2018/19 season, the Club continued to play in the English
Football League Championship Division and was finished at the 17th
position, which improved slightly by two ranking as compared to the
previous season. The overall game play performance of the Club this
season had obvious improvement and the Group is keen to provide
full support to the Club with an aim to achieve advanced positions in
the league in the season 2019/20.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

(Continued)

BUSINESS PROSPECT AND LOOKING FORWARD (Continued)

It has been the Group’s strategy to diversify its business and to
broaden the revenue streams of the Group so as to enhance the
value of the Company and its shareholders as a whole. In 2017 and
during the year under review, the Group acquired certain residential
and commercial properties in Cambodia. As at the date of this
report, the construction of the properties had been completed and
the properties were delivered to the Group and started to contribute
revenue to the Group. The management is expecting the investment
properties to bring a stable stream of income to the Group and the
long-term appreciation in value of the investment properties can
bring further values to the Group.

In July 2019, the Group acquired #EE4 (LR ) EERMERA
7] (Wangmei Online (Beijing) Information & Technology Co., Ltd.*,
“Wangmei Online”). Wangmei Online is principally engaged in the
provision of technology and operation service solutions and terminal
equipment for lottery business in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”). The lottery service solutions provided by the Wangmei
Online cover development, technological supports, monitoring and
maintenance of lottery sales and operational systems as well as
mobile payment system, sourcing of terminal equipment and design
and development of lottery games. The core management team
of Wangmei Online possesses over 10 years of experience in the
lottery service industry and Wangmei Online has obtained 1ISO9001
certification for its quality management system and 1SO27001
certification for its information security management activities of
lottery-related software development and operational services.
The acquisition represents a valuable opportunity for the Group
to achieve the foregoing aims by tapping into the lottery service
solutions business. Going forward, Wangmei Online will continue to
develop its business in the PRC and will explore overseas business
perspective by seeking cooperation opportunities with overseas
lottery business operators, such as those in Southeast Asia, Europe
and Australia.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

(Continued)

BUSINESS PROSPECT AND LOOKING FORWARD (Continued)

The business environment had been unstable and challenging during
the year ended 30 June 2019. Facing the US-China trade war, the
effects of Brexit in the European Union and other uncertain global
economic outlook, the challenges in the overall business environment
will be severe in the year ahead. In terms of future development
of the Company and for the interest of the Shareholders, the
management has been keen on improving the operating results of
the Group. The management will, on one hand, continue to support
the Club for further improvement in performance and, on the other
hand, will take a keen but cautious approach to explore all possible
solutions, including the possible introduction of and joint venture
with strategic partners who can bring in financing and management
support to the Club so as to enhance its competitiveness and to
attain better results. At the same time, the management has been
ambitious in exploring different business opportunities and identifying
potential projects, in particular in opportunities that possess massive
customer base which can bring in sustainable growth and stable
return, with an aim to secure the ongoing business development
of the Company, to further broaden the business scope and scale
of the Company, to reduce the risk associated with reliance on
one single operation, to enhance the financial structure of the
Company and to turnaround its prolong loss making situation. In
the meanwhile, the management will be proactive in development in
different markets and industries and to take prompt and appropriate
actions as and when appropriate opportunities are identified.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to thank
all shareholders, investors, bankers and business partners for their
continuing trust and support to the Group and to my fellow directors
and all staff members for their strenuous efforts and contribution
during the past year.

Zhao Wengqing
Chairman
Hong Kong, 30 September 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PERFORMANCE AND RESULTS

For the year ended 30 June 2019, the revenue of the Group was
approximately HK$210.4 million (2018: approximately HK$208
million) representing an increase of 1.2% as compared with last
year. The loss attributable to owners of the Company during the
year under review was approximately HK$360.9 million as compared
with approximately HK$425 million for the year ended 30 June 2018.
The basic loss per share was approximately HK2.66 cents (2018:
approximately HK4.68 cents (restated)).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in two business segments: (i)
operation of a professional football club in the UK; and (ii) investment
in properties.

(i) Football club

The Group operates Birmingham City Football Club in the
UK. Revenue streams of the Club comprised (i) match day
receipts which consisted of season and match day tickets, (ii)
broadcasting revenue, including distributions from the Football
Association Premier League and English Football League
broadcasting agreements, cup competitions and revenue
from the media, and (iiij commercial income which comprised
sponsorship income, corporate hospitality, merchandising,
conferences and events and other sundry income.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(Continued)

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

(i)

Football club (Continued)

Following a finish at the 19th position in the Championship
Division for the season 2017/18, the squad demonstrated
stability in performance and the overall game play was well
improved as compared to the previous season. The results
of the Club was encouraging as it had been maintaining its
position within top 10 since the start of the second half of
season 2018/19. On 22 March 2019, the Club received the
decision of the Disciplinary Commission in connection with
breaches of the Championship Profitability and Sustainability
Rules (the “P&S Rules”) of the English Football League (“EFL”).
The breaches of the P&S Rules are in relation to the aggregate
loss of the Club in three seasons since 2015/16 exceeded
upper loss threshold and the loss of the Club in season 2017/18
exceeded the annual threshold. Pursuant to the decision of
the Disciplinary Commission, 9 points was deducted from
the points earned in the Championship Division by the Club
in season 2018/19. Although the Club performed well in this
season, the Club eventually finished the 2018/19 season at the
17th position.

The Birmingham City Football Academy has continued to
operate at Category 2 status under the Elite Player Performance
Plan. A number of academy trained players continued to
participate in the first team squad.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS %iﬂ@%‘ﬁﬁ&fﬂ‘ﬁ

(Continued) (#&

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued) ¥ ERE(E)
(ii) Investment in properties (i) PEREZ

The Group acquired certain residential apartments and
commercial properties at One Park in Phnom Penh, Cambodia
in November 2017. In November 2018, the construction of the
commercial properties was completed and the properties were
handed over to the Group.

On 28 August 2018, the Group entered into a long term lease
agreement with Graticity Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
(“GRED”) to acquire further properties at One Park (the “2018
Long Term Lease Agreement”); and the Group also entered into
a master lease agreement (the “Master Lease Agreement”) with
Ever Depot Limited (“Ever Depot”), for leasing of the Group’s
properties in Cambodia to Ever Depot for a fixed term up to
30 June 2021. The 2018 Long Term Lease Agreement and the
Master Lease Agreement were approved by the independent
Shareholders on 6 December 2018 and completion of the
transactions took place on 13 December 2018. The residential
apartments acquired in 2017 and the properties under the 2018
Long Term Lease Agreement were delivered to the Group in
August 2019.

BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED {#RmM 5 =R AR A A
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(Continued)

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
(ii) Investment in properties (Continued)

The investment of commercial properties and residential
apartments at One Park represent a good opportunity to secure
a stable stream of income for the Group. At the same time, the
long-term appreciation in value of the investment properties can
bring further values to the Company and the Shareholders as
a whole in future. During the year, the Group recorded rental
income of approximately HK$4,647,000 from the investment
properties and increase in fair value of investment properties of
HK$23,160,000.

The management has been ambitious to explore new business
opportunities in different markets and industries that can enhance the
performance of the Group. On 23 July 2019, the Group through its
a wholly-owned subsidiary, Dooboo Tech Limited (“Dooboo Tech”),
acquired the entire issued share capital of Wangmei Online at a total
consideration of RMB20 million (equivalent to approximately HK$22.7
million) (the “Acquisition”). After the Acquisition, the Group shall
further inject RMB6.3 million (equivalent to approximately HK$7.2
million) to Wangmei Online as further capital injection (“Capital
Contribution”). As a condition of the Acquisition, the vendor has
undertaken to Dooboo Tech that the lottery business of Wangmei
Online shall achieve a cumulative audited net profit after taxation
(“Profit”) of RMB30 million (equivalent to approximately HK$34.1
million, the “Profit Target”) for the three years from 1 July 2019 to
30 June 2022. In the event that the lottery business achieves only
85% or below of the Profit Target, the vendor shall compensate the
Group in cash of the percentage shortfall to the total amount of the
consideration of the Acquisition and the Capital Contribution.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(Continued)

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The revenue of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2019 was
approximately HK$210.4 million (2018: approximately HK$208
million), representing an increase of approximately 1.2% over the
same period last year.

The Club recorded a slight increase in revenue, in term of Pound
Sterling, by 2.7% over the same period last year. The increase in the
Club’s revenue, however was mostly offset by devaluation of Pound
Sterling during the year which caused the revenue of the Group
decreased by 1.1% to approximately HK$205.8 million in term of
Hong Kong dollars.

The revenue derived from the investment properties was
approximately HK$4.6 million (2018: nil), all of which was the rental

income from the leasing of the investment properties.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses incurred during the year were approximately
HK$470.4 million, representing a decrease of approximately 11.5%
over last year. The decrease was mainly due to the Club incurred
less staff costs during the year, in particular the absence of the
compensation paid for the change of manager and coaching team
last year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(Continued)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Other Income

Other income during the year was approximately HK$8.8 million.
Other income was mainly generated from the subsidies received from
the Premier League.

Profit on Sales of Players’ Registration

Profit on sales of players’ registration was approximately HK$42.1
million (2018: approximately HK$21.7 million). The increase was
mainly attributable to more revenue from sales of players were
recorded during the year under review.

Fair Value Change on Investment Properties

During the year, the Group recorded gains on changes in fair value of
investment properties of approximately HK$23.2 million (2018: nil) as
a result of the increase in fair value of investment properties held by
the Group as at 30 June 2019.

Amortisation of Intangible Assets

Amortisation of intangible assets during the year under review was
approximately HK$76.6 million, representing a decrease of 4.8% over
that of the previous year. The decrease was primarily due to more
players being disposed of during the year under review.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(Continued)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Impairment Loss on Intangible Assets

For the year ended 30 June 2019, the Group made an impairment
loss of approximately HK$14.7 million on the Group’s intangible
assets (2018: approximately HK$4.8 million). The impairment
made this year was in relation to the loss on the carrying value of
trademark (2018: nil). No impairment loss on players registration was
recognised this year (2018: approximately HK$4.8 million).

Administrative and Other Expenses

Administrative and other expenses increased by approximately
28.5% to approximately HK$54.2 million for the year under review,
mainly due to (i) the increase in professional fee; (i) the increase in
travelling expenses incurred for business development; and (i) the
increase in the general expenses incurred for daily operations. The
management will continue to adopt stringent measures on control
and management so as to maintain the administrative and other
expenses at a reasonable level.

Share-based Payments Expense

Share-based payments expense of approximately HK$4.4 million
was recorded during the year under review, representing the costs
for granting share options to certain directors and employees of the
Group.

Finance Costs

During the year under review, the Group incurred finance costs of
approximately HK$28.0 million, representing an increase of 46.9%
over last year. The increase was mainly due to the increase in interest
payable on new loans drawn during the year under review in order to
cope with the Group’s business development.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(Continued)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Intangible Assets

The Group had intangible assets amounted to approximately
HK$142.7 million at the year end which was 27.6% lower than that of
the previous year. The decrease was primarily due to the impairment
of the trademark and amortisation expenses during the year.

Inventories

The Group’s inventories at the end of the year decreased by 46.7%
to approximately HK$3.5 million as compared to that of the previous
year. All the inventories were current in nature and no written down
of its value was considered necessary.

Trade Receivables

The Group had net trade receivables at the end of the year amounted
to approximately HK$7.3 million, representing a decrease of 61.9%
over that of the previous year.

The decrease was mainly due to the absence of sponsorship
receivables as at the end of previous year amounted to
approximately HK$7.7 million which had been settled during the year.

Transfer Fee Payables

The Group’s transfer fee payables at the end of the year decreased
by 69.1% to approximately HK$26.7 million in total as less players
were signed up during this year.

Trade Payables

The Group’s trade payables increased by 73.2% over that of the
previous year to approximately HK$23.4 million. The increase was
largely attributable to higher amount of payables for merchandise
purchases and to services suppliers as at end of this year as
settlement were made subsequent to year end.

Contract Liabilities/Deferred Income

Contract liabilities/deferred income represented mainly the
unrecognised income in relation to match receipt. During the year,
the Group adopted HKFRS 15 pursuant to which the deferred
income as presented in prior year was reclassified as contract
liabilities as at 1 July 2018.

At the end of the year, contract liabilities were approximately
HK$29.1 million, representing an increase of 16.7% over that of last
year. The increase was primarily due to more season tickets for the
new season were sold before year end as compared to last year.

Contingent Liabilities

Other than disclosed in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements of this report, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities as at 30 June 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(Continued)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Capital Expenditure and Commitments

For the year ended 30 June 2019, the Group invested approximately
HK$3.5 million in the purchase of property, plant and equipment,
and approximately HK$134.9 million for the addition of investment
properties.

At 30 June 2019, the Group had no significant capital commitment
(2018: nil).

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

Financial Ratios

As at 30 June 2019, the Group’s current ratio (as defined by current
assets divided by current liabilities) was 44.0% (2018: 68.4%) and
the gearing ratio (as defined by total borrowings divided by equity
attributable to owners of the Company plus total borrowings) was
26.4% (2018: 22.2%). The ratio of total liabilities to total assets of the
Group was 44.4% (2018: 40.4%).

Financial Resources

The Group generally finances its operations with internally
generated cash flows, loans from substantial Shareholders and
from independent third parties, and through the capital market
available to listed companies in Hong Kong. As at 30 June 2019,
the Group’s bank balances and cash were approximately HK$83.7
million (2018: approximately HK$69.2 million), which were principally
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Pound Sterling and Renminbi.
As at 30 June 2019, the Group had total borrowings approximately
HK$214.5 million (2018: approximately HK$166.0 million), of which
approximately HK$130.0 million were repayable within one year
(2018: approximately HK$66.2 million). All borrowings were at fixed
interest rates.

The management endeavours to enhance the Group’s financial
strengths so as to pave the way for future business development.
Cost control measures have already been in place to monitor
the day-to-day operational and administrative expenses. The
management closely reviews the Group’s financial resources in a
cautious manner and continues to explore opportunities in external
financing and equity funding. The Company will take proactive
actions to improve the liquidity and financial position of the Group
by way of equity fund raising exercises. The Company will closely
monitor the market situation and take prompt actions when such
opportunities arise.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(Continued)

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE (Continued)

Financial Resources (Continued)

On 10 August 2018, the Company and an external lender entered
into a standby loan facility (as supplemented by a supplemental loan
agreement dated 11 March 2019) pursuant to which a revolving
loan facility up to HK$250 million was provided to the Company (the
“201808 Facility”). The 201808 Facility is unsecured, for a term up to
31 December 2020 and bears interest at the rate of 8% per annum.
As at 30 June 2019, the amount of the outstanding principal amount
and interest payable under the 201808 Facility were approximately
HK$13.5 million and approximately HK$1.1 million respectively.

On 28 February 2019, the Company proposed the rights issue on
the basis of one rights share for every two shares held by qualifying
shareholders at the subscription price of HK$0.05 per rights share
(“Rights Issue”). The Rights Issue was completed on 23 April 2019
under which a total of 5,903,340,836 new shares were allotted and
issued. The net proceeds from the Rights Issue after deducting
the underwriting commission and other expenses amounted to
approximately HK$293.7 million.

Use of Proceeds from the Rights Issue

During the year under review, a total amount of approximately
HK$236.0 million, representing approximately 80.4% of the net
proceeds from the Rights Issue, was used for repayment of external
debts and the remaining balance of approximately HK$57.7 million,
representing approximately 19.7% of the net proceeds from the
Rights Issue, was utilised for general working capital of the Group.
As at the date of this report, the proceeds from the Rights Issue has
been fully utilised and was applied in accordance with the intended
use as disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 27 March
2019 (the “Prospectus”).

Directors’ Opinion on Sufficiency of Working Capital

As at 30 June 2019, the current liabilities of the Group exceeded
current assets by approximately HK$187.0 million (2018:
approximately HK$67.7 million). The Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern depends on the financial resources presently
available to the Group. Taking into account the expected financial
performance, net cash expected to be generated from the operation
of the Group and the available loan facilities, the Directors believe
that the Group is able to fully meet its liabilities as and when they fall
due and to carry on its business without a significant curtailment of
operations for the foreseeable future.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(Continued)

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE (Continued)

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk mainly relates to the
Group’s operation in the UK and most of which transactions, assets
and liabilities are denominated in Pound Sterling. The Group does
not use derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign currency
risks. The management will continue to monitor its foreign exchange
exposure and take appropriate measures if needed.

Pledge of Assets

Certain bank credit facilities made available to BCFC were secured
by a fixed charge over a specific bank deposit account of BCFC
held with the bank. As at 30 June 2019, the balance on this bank
deposit account was GBP800,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$7,924,000) (2018: GBP800,000 which was equivalent to
approximately HK$8,208,000).

Save for the above, the Group had not charged other assets to
secure its borrowings.

Capital Structure

On 13 December 2018, pursuant to the 2018 Long Term Lease
Agreement and under the specific mandate granted by the
independent Shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting
of the Company on 6 December 2018, the Company allotted and
issued in aggregate 832,610,000 shares at HK$0.0947 per share
to satisfy part of the consideration payable under the 2018 Long
Term Lease Agreement at a fair value in aggregate of approximately
HK$86,614,000.

On 28 February 2019, the Company proposed the Rights Issue
and the net proceeds from the Rights Issue was approximately
HK$293,700,000. Details of the Rights Issue and the completion
were disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 28
February 2019 and 18 April 2019 (collectively the “Rights Issue
Announcements”) and the Prospectus. The Rights Issue was
completed on 23 April 2019 and 5,9083,340,836 new shares were
allotted and issued.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(Continued)

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE (Continued)

Capital Structure (Continued)

On 6 December 2018, the Company granted share options to eligible
persons to subscribe for a total of 300,000,000 ordinary shares
of the Company under the share option scheme of the Company
was adopted by the Company at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 30 December 2016 (the “Share Options Scheme”).
As a result of the completion of the Rights Issue, the exercise price
of the outstanding share options and the related number of shares
that could be subscribed for upon exercise of the outstanding share
options were adjusted with effect from 23 April 2019 in accordance
with the Share Option Scheme and the supplementary guidance
regarding the adjustment of share options under Rule 17.03(13) of
the Listing Rules. As at 30 June 2019, the total number of ordinary
shares of the Company that will fall to be issued upon exercise of the
outstanding share options were 334,020,618 shares.

As at 30 June 2019, the Company had 17,710,022,508 shares of
HK$0.01 each in issue (2018: 10,974,071,672 shares).

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 21 December 2016, the Company and Trillion Trophy Asia
Limited (“Trillion Trophy”) entered into a revolving loan facility (as
supplemented by a supplemental facility agreement dated 21
December 2018) pursuant to which Trillion Trophy provided a
revolving loan facility up to HK$250,000,000 to the Company at
an interest rate of 4.5% per annum (collectively the “Trillion Trophy
Facility”). Trillion Trophy is a controlling Shareholder and hence a
connected person of the Company. The transactions contemplated
under the Trillion Trophy Facility constitute financial assistance for
the Company under the Listing Rules. Pursuant to Rule 14A.90 of
the Listing Rules, such financial assistance received by the Company
from Trillion Trophy is fully exempt from the reporting, announcement
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter
14A to the Listing Rules as it is conducted on normal commercial
terms or better and it is not secured by the assets of the Group. As
at 30 June 2019, a total of approximately HK$66,197,000 had been
drawn from the Trillion Trophy Facility.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(Continued)

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

On 30 June 2017, Celestial Fame Investment (Cambodia) Co., Ltd.
(“Celestial Fame Cambodia”), currently a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Group, entered into a long-term lease agreement with GRED to
lease the right of use of a piece of land at Phnom Penh, Cambodia
for an initial term of 50 years. At the sole option of Celestial Fame
Cambodia, the term may be extended for another 50 years. The rent
payable for the total lease term shall be US$3,000,000 which shall be
paid by 50 equal instalments each year during the initial term. GRED
is a substantial Shareholder holding approximately 25.63% interest
in the Company and hence a connected person of the Company.
The transactions contemplated under the long-term lease agreement
constitute a continuing connected transaction of the Company under
Chapter 14A to the Listing Rules. As all the percentage ratios (other
than the profits ratio) are less than 5% and the annual lease payment
for the lease is less than HK$3,000,000, pursuant to Rule 14A.76(1)
of the Listing Rules, the long-term lease agreement is fully exempt
from reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A to the Listing Rules.
During the year under review, the total amount paid to GRED under
the transactions was approximately HK$468,000 (equivalent to
US$60,000).

On 28 August 2018, Celestial Fame Investments Limited (“Celestial
Fame BVI”), a subsidiary of the Group, entered into the Master
Lease Agreement with Ever Depot, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
GRED, to lease certain of its properties in Cambodia to Ever Depot
for a term three years at a rental of US$15 per sg.m. per month,
which term may be renewed by agreement of Celestial Fame BVI
and Ever Depot. GRED is a connected person of the Company.
The transactions contemplated under the Master Lease Agreement
constitute a continuing connected transaction of the Company under
Chapter 14A to the Listing Rules. The Master Lease Agreement
was approved by the independent Shareholders on 6 December
2018. The approved annual cap of the continuing connected
transactions under the Master Lease Agreement for each of the three
years ending 30 June 2019, 2020 and 2021 were US$681,000,
US$3,181,000 and US$3,613,000 respectively. During the year
under review, the Group recorded rental income under the Master
Lease Agreement of approximately US$596,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$4,647,000).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(Continued)

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 30 June 2019, the Group employed approximately 279 full
time employees and approximately 522 temporary staff members
in Hong Kong, the PRC and the UK (2018: approximately 279 full
time employees and approximately 549 temporary staff members).
The Group recognises the importance of high calibre and competent
staff and continues to provide remuneration packages to employees
mainly based on industry practices and individual performance.
In addition, the Group provides other employee benefits including
medical insurance, training subsidy, discretionary bonus and
participation in the Company’s share option scheme.

PRINCIPAL RISK AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group is principally engaged in the operation of a football club
in the UK and properties investment in Cambodia. The management
has identified the following factors that could affect the result of the
Group’s business. In addition to those shown below, there may be
other risks which are not known to the Group or which may not be
material now but could turn out to be material in the future.

Business Risk

The Group is exposed to the change in global economic conditions
as well as the industries and geographical markets in which it
operates. As a result, the Group’s financial condition and results
of operations may be influenced by the fluctuation of the global
economy or a specific market or economy. Any significant adverse
change in the economy in the global or regional or a specific
economy could materially affect the Group’s financial condition or
results of operations.

The UK’s Withdrawal from the European Union

In a national referendum carried out in June 2016, a majority of
the voters in the UK elected to withdraw from the European Union.
As the detailed terms of the withdrawal are subject to negotiation
and have not yet been confirmed, the result of the referendum has
created significant uncertainties to the future economic conditions
in the UK. Any development may have material effect to the global
economic conditions and the stability of global financial markets.
The long-term impact of the UK’s withdrawal cannot be accurately
assessed. As such, no assurance can be given that any upcoming
development of the UK’s withdrawal would not adversely affect the
Group’s operations.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(Continued)

PRINCIPAL RISK AND UNCERTAINTIES (Continued)
Financial Risk

The Group is exposed to financial risks relating to interest rate,
foreign currency, credit and liquidity risk in its ordinary course of
business. Moreover, the Group is also exposed to potential impact
of currency fluctuations on translation of its principal operating units’
results which are denominated in currencies different to the Group’s
reporting currency. For further details of such risks, please refer to
note 6 to the notes to the consolidated financial statements of this
report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

On 14 August 2018, BCFC, a subsidiary of the Group, received a
notification from the EFL in connection with breaches of the P&S
Rules of Appendix 5 of the EFL regulations. The breaches of the
P&S Rules are in relation to the aggregate loss of the Club in three
seasons since 2015/16 exceeded upper loss threshold and the
loss of the Club in season 2017/18 exceeded the annual threshold.
As a result of the breaches, BCFC was placed under an imposed
arrangement that restricts transfer market activities without the
consent of the EFL and was referred to a disciplinary commission.
On 22 March 2019, the Club received the decision of the Disciplinary
Commission pursuant to which 9 points was deducted from the
points earned in the Championship by the Club in the season
2018/19.

Save for the breaches of the EFL regulations, as far as the Board
and management are aware, during the year under review, the
Group has complied in all material respects with the relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the business and
operation of the Group, and there was no material breach of or non-
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its employees, customers and suppliers to meet its
immediate and long-term business goals. Saved for the litigation with
a former director as disclosed in the contingent liabilities section of
this annual report, during the year ended 30 June 2019, there were
no other significant dispute between the Group and its employees,
customers and suppliers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(Continued)

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which it operates. In order to reduce
the degree of environmental damage when developing the Group’s
business, the Group strictly complies with the local laws, rules and
guidance in relation to environmental protection.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 283 July 2019, Dooboo Tech, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company entered into a share acquisition agreement with /&
MKAEEXLEEBMR AT (Hainan Waterstone Sports Culture
Development Co., Ltd.*, “Hainan Waterstone”) and Wangmei Online,
pursuant to which Dooboo Tech agreed to purchase and Hainan
Waterstone agreed to sell the entire issued share capital of Wangmei
Online, at a total consideration of RMB20 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$22.7 million). Upon the completion of the
Acquisition, Wangmei Online will become a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company. Details of which are set out in the announcement of
the Company dated 23 July 2019.

* for identification purpose only
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of Directors and senior management as
at 30 September 2019, the date of this annual report, are set out
below:

DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhao Wenqing

Executive Director and Chairman

Mr. Zhao, aged 52, joined the Company as an Executive Director
on 15 October 2016 and is the Chairman of the Board. He is
also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Zhao
holds a Bachelor of Engineering degree from Beijing University of
Iron and Steel Technology (now known as University of Science
and Technology Beijing) and a Master of Engineering degree from
University of Science and Technology Beijing in the PRC. Mr. Zhao
had worked as the head of risk management department and the
chief accountant in Beijing Centergate Technologies (Holding) Co.,
Ltd. (PRI EHEERE (%) BRHABERAR]), a company listed
on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 931).

Mr. Huang Dongfeng

Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Huang, aged 60, joined the Company as an Executive Director
and the Chief Executive Officer on 27 January 2017. Mr. Huang
graduated with a major in management engineering from the Central
South University of Technology (&8 T X2 ) (now known as
Central South University) in the PRC and is a senior economist. Prior
to joining the Company, Mr. Huang was the company secretary
(deputy general manager) of Jiangxi Copper Company Limited
(Hong Kong stock code: 358), the shares of which is listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, and was the director and
general manager of its group companies. Mr. Huang has extensive
experience in corporate management, corporate finance, merger and
acquisition as well as strategies formulation, and has been awarded
the Gold Medal Board Secretary Award (& HE#4 ) by New Fortune
Magazine ( ¥7T8/ & 5% ).

Mr. Yiu Chun Kong

Executive Director

Mr. Yiu, aged 34, joined the Company as an Executive Director on
15 October 2016 and is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Yiu holds a Bachelor of Business Administration in
Accountancy degree from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and
is a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He has rich experience in auditing, accounting
and finance.

Mr. Yiu is an executive director of EPI (Holdings) Limited (“EPI”)

(Hong Kong stock code: 689), a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continueq)

DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Hsiao Charng Geng

Executive Director

Mr. Hsiao, aged 56, joined the Company as an Executive Director on
14 June 2017. Mr. Hsiao graduated from the Tamkang University in
Taiwan with a Bachelor of Business degree in Banking and Finance.
Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Hsiao held senior management
positions in certain commercial banks. Mr. Hsiao has extensive
experience in strategies formulation, corporate management, risk
control and internal control in multinational corporations, and in
financial institutions in particular.

Dr. Guo Honglin

Executive Director

Dr. Guo, aged 51, joined the Company as an Executive Director on
3 May 2019. Dr. Guo graduated from Renmin University of China in
the PRC and holds a Doctorate Degree in Economics. Dr. Guo has
served as the assistant lecturer, lecturer, associate professor and
tutor of postgraduate of Master Degree in Renmin University of China
and has been engaged as the assistant to the Principal and the chief
of the office of human resources management, and the executive
vice president of the School of Education of Renmin University
of China. Before joining the Company, Dr. Guo was a part-time
professor of the School of Education of Renmin University of China.
Dr. Guo possesses extensive knowledge in education sector and has
over 20 years of experience in institutional management, strategic
development and human resources management. Dr. Guo is an
independent director of Metro Land Corporation Ltd., a company
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 600683).
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continueq)

DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Sue Ka Lok

Non-executive Director

Mr. Sue, aged 54, joined the Company as an Executive Director
on 15 October 2016 and was re-designated as a Non-executive
Director with effect from 1 May 2017. Mr. Sue holds a Bachelor
of Economics degree from The University of Sydney in Australia
and a Master of Science in Finance degree from the City University
of Hong Kong. Mr. Sue is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, a certified practising accountant of the
CPA Australia, a fellow of the Hong Kong Securities and Investment
Institute and a fellow and Chartered Governance Professional of
both The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. He has
extensive experience in corporate management, finance, accounting
and company secretarial practice. Mr. Sue is a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company and a director of Trillion Trophy, a
controlling Shareholder.

Mr. Sue is an executive director and the chief executive officer of
China Strategic Holdings Limited (Hong Kong stock code: 235). He
is an executive director of EPI, PYI Corporation Limited (Hong Kong
stock code: 498) and PT International Development Corporation
Limited (Hong Kong stock code: 372). He is also a non-executive
director and the chairman of Courage Investment Group Limited
(Hong Kong stock code: 1145 and Singapore stock code: CIN).
All of the aforementioned companies with Hong Kong stock code
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, and Courage
Investment Group Limited is primarily listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange and secondarily listed on the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continueq)

DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Pun Chi Ping

Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Pun, aged 52, joined the Company as an Independent Non-
executive Director on 15 October 2016, and is the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee
and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Pun holds a Master of Science
in Finance degree from the City University of Hong Kong and a
Bachelor of Arts in Accountancy degree from the City Polytechnic of
Hong Kong (now known as the City University of Hong Kong). Mr.
Pun is a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. Pun is an independent non-executive director of EPI and Huajun
International Group Limited (Hong Kong stock code: 377), and is the
financial controller of Poly Property Group Co., Limited (Hong Kong
stock code: 119). All of the aforementioned companies are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Ms. Leung Pik Har, Christine

Independent Non-executive Director

Ms. Leung, aged 50, joined the Company as an Independent
Non-executive Director on 15 October 2016, the Chairlady of the
Nomination Committee and a member of the Audit Committee
and the Remuneration Committee. Ms. Leung holds a Bachelor of
Business Administration degree from The Chinese University of Hong
Kong. Ms. Leung has extensive experience in banking and financial
services industries and had worked at several international financial
institutions including Citibank, N.A. Hong Kong, Bank of America,
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited and Fubon
Bank (Hong Kong) Limited.

Ms. Leung is an independent non-executive director of EPI, a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Yam Pui Hung, Robert

Company Secretary and Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Yam, aged 51, has been the Chief Financial Officer of the Group
since January 2017 and was appointed as the Company Secretary
of the Company on 3 May 2019. Mr. Yam holds a Bachelor of Arts
in Accountancy degree from the City Polytechnic of Hong Kong
(now known as City University of Hong Kong). Mr. Yam is a fellow of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a certified
public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Yam has extensive experience in accounting,
financial management, corporate finance and company secretarial
practice.

EENEHREBAEBE &)

EE(#)

BARF KL

BUHHTEE

E e A B25% 0 20164 10A 158 N A K
ARIHABYIRITES - FHEESER
NWREBEZEZEERIRAEEBENE - BELE
HEEANTAZSRBESELT REAR
MEIEZR(RBAETERMAE) et
NELTEN - FEAERBREAFT LRSS
MAgrERSERBBSHMAT 2S5

i o

BEERKBIERRNREBEAR AR (F
BRI : 377) 2 BIUIERTESE - RIF
MEXEEBRLQR (FERMORRE - 119)
G HEE - AR R ER E
m e

REEZT

BB ITEE

244 - 508% 0 R20165F10A158 i A A
REHEBILIENTES  REZESER
NREZZESGRFMEEEKE - B+
BEGEPXAREIHEEEE LT84 R
TTRIBITIRERMRBEEEEELHT
BRETERSREBTR - 2EEERT
(BE) ERRTT - PRIFBIT(EMN B
RARIREHRT(BEB)BERRAA

RETR/RER(—ERBIMERLTZA
B ZBULIFRITESE -

BREEAR
£ 1 5 4
RAWERYEEE

F5%4E 51 % B017F1 AL EALEER
2 TEHAEE R N2019F5 ASHERTAARR
BIZARIME  FAERERENMELS
ROAEAESBRMAZ) @B BELE
fil e FRERABRBBHFLARETMASTE
FEERBACHMAS 26 - 5%
RET  FHERE CERERARWMEER
BHERBELY =L -

% # ANNUAL REPORT 2019




28

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors are pleased to submit their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 30 June 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company is engaged in investment holding. The principal
activities of its major subsidiaries are the operation of a professional
football club in the UK and investment of properties in Cambodia.

Further discussion and analysis of the Group’s activities as required
by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including
a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Group, particulars of important events affecting the Group that have
occurred since the end of the financial year and an indication of likely
future developments in the Group’s business, can be found in the
“Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis”
section set out on pages 5 to 23 of this annual report. These
discussions forms part of this directors’ report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2019 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 62 to 63.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 30 June 2019 (2018: nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the investment property of the Group are set
out in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

During the year, a total of 5,903,340,836 shares of the Company,
fully paid, were issued under the Rights Issue. The details of use of
proceeds from the Rights Issue are set out in the section headed
“Use of Proceeds from the Rights Issue” in this annual report. Further
details of the Rights Issue and its completion were disclosed in the
Rights Issue Announcements and the Prospectus.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

(Continued)

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company and
share options during the year are set out in notes 33 and 34 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity on page 66 and note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’s reserves available for distribution as at 30 June 2019
amounted to approximately HK$229,224,000 (2018: approximately
HK$222,694,000).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company, is set out on page
148. This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group’s sales to the five largest customers
accounted for less than 30% of total revenue.

During the year, the Group’s purchases from the five largest
suppliers accounted for approximately 64% of total purchases and
purchases from the largest supplier accounted for approximately
28%.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any Shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5%
of the Company’s issued shares) had any beneficial interest in the
Group’s five largest customers or suppliers during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to its
existing shareholders.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

(Continued)

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the financial year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhao Wenqing (Chairman)

Mr. Huang Dongfeng (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Yiu Chun Kong

Mr. Hsiao Charng Geng

Dr. Guo Honglin (appointed on 3 May 2019)
Ms. Chan Yuk Yee (resigned on 3 May 2019)

Non-executive Director

Mr. Sue Ka Lok

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Pun Chi Ping
Ms. Leung Pik Har, Christine
Mr. To Yan Ming, Edmond (passed away on 28 August 2019)

Biographical details of the current Directors are set out on pages 24
to 27 of this annual report.

In accordance with Article 86(3) of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Dr. Guo Honglin will hold office until the forthcoming
annual general meeting (the “2019 AGM”) of the Company and, being
eligible, will offer himself for re-election at the 2019 AGM.

In accordance with Articles 87(1) and 87(2) of the Company’s Articles
of Association, Mr. Huang Dongfeng, Mr. Hsiao Charng Geng and
Ms. Leung Pik Har, Christine will retire at the 2019 AGM by rotation
and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election in the 2019
AGM.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
2019 AGM has a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

(Continued)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

As at 30 June 2019, to the best knowledge of the Directors, no
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director and the Director’s connected entity had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, subject to the
statutes, every Director shall be indemnified out of the assets of the
Company against all losses and liabilities which he/she may sustain
or incur in or about the execution of his/her office or otherwise in
relation thereto. The Company has arranged appropriate directors
and officers liability insurance coverage for the Directors and other
officers of the Company during the year.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Details of the directors’ emoluments are set out in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

UPDATES ON DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

The following is updated information of directors of the Company
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B (1) of the Listing
Rules:

1. The director’s remuneration of Mr. Zhao Wenging has been
increased to HK$2,047,500 per annum under his service
contract with a subsidiary of the Company with effect from 1
January 2019.

2. The director’s remuneration of Mr. Huang Dongfeng has been
increased to HK$2,047,500 per annum under his service
contract with a subsidiary of the Company with effect from 1
January 2019.

& The director’s remuneration of Mr. Yiu Chun Kong has been
increased to HK$273,000 per annum under his service
contract with a subsidiary of the Company with effect from 1
January 2019.

4. The director’s fee of Mr. Sue Ka Lok has been increased to
HK$252,000 per annum under his letter of employment with
the Company with effect from 1 January 2019.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

(Continued)

UPDATES ON DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION (Continued)

o The director’s fee of Mr. Pun Chi Ping has been increased to
HK$192,000 per annum under his letter of employment with
the Company with effect from 1 January 2019.

6. The director’s fee of Ms. Leung Pik Har, Christine has been
increased to HK$192,000 per annum under her letter of
employment with the Company with effect from 1 January
2019.

7. Dr. Guo Honglin has entered into a service contract with a
subsidiary of the Company. There is no specific length of
service as stipulated under the said service contract and his
term of service shall continue unless and until terminated by
either party by 2 months’ prior notice in writing. The director’s
remuneration of Dr. Guo is HK$1,114,100 per annum and
he may also be entitled to receive discretionary bonuses
and other benefits as may be decided by the Remuneration
Committee and the Board having regard to the Company’s
and his performance.

Note:

The above remuneration was recommended by the Remuneration
Committee and approved by the Board.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2019, the interests and short positions of the directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under the section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules were as follows:
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

(Continued)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES (Continued)

Long positions in the shares and the underlying shares of the
Company:
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Approximate
percentage of
the Company’s
issued share

capital

(Note (i))

Number of N

Capacity and underlying BRITREAZ

Name of director nature of interest shares  Note BHAEL

EEEH BORERME HEROE®E M7 (&)

Mr. Zhao Wenqing Beneficial owner 66,804,124 (i) 0.38%
HIERAE ExAA

Mr. Huang Dongfeng Beneficial owner 66,804,124 (ii) 0.38%

ARESLE

Notes:

(i)

(i

EafAA

The approximate percentage of issued share capital of the
Company was calculated on the basis of 17,710,022,508 shares
of the Company in issue as at 30 June 2019.

This represented the interest in the underlying shares which
may be issued upon the exercise of the share options granted
by the Company to the directors on 6 December 2018 pursuant
to the Share Option Scheme adopted by the Shareholders on
30 December 2016. The consideration paid by each Director
on acceptance of the share options granted was HK$1.00.
The exercise price of the share options was HK$0.1084 per
share. The share options shall be vested and exercisable in
three tranches in accordance with the following dates: (1)
approximately one third of the share options granted was vested
on the date of grant and exercisable within the period of 5 years
thereafter, i.e., from 6 December 2018 to 5 December 2023
(both dates inclusive); (2) approximately one third of the share
options granted shall be vested on the first anniversary of the
date of grant and exercisable within the period of 4 years after
being vested, i.e., from 6 December 2019 to 5 December 2023
(both dates inclusive); and (3) the remaining one third of the share
options granted shall be vested on the second anniversary of the
date of grant and exercisable within the period of 3 years after
being vested, i.e. 6 December 2020 to 5 December 2023 (both
dates inclusive).

Upon completion of the Rights Issue, the number of share options
owned by each of Mr. Zhao Wenging and Mr. Huang Dongfeng
was adjusted to 66,804,124 to subscribe for 66,804,124 shares,
exercisable at an adjusted price of HK$0.09736 per share during
a period from 6 December 2018 to 5 December 2023.
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(Continued)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2019, none of the directors
or chief executives of the Company had registered an interest or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) that was required to be recorded
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS
DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE SFO

As at 30 June 2019, so far as is known to the Directors, the following
person or corporation (other than a Director or chief executives
of the Company) had, or were deemed to have an interest or
short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:
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Number of Approximate
Shares percentage of
interest the Company’s
(Note (i) issued share
Capacity and RERER capital
Name of shareholder nature of interest ZRHE Total  Notes ERRRCRT
RR&R SRRERNE (K1) g HE REzBHEM
Trillion Trophy Beneficial owner 5,425,000,000 5,425,000,000 (i 30.63%
ERBERA
Wealthy Associates International Limited Interest of controlled corporation 5,425,000,000 5,425,000,000 (i) 30.63%
("Wealthy Associates’) REHEBER
Mr. Suen Cho Hung, Paul ("Mr. Suen”) Interest of controlled corporation 5,425,000,000 5,425,000,000 (i) 30.63%
RS ([HEE]) Rt AR RS
Ever Depot Beneficial owner 4,539,161,000 4,539,161,000 (i) 25.63%
KE EafiAA
GRED Interest of controlled corporation 4,539,161,000 4,539,161,000 (i) 25.63%
Rt R
Mr. Vong Pech Interest of controlled corporation 4,5639,161,000 4,539,161,000 (i) 25.63%
Vong Pech% R EBER
Dragon Villa Limited (“Dragon Villa”) Beneficial owner 3,294,366,000 3,294,366,000 (iv) 18.60%
REARAR ( [RE]) ERBRA
Mr. Lei Sutong Interest of controlled corporation 3,294,366,000 3,294,366,000 (iv) 18.60%

BERAE EHEE
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(Continued)

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS
DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE SFO (Continued)

Notes:

(i) All the above interests in the shares of the Company were long
positions.

(if) Trillion Trophy is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Wealthy Associates
which in turn is wholly-owned by Mr. Suen. Accordingly, Wealthy
Associates and Mr. Suen are deemed to be interested in the
5,425,000,000 shares held through Trillion Trophy under the SFO.

(iif) Ever Depot is a wholly-owned subsidiary of GRED which in turn
is wholly-owned by Mr. Vong Pech. Accordingly, GRED and Mr.
Vong Pech are deemed to be interested in the 4,539,161,000
shares held through Ever Depot under the SFO.

(iv) Dragon Villa is wholly-owned by Mr. Lei Sutong. Accordingly,
Mr. Lei Sutong is deemed to be interested in the 3,294,366,000
shares held through Dragon Villa under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified of any
other relevant interests or short positions in the Company’s shares
or underlying shares as at 30 June 2019 as required pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Share Option Scheme was adopted by the Company at the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 30 December 2016.
Unless otherwise cancelled or amended, the Share Option Scheme
will be valid and effective for a period of ten years commencing on
the date of adoption. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is
to enable the Company to provide participants with the opportunity
to acquire proprietary interests in the Company and to encourage
participants to work towards enhancing the value of the Company
and its shares for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders
as a whole. Participants of the Share Option Scheme comprise of
Directors, employees of the Group; and any advisors, consultants,
business partners, agents, customers, suppliers, service providers,
contractors of any member of the Group or any company or other
entity in which the Group or any member of it has a shareholding
interest, who, in the sole discretion of the Board, has contributed
or may contribute to the Group or any member of it. The offer of a
grant of share options may be accepted until the 30th days inclusive
of, and from, the date of grant, provided that no such offer shall
be open for acceptance after the expiry of the period of ten years
commencing on the adoption date of the Share Option Scheme or
after the Share Option Scheme has been terminated. The amount
payable by each grantee of options to the Company on acceptance
of the offer for the grant of options is HK$1.00.
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(Continued)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The subscription price for the shares on the exercise of options
under the Share Option Scheme shall be a price as determined by
the Board in its absolute discretion at the time of the grant of the
relevant option (and shall be stated in the letter containing the offer
of the grant of the option) but in any case the subscription price
shall not be less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the shares
of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet on the date of grant, which must be a business day; (i) the
average closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5 business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of
the shares of the Company (if any) on the date of grant. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the Board but
in any event, not longer than ten years from the date of grant.

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each participant under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the
Company in any 12-month period up to the proposed date of grant
(including exercised and outstanding options) shall not exceed 1%
of the total number of the shares of the Company in issue as at the
proposed date of grant. Any further grant of options to a participant
in excess of the 1% limit shall be subject to the Shareholders’
approval with such participant and his/her close associates (or
associates if the participant is a connected person) abstaining from
voting.

The limit on the total number of shares of the Company which
may be issued upon exercise of all options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme(s) of the Company (excluding lapsed and cancelled
options) must not exceed 30% of the total number of the shares of
the Company in issue from time to time. In addition, the total number
of the shares of the Company which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme, together
with all options to be granted under any other share option scheme(s)
of the Company (excluding lapsed options), must not represent more
than 10% of the total number of the shares of the Company in issue
as at the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme
Mandate Limit”) or as at the date of the approval of the refreshed
Scheme Mandate Limit as the case maybe.

As at the date of this report, a total of 295,294,849 shares,

representing approximately 1.7% of the issued Shares at the date of
this report, were available for issue under the Share Option Scheme.
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(Continued)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Details of movements in the number of share options during the year
ended 30 June 2019 under the Share Option Scheme are as follows:
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Adjusted
exercise Adjustment
price Cancelled/  to number of
per share Granted Exercised lapsed ~ share options  Outstanding
Name or category Exercisable period Exercise due to during during during dueto  at30June
of participant Date of grant  (both dates inclusive) price  Rights Issue the year the year the year  Rights Issue 2019
(Note i) (Note i)
) v mRiRz  R9E
ghRiEzE ERTiE/  BREHE 68 30R
SEANLIEN  RARE it (BEEERK) 8 ik ERERE  EREAE 53 EL HATE
(W) (W)
HKS HKS
A A1
Directors:
£z
Mr. Zhao Wenging 6 December 2018 6 December 2018 to 5 December 2023 0.1084 009736 20,000,000 - - 2268042 22,008,042
BUERE 201812868 2018512A6A 2200351258
6 December 2019 to 5 December 2023 0.1084 009736 20,000,000 - - 2,268,041 22,268,041
2019512768 2202351258
6 December 2020 to 5 December 2023 0.1084 0.0978 20,000,000 - - 2,208,041 22,268,041
2020F12A6A 2202351258
Mr. Huang Dongfeng 6 December 2018 6 December 2018 to & December 2023 0.1084 0.09736 20,000,000 - - 2,268,042 22,008,042
FER LA M18F12A6H 2018F12F6HE203E12F5H
6 December 2019 to 5 December 2023 0.1084 0.0978 20,000,000 - - 2,208,041 22,268,041
M19F12 A6 HZ 023 F12F5H
6 December 2020 to 5 December 2023 0.1084 0.0978 20,000,000 - - 2,208,041 22,268,041
020F12A6HZ 2023 F12A5H
120,000,000 - - 13608248 133,008,248
Employees 6 December 2018 6 December 2018 to 5 December 2023 0.1084 009736 60,000,000 - - 6,804,123 66,804,123
] 18F12F6H 2018E12F6HZ2028%12F5H
6 December 2019 to & December 2023 0.1084 0.0978 60,000,000 - - 6,804,124 66,804,124
2019F 126 HE 202312751
6 December 2020 to & December 2023 0.1084 0.0978 60,000,000 - - 6,804,123 66,804,123
0051236 HZ 202312750
180,000,000 - - 0412370 200,412,370
300,000,000 - - 34000618 334,020,618
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(Continued)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Notes:

(i) The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant
until the commencement date of the exercise period.

(i) During the year, no options were exercised, lapsed or cancelled
under the Share Option Scheme.

(iii) As a result of the Rights Issue which was completed on 23 April
2019, the exercise price of the share options was adjusted from
HK$0.1084 to HK$0.09736 under the Share Option Scheme
and the supplementary guidance regarding adjustment of share
options under Rule 17.03(13) of the Listing Rule. The number of
shares of the Company that will fall to be issued upon exercise of
the outstanding share options were also adjusted accordingly.

Additional information in relation to the Share Option Scheme are set
out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES
OF THE COMPANY AND ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

Save disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” above and
the “Share Option Scheme” disclosure in note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements, at no time during the year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable
to the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate, and none of the directors of the Company or
their spouse or minor children had any rights to subscribe for the
securities of the Company, or had exercised any such rights during
the year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme as disclosed in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements, no equity-linked agreements were
entered into by the Group, or existed during the year.
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(Continued)

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the year, the Company had not entered into any contract in
respect of the management or administration of any business of the
Company.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 30 June 2019, to the best knowledge of
the Directors, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, none of the
Directors, or any of their respective associates (as defined in
the Listing Rules) had any material interest in any business that
competes or may compete with the business of the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in the
“Corporate Governance Report” on pages 44 to 56 of this annual
report.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

(a) Connected transactions

On 28 August 2018, Deep Blue Trade (Cambodia) Co.,
Ltd. (“Deep Blue”), a subsidiary of the Group, entered
into the 2018 Long Term Lease Agreement with GRED to
acquire certain residential properties at a consideration of
approximately US$16,304,000. The consideration of the
2018 Long Term Lease Agreement was satisfied as to
approximately US$10,108,000 by the allotment and issue
of 832,610,000 Shares at the issue price of HK$0.0947 per
share; and as to approximately US$6,196,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$48,326,000) by cash payable no later
than seven (7) business days in Cambodia following the
delivery date of the properties. Since GRED, being the sole
shareholder of Ever Depot, is a connected person of the
Company, the 2018 Long Term Lease Agreement constitutes
a connected transaction of the Company and is subject to
the reporting, announcement, annual review and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. The 2018 Long Term Lease Agreement was
approved by the independent Shareholders on 6 December
2018. The 2018 Long Term Lease Agreement was completed
on 13 December 2018 and the fair value of the properties,
on completion basis was approximately US$17,300,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$134,940,000).
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

(Continued)

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b)

BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED {#RmM 5 =R AR A A

Continuing connected transactions

On 21 December 2016 and 21 December 2018, the
Company and Trillion Trophy entered into the Trillion Trophy
Facility, under which an unsecured revolving loan facility
up to a maximum amount of HK$250,000,000 was made
available to the Company. Trillion Trophy is a controlling
Shareholder and hence a connected person of the Company.
The transactions contemplated under the Trillion Trophy
Facility constitute financial assistance for the Company under
the Listing Rules. Pursuant to Rule 14A.90 of the Listing
Rules, such financial assistance received by the Company
from Trillion Trophy is fully exempt from the reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules as it is
conducted on normal commercial terms or better and it is not
secured by the assets of the Group. As at 30 June 2019, a
total of approximately HK$66,197,000 had been drawn from
the Trillion Trophy Facility.

On 30 June 2017, Celestial Fame Cambodia, currently a
subsidiary of the Group, entered into a long-term lease
agreement with GRED to lease a piece of land at Phnom
Penh, Cambodia for an initial term of 50 years. At the
sole option of Celestial Fame Cambodia, the term may be
extended for another 50 years. The rent payable for the total
lease term shall be US$3,000,000 which shall be paid by
50 equal instalments each year during the initial term. Since
GRED, being the sole shareholder of Ever Depot which in
turn owns approximately 25.63% interest in the Company,
is a connected person of the Company, the transactions
contemplated under the long-term lease agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Pursuant to Rule 14A.76(1)
of the Listing Rules, the long term lease agreement is fully
exempt from reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules as all the percentage ratios (other than the
profits ratio) are less than 5% and the annual lease payment
for the lease is less than HK$3,000,000. The total amount
paid to GRED under the transactions for the year ended 30
June 2019 was approximately HK$468,000 (equivalent to
US$60,000).
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

(Continued)

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) Continuing connected transactions (Continued)

On 28 August 2018, Celestial Fame BVI, a subsidiary of the
Group, entered into the Master Lease Agreement with Ever
Depot, for leasing of the properties in Cambodia to Ever
Depot for a fixed term up to 30 June 2021. Since Ever Depot
is a substantial Shareholder holding approximately 25.63%
interest in the Company, the transactions contemplated under
the Master Lease Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company and are subject to the reporting,
announcement, annual review and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The Master Lease Agreement was approved by the
independent Shareholders on 6 December 2018. The total
amount received under the transactions for the year ended 30
June 2019 was approximately HK$4,647,000 (equivalent to
approximately to US$596,000).

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Directors engaged
the auditor of the Company to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing their findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions in
accordance with the Listing Rules. The Independent Non-executive
Directors have reviewed the continuing connected transactions and
the unqualified letter from the auditor and have confirmed that the
continuing connected transactions entered into by the Group were in
the ordinary and usual course of its business, on normal commercial
terms or better and according to the terms of the agreement
governing such transactions that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Shareholders as a whole and within their respective
annual cap amounts.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

(Continued)

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

In the opinion of the Independent Non-executive Directors, these
transactions entered into by the Group were:

() in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or better;

(i) according to the terms of the agreements governing such
transactions that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the Shareholders as a whole; and

(iv)  within their respective annual cap amounts.

In relation to the connected transactions and continuing connected
transactions of the Group, the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group entered into certain transactions with parties regarded
as “related parties” under the applicable accounting standards.
Save for the continuing connected transactions disclosed under the
section headed “CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS” above, the other related party
disclosures as disclosed in note 39 to the consolidated financial
statements did not constitute connected transactions under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group remunerates its employees based on their competence,
performance, experience and prevailing market terms. Other
employee benefits included provident fund scheme, medical
insurance, share option scheme as well as discretionary bonus.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
confirmed that it has maintained a sufficient public float in the market
as at the date of this report.

BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED {#RmM 5 =R AR A A
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

(Continued)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. To Yan Ming, Edmond, an Independent Non-executive Director,
passed away on 28 August 2019. Following the passing away of Mr.
To, there was a vacancy in the position of the chairman of the Audit
Committee and the Company failed to meet the requirement set out
in Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules that the audit committee must be
chaired by an independent non-executive director. The Company
will take steps to fulfill the requirements of the Listing Rules as
soon as practicable and in any event within three months after 28
August 2019, and will make further announcement(s) as and when
appropriate.

As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee comprises two
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Pun Chi Ping and
Ms. Leung Pik Har, Christine. The audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2019 have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee and have been duly approved
by the Board under the recommendation of the Audit Committee.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 30 June 2019 have been audited by ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA
Limited (“ZHONGHUI ANDA”).

A resolution will be proposed at the 2019 AGM to re-appoint
ZHONGHUI ANDA as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Zhao Wengqing
Chairman
Hong Kong, 30 September 2019
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board believes that good corporate governance is crucial
to improve the efficiency and performance of the Group and to
safeguard the interests of the Shareholders. The Company aims to
achieve good standard of corporate governance.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board is pleased to report compliance with the applicable code
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules (the “CG Code”) for the year ended 30 June
2019 except for the following deviation:

Code Provision E.1.2

Under Code Provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the chairman of the
board should attend the annual general meeting. Mr. Zhao Wenqing,
the Chairman of the Board, was unable to attend the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 28 December 2018 (the “2018
AGM”) due to other business commitment. However, the former
Executive Director, Ms. Chan Yuk Yee (“Ms. Chan”), had taken the
chair of the 2018 AGM in accordance with Article 63 of the Articles
of Association of the Company. Ms. Chan was of sufficient calibre
and knowledge for communication with the Shareholders at the 2018
AGM.

Save as the deviation mentioned above, the Company has complied
with the provisions of the CG Code during the year ended 30 June
2019.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct
for securities transactions by Directors. Having made specific enquiry
with the existing Directors, all of them confirmed that they have
complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code
during the year ended 30 June 2019.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board formulates overall strategy of the Group, monitors its
financial performance and maintains effective oversight over the
management. The Board members are fully committed to their roles
and have acted in good faith to maximise the shareholders’ value in
the long run, and have aligned the Group’s goal and directions with
the prevailing economic and market conditions. Daily operations and
administration are delegated to the management.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

(Continued)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

The Board met regularly throughout the year to discuss the overall
strategy as well as the operation and financial performance of the
Group. The Directors are kept informed on timely basis of major
changes that may affect the Group’s business, including relevant
rules and regulations. The Directors can, upon reasonable request,
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances,
at the Company’s expenses. The Board shall resolve to provide
separate appropriate independent professional to the Directors
to assist the relevant Directors to assist the relevant directors to
discharge their duties.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises a total of eight
members including five Executive Directors, namely Mr. Zhao
Wenging, Mr. Huang Dongfeng, Mr. Yiu Chun Kong (“Mr. Yiu”),
Mr. Hsiao Charng Geng and Dr. Guo Honglin, one Non-executive
Director, Mr. Sue Ka Lok (“Mr. Sue”), and two Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Pun Chi Ping (“Mr. Pun”) and Ms.
Leung Pik Har, Christine (“Ms. Leung”). Members of the Board
have different professional and relevant industry experiences and
background and have a balance of skills and experience appropriate
for the requirements of the business of the Company.

Mr. To Yan Ming, Edmond, an Independent Non-executive Director,
the chairman of the Audit Committee, a member of the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company, passed
away on 28 August 2019. Following the passing away of Mr. To, the
Board comprises eight members, including four Executive Directors,
one Non-executive Director and two Independent Non-executive
Directors. There is a vacancy in the position of the chairman of
the Audit Committee. The number of independent non-executive
directors and audit committee members falls below the minimum
number required by Rule 3.10(1), Rule 3.10A and Rule 3.21 of the
Listing Rules. The Company will take steps to fulfill the requirements
of the Listing Rules as soon as practicable.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each of the existing Independent Non-executive Directors of their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all existing Independent Non-executive Directors
are independent in accordance with the independence guidelines set
out in Listing Rules. Biographies of the Directors are set out under
the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 24 to 27 of this annual report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

(Continued)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

As disclosed in that section, Mr. Sue is an executive director of EPI
of which Mr. Yiu is an executive director, Mr. Pun and Ms. Leung
are independent non-executive directors. Save for the aforesaid,
there is no other financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship between members of the Board and senior management.

The Company will provide a comprehensive, formal and tailored
induction to each newly appointed Director on his/her first
appointment in order to enable him/her to have appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and
that he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
Directors are continually updated on developments in the statutory
and regulatory regime and the business environment to facilitate the
discharge of their responsibilities. The Company has provided timely
technical updates, including the briefing on the amendments on the
Listing Rules and the news release published by the Stock Exchange
to the Directors. Continuing briefing and professional development
for Directors are arranged where necessary.

The Directors have participated in continuous professional
development by attending seminars, in-house briefings and reading
materials on the related areas to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills.  During the year ended 30 June 2019, all Directors
(including Mr. Zhao Wenqing, Mr. Huang Dongfeng, Mr. Yiu Chun
Kong, Mr. Hsiao Charng Geng, Dr. Guo Honglin, Mr. Sue Ka Lok,
Mr. Pun Chi Ping and Ms. Leung Pik Har, Christine) have complied
with Code Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code and have provided the
Company with their respective training records pursuant to the CG
Code.

The Board holds meetings on a regular basis and meets on other
occasions when a board-level decision on a particular matter is
required. The Board also monitors and controls financial performance
in pursuit of the Group’s strategic objectives.

The Company held four full Board meetings, an annual general

meeting and an extraordinary general meeting during the year ended
30 June 2019.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

(Continued)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

The attendance of each director at the meetings held during the year
ended 30 June 2019 is set out below:
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Attendance/Number of meetings

Geli=f P8V V¥ |
Annual Extraordinary
Board General General
Meeting Meeting Meeting
Name of director EEnE EZeeE RREFAE BREREIAE
Executive directors: HiTEE:
Mr. Zhao Wengjing (Chairman) BXEEE(EE) 4/4 -1 -1
Mr. Huang Dongfeng (Chief Executive Officer) BRESE(TTHAEZ) 4/4 -1 -1
Mr. Yiu Chun Kong HEBLE 4/4 1/1 1/1
Mr. Hsiao Charng Geng BRELE 4/4 -1 -1
Dr. Guo Honglin (appointed on 3 May 2019) MG T (R2019%F5 ASHEZT) /- /- /-
Ms. Chan Yuk Yee (resigned on 3 May 2019) B E BT L (R2019%45 A3 ET) 4/4 1/1 1/1
Non-executive director: FHTES:
Mr. Sue Ka Lok BRELE 4/4 /1 1/1
Independent non-executive directors: BUFHTES:
Mr. Pun Chi Ping EARTRE 4/4 -1 -1
Ms. Leung Pik Har, Christine REELL 4/4 1/1 1/1
Mr. To Yan Ming, Edmond RIS EE 4/4 11 1/1
(passed away on 28 August 2019) (R2019%F8 F28H B tt)
CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TERITHEAR

The Company adopts a dual leadership structure in which the role
of the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company are assumed by different persons. The Chairman is
responsible for overseeing all Board functions, while the Executive
Directors and senior management are under the leadership of the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company to oversee the day-to-day
operations of the Group and implement the strategies and policies
approved by the Board.

Currently Mr. Zhao Wengqing is the Chairman of the Board and Mr.
Huang Dongfeng is the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

(Continued)

TERM OF APPOINTMENT OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the Non-executive Directors is appointed for a term of
12-month period which automatically renews for successive
12-month periods unless terminated by either party in writing prior
to the expiry of the term. All the Non-executive Directors are also
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at least once every
three years at the annual general meetings of the Company in
accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee comprises two
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Pun Chi Ping and
Ms. Leung Pik Har, Christine. The Audit Committee has specific
written terms of reference that is in compliance with the CG Code.

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for reviewing financial
statements of the Company, discussing the risk management
and internal control of the Group and meeting with the auditor of
the Company. Any findings and recommendations of the Audit
Committee will be submitted to the Board for consideration.

The Audit Committee is authorised by the Board to investigate any
activity within its terms of reference. It is authorised to seek any
information it requires from any employee. It is also authorised to
obtain outside legal or other independent professional advice and
to secure the attendance of outsiders with relevant experience and
expertise if it considers necessary. The full terms of reference are
available on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s
website.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 30
June 2019.

The attendance of each member is set out as follows:
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Name of member REEE SERE

Mr. Pun Chi Ping EEFRAE 2/2

Ms. Leung Pik Har, Christine REELZ+ 2/2
Mr. To Yan Ming, Edmond MBI L E

(passed away on 28 August 2019) (R20199F8 H28H B¢ 1) 2/2
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(Continued)

AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

The following is a summary of work performed by the Audit
Committee during the year:

1. reviewed and discussed with the management and the auditor
of the Company the accounting policies and practices which
may affect the Group and the scope of the audit;

2.  reviewed reports from the auditor of the Company regarding
their audit on the Company’s consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2018;

3. reviewed and discussed the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2018
and recommended to the Board for approval;

4.  reviewed and discussed the unaudited condensed consolidated
financial statements of the Company for the six months ended
31 December 2018 and recommended to the Board for
approval;

5. reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control system of the Group; and

6. reviewed and approved the remuneration and the terms of
engagement of the Company’s auditor; and reviewed and made
recommendations to the Board on the re-appointment of the
Company’s auditor.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

As at the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee comprises
two Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Pun Chi Ping
and Ms. Leung Pik Har, Christine. The Remuneration Committee
is chaired by Mr. Pun Chi Ping. The Remuneration Committee has
specific written terms of reference that is in compliance with the CG
Code.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations on the remuneration policy and structure
and remuneration packages of the executive directors and the senior
management. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible
for establishing transparent procedures for developing such
remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no director or
any of his/her associates will participate in deciding his/her own
remuneration, which remuneration will be determined by reference to
the performance of the individual and the Company as well as market
practice and conditions. The full terms of reference are available on
the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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(Continued)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

The Remuneration Committee held four meetings during the year
ended 30 June 2019 to review and make recommendation to
the Board on the discretionary bonus for executive directors and
remuneration packages for the Directors.

The attendance of each member is set out as follows:
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Attendance/

Number

of meetings

HESRIE

Name of member REHESR BERE

Mr. Pun Chi Ping EEFRAE 4/4

Ms. Leung Pik Har, Christine REELL 4/4

Mr. To Yan Ming, Edmond I BG4

(passed away on 28 August 2019) (R20199F8 528 H Ffttt) 4/4

NOMINATION COMMITTEE REZEES

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee comprises
two Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Leung Pik
Har, Christine and Mr. Pun Chi Ping. The Nomination Committee is
chaired by Ms. Leung Pik Har, Christine. The Nomination Committee
has specific written terms of reference that is in compliance with the
CG Code.

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for identifying
potential directors and making recommendations to the Board on
the appointment or re-appointment of directors of the Company.
Potential new directors are selected by reference to their
qualifications, skills and experience that could add value to the
management through their contributions in the relevant strategic
business areas. The full terms of reference are available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the year ended
30 June 2019 to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board and to review and make recommendation to the Board on the
appointment of the Directors.

The attendance of each member is set out as follows:
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Name of member REHER BERE

Ms. Leung Pik Har, Christine REERT 2/2

Mr. Pun Chi Ping ERFRE 2/2
Mr. To Yan Ming, Edmond I BIS 5 A

(passed away on 28 August 2019) (FR2019%F8 528 H B# 1) 2/2
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(Continued)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

The Company recognises the benefits of having a diverse Board
to enhance the quality of its performance and adopted the board
diversity policy of the Company (the “Board Diversity Policy”). The
Board Diversity Policy sets out that in determining the optimum
composition of the Board, differences in skills, regional and industry
experience, background, race, gender and other qualities of
directors shall be considered. All Board appointments are made on
merits, in the context of skills and experience the Board as a whole
requires, with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board,
and the Nomination Committee shall review and assess the Board
composition and its effectiveness on an annual basis. When there
is vacancy on Board, the Nomination Committee will recommend
suitable candidates for appointment to the Board on merits, based
on the terms of reference of the Nomination Committee, with due
regard to the Company’s own circumstances.

The Nomination Committee had reviewed the diversity of the Board
during the year ended 30 June 2019 and will review the Board
Diversity Policy from time to time to ensure that the policy will be
implemented effectively.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for determining the policy for the corporate
governance of the Company and performing the corporate
governance duties as below:

1. to develop and review the Group’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

3. to review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices on
compliance with all legal and regulatory requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to the employees and directors
of the Group; and

5. to review the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure requirements in the corporate governance report.
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(Continued)

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2019, which give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group at that date and of the Group’s results and cash flows for the
year then ended and are properly prepared on the going concern
basis in accordance with the statutory requirements and applicable
accounting standards.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining sound and
effective risk management and internal control and reviewing their
effectiveness to safeguard the Shareholders’ interests and the
Group’s assets. The risk management and internal control systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives and can provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. The review
covers financial, operational and compliance controls of the Group.

The Group does not have an internal audit function in view of the
size of the Group and consideration for cost effectiveness. During
the year under review, the Company engaged an independent
consultant to conduct review on the risk management and
internal control systems to identify and evaluate significant risks
of the Group’s business operations. The Board believes that the
involvement of an independent consultant could enhance the
objectivity and transparency of the evaluation process. During its
review, the consultant has performed an assessment of selected
financial procedures, systems and internal controls in order to
identify significant findings in the relevant internal controls of the
Group. Certain aspects of their review include corporate governance
and listing rules compliance. The consultant has also conducted
interviews with the Group’s management, staff members and key
process operators, and inspected relevant documentations in order
to understand the Group’s processes and controls. The consultant
has performed tests to determine whether the controls have been
properly implemented and operated, and finally identified certain
findings based on their results of tests and developed relevant
recommendations and suggestions for improvement.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

(Continued)

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL (Continued)

For the risk management perspective, the consultant has also
performed an assessment on the Group’s financial, operation,
compliance and strategic aspects and identified certain risk areas.
A written risk assessment report with the identified key risks and
risk evaluation results have been presented to the Board. The Board
will implement appropriate measures to continue to minimise the
identified risks and control them within acceptable levels. In order to
manage risks effectively, the management will continue to monitor
the identified risks and the respective control measures, and arrange
adequate resources for the effective control measures undertaken.

In order to assess the importance and materiality of the identified
risks, the management ranked the risks based on the level of
likelihood and impact from a scale of 1 to 5 (5 being the highest
level), the highest the level of likelihood and risk impact, the more
important and material the risks are, which the management will put
more effort and resources in managing those risks.

For the year ended 30 June 2019, the Board has conducted an
annual review of the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group by, including but not limited
to, considering the internal control and risk assessment report
prepared by the consultant to the Company covering the above
aspects. The Board has also considered the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, and training programmes of the
Group’s accounting and financial reporting function during the year
under review. The Board is not aware of any significant internal
control and risk management weaknesses nor significant breach of
limits or risk management policies, and considers the existing internal
control and risk management systems effective and adequate for
the year ended 30 June 2019. The Company has complied with the
relevant code provisions of the CG Code relating to risk management
and internal control.

HANDLING OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company has put in place a policy on handling and
dissemination of inside information which sets out the procedures
and internal controls for handling and dissemination of inside
information in a timely manner in such a way to avoid placing any
person in a privileged dealing position. The inside information policy
also provides guidelines to employees of the Group to ensure
proper safeguards exists to prevent the Company from breaching
the statutory and listing rule disclosure requirements. The Company
has appropriate internal control and reporting systems to identify
and assess potential inside information. Dissemination of inside
information of the Company shall be conducted by publishing the
relevant information on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange, according to the requirements of the Listing Rules.

>
M
m
3
"
D

EBEERABEE(E)

HREREEMNS  BETHAEEZHE -
28 ARRRBOEETIE  LEES
TREREHE TRXTEESFMEHIE
2 [l b & R\ B BF i A R A0 & T R BR AT 14 3R
HF - BEEGRERESERNEERD SR
R0 ER RSB B R RN I KA o
REUNEERRR BEEREELEDEHT
RBEE&EB 2EHER YRERETHR
ERERLHERRER -

ARG LA EERNEZEREE L
ERECREAEZEENKTIRZERER
ERRARE D RIESR (FSRTZSKT)
BERERERYELS  ERNEEMER
EEUBERN ERESKARZENRE
REEZERR -

HE20190F6HA30HILEFE - EETEEHA
=B KRR E 1B K A BB EE I ) AR BUE 1T
FEEN EHEE(BERRER)EEHEMN
MZARRFTRERE Fill F e N BPEs R E
MHREREERARI GRS - ESSHAM
BFEEZBIASETEET RMEHREIEE
FHMER  BTERRERIAREIIRE
EBIRE > REE2019F6 A30H FFE
EFeUVTNBAMNEANSEERRARE
I8 NTANEEREERBHKRARE
BEK  WRABRENIEERSERRRE
BHEBERREN ARRICETOEE
SBSTRIR B RRBEE RN EEA R T
Bl ST o

EEREHER
ARARARERBEMABEERE  EF
HAREREMABHEENERFRAEE
o EAREERAEREIEREM - Ml
REREMALTEERESFRR G LRVIGEED
i - REEEBR T RAKEESREH]E
5 BRREEBE ARG AR BRZRRE
ERETRAUMZEERE - AARABEE
B BB BE 1 S PE SR Z - AKX AR B
MARHEE - REBEEWRARE  ARE#H
ARER 2T ARRAR B KB R A48k
TIEKHEBEE S -

% # ANNUAL REPORT 2019




54

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

(Continued)

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial Reporting

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of the Company’s annual and interim
reports, inside information announcements and other financial
disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended
30 June 2019.

Auditors’ Remuneration

During the year ended 30 June 2019, the remuneration, paid/payable
to the Group’s external auditors, are set out as follows:

Approximate fees paid/payable to
BB ZBNE A
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2019 2018

20194 2018%F

HK$ HK$

Services rendered for the group a5 B iR 1 2 AR 7% B BT

Audit services ZH R TE 1,299,000 1,148,000

Non-audit services FE A% EUR 75

- Agreed-upon procedures of - BETHESERF

interim review 105,000 100,000

—  Other non-audit services — EfhIEE RS 1,552,000 362,000

2,956,000 1,610,000

COMPANY SECRETARY

Following the resignation of Ms. Chan Yuk Yee as the Company
Secretary of the Company, Mr. Yam Pui Hung, Robert (“Mr. Yam”),
the Chief Financial Officer of the Company, has been appointed
as the Company Secretary of the Company with effect from 3
May 2019. The biographical details of Mr. Yam are set out under
the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 24 to 27 of this annual report. Mr. Yam
has taken no less than 15 hours of the relevant professional training
during the year ended 30 June 2019.
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(Continued)

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for communication between the Shareholders and the Board. An
annual general meeting of the Company shall be held in each year
at the place as may be determined by the Board. Each general
meeting, other than an annual general meeting, shall be called an
extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”).

Procedures to convene an extraordinary general meeting by
Shareholders

Any one or more Shareholders holding at the date of the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company, shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary of the Company
to require an EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition and such meeting shall be
held within 2 months after the deposit of such requisition.

If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) may convene a meeting
in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed by the Company to the requisitionist(s).

Procedures to put enquiries to the Board

Shareholders have the right to put enquiries to the Board. All
enquiries shall be in writing and sent by post to the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong or email to ir@bihl.com.hk
for the attention of the Company Secretary of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company has established a range of communication channels
between itself and its shareholders, investors and other stakeholders.
These include the annual general meeting, the annual and interim
reports, notices, announcements and circulars and the Company’s
website at www.bshl.com.hk.
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(Continued)

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board adopted a dividend policy during the current year. When
considering the declaration and payment of dividends, the Board
takes into account the following factors: (i) the actual and expected
financial performance of the Group, (i) the retained earnings and
distributable reserves of the Group, (i) the expected working capital
requirements and future expansion plans, (iv) liquidity position and (v)
any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

The form and frequency of dividend declaration and payment shall
be determined at the sole and absolute discretion of the Board and
is also subject to compliance with all applicable laws and regulations
including the laws of Cayman Islands and the Company’s Articles of
Association.

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There has not been any significant change in the Company’s
constitutional documents during the year.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Birmingham Sports Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 62 to 147, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June
2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 30 June 2019, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the “HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Qur responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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(Continued)

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to note 2 to the consolidated
financial statements which mentions that the Group
incurred a loss attributable to owners of the Company
of HK$360,927,000 for the year ended 30 June 2019
and as at 30 June 2019 the Group had net current
liabilities HK$187,005,000. These conditions indicate a
material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Our
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. In addition to the matter described in the
Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section,
we have determined the matters described below to be
the key audit matter to be communicated in our report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Refer to Notes 18 and 19 to the consolidated financial
statements

The Group tested the amount of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets for impairment. This
impairment test is significant to our audit because the
balance of property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets of HK$191,135,000 and HK$142,743,000
respectively as at 30 June 2019 are material to the
consolidated financial statements. In addition, the Group’s
impairment test involves application of judgement and is
based on assumptions and estimates.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Continueqd)

Our audit procedures included, among others:

Assessing the valuation models used by the Group;

- Assessing the competence, independence and
integrity of the external valuer engaged by client;

= Obtaining the external valuation reports and meeting
with the external valuer to discuss and challenge the
valuation process, methodologies used and market
evidence to support significant judgements and
assumptions applied in the valuation models;

- Checking key assumptions and input data in the
valuation models to supporting evidence;

—  Checking arithmetical accuracy of the valuation
models;

—  Obtaining market data of the intangible assets; and

We consider that the Group’s impairment test for
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets is
supported by the available evidence.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Refer to Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group measured its investment properties at fair
value with the changes in fair value recognised in the
consolidated profit or loss. This fair value measurement
is significant to our audit because the balance of
investment properties of HK$553,020,000 as at 30
June 2019 and the fair value gain of HK$23,160,000
for the year then ended are material to the consolidated
financial statements. In addition, the Group’s fair value
measurement involves application of judgement and is
based on assumptions and estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:

- Assessing the competence, independence and
integrity of the external valuer engaged by client;

= Obtaining the external valuation reports and meeting
with the external valuer, to discuss and challenge the
valuation process, methodologies used and market
evidence to support significant judgements and
assumptions applied in the valuation model;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Continued)

—  Checking key assumptions and input data in the
valuation model to supporting evidence;

—  Checking arithmetical accuracy of the valuation
model; and

- Assessing the disclosure of the fair value
measurement in the consolidated financial
statements.

We consider that the Group’s fair value measurement of
the investment properties is supported by the available
evidence.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all the information in
the Company’s annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we will not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Continueqd)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit
of the consolidated financial statements is located at the
HKICPA’s website at:

http://www.hkicpa.org.hk/en/standards-and-regulations/
standards/auditing-assurance/auditre/

This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Sze Lin Tang
Audit Engagement Director
Practising Certificate Number P03614

Hong Kong, 30 September 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF GEBERRHEHMEAEKER
PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 30 June 2019 E 220196 H30H IFF/E
2019 2018
20194 20184
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
k=3 FET FHET
Revenue U 2 8 210,437 208,013
Operating expenses LB (470,368) (531,563)
Loss from operations KEEHER (259,931) (323,550)
Interest revenue B U 2= 771 1,910
Other income HEg A 10 8,803 8,646
Profit on sales of players’ registration HE B B it 2 % A 42,133 21,707
Amortisation of intangible assets A EE (76,583) (80,445)
Administrative and other expenses TERHEMAEAEZ (54,205) (42,190)
Impairment loss on intangible assets mLEEZRERE (14,746) (4,804)
Fair value change on investment KEYEZ A FEES
properties 20 23,160 =
Share-based payments expense D EERZFREIH 13 (4,398) -
Finance costs & & B AR 11 (28,008) (19,070)
Share of loss of a joint venture EBiHEELEZEE (46) (172)
Loss before taxation BB AIEE (363,050) (437,968)
Income tax (expense)/credit TS () #He 12 (1,640) 266
Loss for the year REEEE 13 (364,690) (437,702)
Other comprehensive (expense)/ Hit2m (X)W
income
Item that may be reclassified BB EET 72 Em 2
subsequently to profit or loss: FHH :
Exchange differences arising on HEF NI B D BB IS IR R
translation of financial statements of EEZIER EZ%
overseas subsidiaries (10,522) 3,870
Total comprehensive expense AEELHBAXHARE
for the year (8375,212) (433,832)

BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED {HRMEEZR AR A A




Loss for the year attributable to:

BEFFERS :

Owners of the Company KAREE A (360,927) (425,027)
Non-controlling interests eI R A (3,763) (12,675)
(364,690) (437,702)
Total comprehensive expense BEANEEZHBEXAE:
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company ViN/NEETEZ Z =N (371,005) (421,275)
Non-controlling interests PR A (4,207) (12,557)
(375,212) (433,832)
(Restated)
(FE=75)
Loss per share attributable to EATEEANELREREE
owners of the Company
— Basic (HK cents) — =R CEN) 17 (2.66) (4.68)
— Diluted (HK cents) — 858 OF) 17 (2.66) (4.68)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION

wa IR R &

As at 30 June 2019 201946 A30A
2019 2018
20194 20184
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Kt FET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - RE MRE 18 191,135 211,007
Intangible assets EREE 19 142,743 197,024
Investment properties HEME 20 553,020 393,908
Interest in a joint venture RE B ER 21 - 1,073
Deposits, prepayments and other e BNREREA
receivables JE U kI8 25 473 -
Total non-current assets EMBEEBTE 887,371 803,012
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 23 3,449 6,469
Trade receivables EUE SRR 24 7,296 19,167
Deposits, prepayments and other Ee  BNIRBEREA
receivables & U s T8 25 52,747 51,946
Bank balances and cash BIIEBRERE 83,652 69,221
Total current assets MBI EERRE 147,144 146,803
Current liabilities RBAE
Transfer fee payables EEeE 26 26,693 60,626
Trade payables JE B SERFK 27 23,394 18,507
Accruals and other payables JE &1 5K I8 fe H M FE < SR8 28 124,358 48,604
Deferred capital grants EAE & AN B 5K 29 564 585
Deferred income IR E W A - 24,969
Contract liabilities EHBE 30 29,136 -
Borrowings B3R 317 130,004 66,201
Total current liabilities MBI B EARE 334,149 214,492
Net current liabilities REBEEFEE (187,005) (67,689)
Total assets less current liabilities ZBEAFERRBERE 700,366 735,323
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Non-current liabilities

FRBEE

Transfer fee payables ENEeE 26 - 25,650

Accruals and other payables FE ST FRIR K E fh FE A 5RIB 28 4,547 7,883

Deferred capital grants PRI E AN R 29 13,913 14,996

Borrowings B 31 84,512 99,814

Deferred tax liabilities REERIBEE 32 21,885 20,970
Total non-current liabilities EnB A BEERE 124,857 169,313
NET ASSETS BEEEH 575,509 566,010
Capital and reserves BEAXRHE

Share capital A& A 33 177,100 109,741

Reserves s 33 419,841 473,494

Equity attributable to owners of the RRAFER AEIMEER

Company 596,941 583,235

Non-controlling interests FEfE IR I A (21,432) (17,225)

TOTAL EQUITY fESER 575,509 566,010

The consolidated financial statements on pages 62 to 147
were approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors of the Company on 30 September 2019 and are

signed on its behalf by:

Zhao Wenqing
HHE
Director

EZ

FOREATEZIRE VB HRELARAEST RN
2019F 930 #t/E R ETIZE - WA T EENR

REE

Huang Dongfeng
HERE

Director

EZ



Non-

— Share " Share Capital ~ Translation options  Accumulated controlling
—m capital premium* reserve* reserve* reserve* losses* Total interests Total
5 - _— A R EE" EARGE EXffE BRERE ZithiE* &t FERES @it
-— —— Notes  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK8'000 HK8'000 HK$'000 HK8'000 HK$'000 HK8'000 HK$'000
Pe it FiET TiET AT AT AT AT AT AT AT
At1July 2018 201857 A1H 109,741 1,250,779 6,510 (72,841) - (710,954) 583,235 (17,225) 566,010
Issue of consideration shares {7 Efily 33(i) 8,326 78,288 - - - - 86,614 - 86,614
Issue of shares completion of #1217
rights issue i3 38} 59,033 236,134 - - - - 295,167 - 295,167
Transaction costs attributable AR 2 % FEA
to rights shares 38(i) - (1,468) - - - - (1,468) - (1,468)
Recognition of equity settled B2 H B EURA
share-based payments ES A S
expense 34 - - - - 4,398 - 4,398 - 4,398
Total comprehensive IEERER LR
expense for the year - - - (10,078) - (360,927) (371,005) (4,207) (375,212)
At 30 June 2019 R201956A30R 177,100 1,563,733 6,510 (82,919) 4,398  (1,071,881) 596,941 (21,432) 575,509
At1July 2017 R201747A1R 62,932 593,852 6,510 (76,593) - (285,927 300,774 (4,668) 296,106
[ssue of consideration shares  %{7 B 33() 20,865 368,174 - - - - 389,039 - 389,039
Transaction costs attrioutable B2 X FRA
to consideration shares 33() - (6] - - - - 8 - 8
Issue of shares completion of Jf &R 14
share subscriptions Bkl 33() 25,944 288,964 - - - - 314,908 - 314,908
Transaction costs attrioutable F&{7 28 2 X AR
to shares subscription 38() - (203) - - - - (203) - (203)
Total comprehensive TEERER LR
expense for the year - - - 3,752 - (425,027) (421,275) (12,557 (433,832)
At 30 June 2018 R201856A30R 109,741 1,250,779 6,510 (72,841) - (710,954) 583,235 (17,225) 566,010

*  These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Y REREBRAKGRE MBI KT ZREEE -



CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

REFHZHER

Loss before taxation R 5 Bl 5 18 (363,050) (437,968)
Adjustments for: TR
Finance costs Bl& AR 28,008 19,070
Interest revenue F Bk 2% (771) (1,910)
Depreciation e 16,747 12,051
Fixed assets written off 8 B E B E 3 =
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEME  BEREZEZ K
and equipment - (80)
Amortisation of intangible assets A Y 76,583 80,445
Share-based payments expense ARG D BER 2 R W 4,398 =
Profit on sale of players’ registration HEIKE M2 & A (42,133) (21,707)
Impairment loss on intangible assets EREEZREES 14,746 4,804
Fair value change on investment KREMEZ ATFEE
properties (23,160) -
Impairment loss on trade receivables  FEWRE 5 BRA ZREEIE 252 893
Reversal of impairment loss on trade EUNE ZRFBAEREZ
receivables B (299) (118)
Share of loss a joint venture EiEEEEZER 46 172
Operating cash flows before working EEESBEAICKCERER
capital changes (288,630) (344,298)
Change in inventories FEZE#% 2,865 (1,136)
Change in trade receivables FEE Z R 2 & 11,531 (15,106)
Change in deposits and prepayments & ~ J81 FUE & H b fE W ZE
and other receivables 2 E) (3,944) (8,314)
Change in trade payables ERESERZES 10,613 (1,015)
Change in other payables and accruals —H fth & {5 7078 I fE 51 008 2 & &) 21,757 7,107
Change in deferred capital grants IR & AN R 2 & g (578) (600)
Change in contract liabilities EHEaBEZE 5,155 =
Change in deferred income REEW A 2 B8 - (2,388)
Net cash flows used in operating RETEFMAZRERFE
activities (241,231) (365,750)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FERERER )

CASH FLOWS (continued)

For the year ended 30 June 2019

A 220196 H30H I F/Z

2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING BREFHZHER
ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of property, plant and WM - WE R&E
equipment (4,790) (20,584)
Acquisition of intangible assets WEEREE (130,025) (129,115)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEWME  BERREZMERIE
plant and equipment - 58
Proceeds from disposals of intangible — H&&F & E 2 FT1S 58
assets 70,820 43,382
Capital contribution to a joint venture HEEEH - (1,262)
Investment refund from joint venture A EREZWEIERERIE
due to deregistration 986 -
Interest received 2 FE 771 1,910
Net cash flows used in investing REZBHFARESRFE
activities (62,238) (105,611)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ~ BEFB>HER
ACTIVITIES
Net proceeds from rights issue 1,\HxZFﬁ/E' SRIBFEE 293,699 =
Proceeds from new borrowings ERZFTEIE 284,500 509,213
Repayment of borrowings BEEER (236,004) (89,049)
Interest paid S PR RS (22,114) (13,369)
Net cash flows generated from MEIHEEZ2HESRFE
financing activities 320,081 406,795
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN BePREEEER
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS #m, ORd) B 16,612 (64,566)
Cash and cash equivalents at FHzReRkReEBEE
beginning of year 69,221 131,188
Effect of change in foreign ExgFH o w28
exchange rates (2,181) 2,599
Cash and cash equivalents FRZESRBESEEER
at the end of year 83,652 69,221
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH HR&RESZHEEBEBR ZAHI
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank balances and cash RITEBRER S 83,652 69,221
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2019

GENERAL INFORMATION

Birmingham Sports Holdings Limited was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed
on the Stock Exchange. The registered office and
the principal place of business of the Company is
disclosed in the Corporate Information section of this
annual report.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding and the principal activities of its major
subsidiaries are engaged in the operation of a
professional football club in the UK and properties
investment in the Kingdom of Cambodia
(“Cambodia”).

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong
dollars. The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars for the convenience
of users of the consolidated financial statements as
the Company is listed in Hong Kong.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
(a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and
accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Listing Rules and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost basis,
as modified by revaluation of investment
properties, which are carried at their fair values.
They are presented in HK$ and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand (HK$’000)
except when otherwise indicated.

REMBHREE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2019

2.

BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED {HRMEEZR AR A A

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(b) Going concern basis

The Group incurred a loss attributable to
owners of the Company of HK$360,927,000
for the year ended 30 June 2019 and as at 30
June 2019 the Group had net current liabilities
of HK$187,005,000. These conditions indicate
the existence of a material uncertainty which
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. Therefore, the
Group may be unable to realise its assets and
discharge its liabilities in the normal course of
business.

The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared on a going concern basis. The
Directors are of the opinion that the Group
will have sufficient working capital to meet
its financial obligations as and when they fall
due for the next twelve months given that (i)
the Company has entered into a loan facility
agreement and a supplemental agreement with
a controlling Shareholder, Trillion Trophy Asia
Limited (“Trillion Trophy”), on 21 December
2016 and 21 December 2018 respectively,
under which an unsecured revolving loan facility
up to a maximum amount of HK$250,000,000
has been granted to the Company (“Trillion
Trophy Facility”); (ii) the Company has
unsecured loan facilities with aggregate amount
of HK$400,000,000 from third party lenders;
and (iii) the financial support of the controlling
Shareholder, at a level sufficient to finance the
working capital requirements of the Group. The
controlling Shareholder has agreed to provide
adequate funds to the Group.

As at 30 June 2019, the total carrying amount
of the borrowings under the above facilities of
the Group was approximately HK$209,697,000.
As at 30 June 2019, the Group had undrawn
borrowing facilities of HK$424,303,000 available
to it.

SREMBHRRMT )

A 220196 H30H I F/Z
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2019

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
(b) Going concern basis (Continued)

Accordingly, the Directors are of the
opinion that it is appropriate to prepare the
consolidated financial statements on a going
concern basis. Should the Group be unable
to continue as a going concern, adjustments
would have to be made to the consolidated
financial statements to adjust the value of the
Group’s assets to their recoverable amounts,
to provide for any further liabilities which might
arise and to reclassify non-current assets
and liabilities as current assets and liabilities,
respectively.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the
new and revised HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
that are relevant to its operations and effective
for its accounting year beginning on 1 July 2018.
HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards; Hong Kong Accounting Standards; and
Interpretations. The adoption of these new and
revised HKFRSs did not result in significant changes
to the Group’s accounting policies, presentation
of the Group’s financial statements and amounts
reported for the current year and prior years except
as stated below.

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers”

HKFRS 15 has been applied in the amounts reported
in the consolidated financial statements as follows:

As at

1 July 2018

HK$’'000

Decrease in deferred income (24,969)
Increase in contract liabilities 24,969

The Group has not early applied new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective for the financial year beginning on 1 July
2018. So far, the Company has identified some
aspects of the new standards which may have a
significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements. Further details of the expected impacts
are discussed below.
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 was issued in January 2016. It will
result in almost all leases being recognised on the
statement of financial position by lessees, as the
distinction between operating and finance leases
is removed. Under the new standard, an asset (the
right to use the leased item) and a financial liability to
pay rentals are recognised. The only exceptions are
short-term and low-value leases.

The Directors anticipate that the application of
HKFRS 16 in the future may have an impact on
the disclosures made in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements. However, it is not practicable to
provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS
16 until the Group performs a detailed review.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain key
assumptions and estimates. It also requires the
directors to exercise its judgements in the process
of applying the accounting policies. The areas
involving critical judgements and areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to these
financial statements, are disclosed in note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The significant accounting policies applied in
the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 30 June. Subsidiaries are
entities over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. The Group has power over an
entity when the Group has existing rights that give it
the current ability to direct the relevant activities, i.e.
activities that significantly affect the entity’s returns.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2019

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)

When assessing control, the Group considers its
potential voting rights as well as potential voting
rights held by other parties, to determine whether
it has control. A potential voting right is considered
only if the holder has the practical ability to exercise
that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that
results in a loss of control represents the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration of the
sale plus the fair value of any investment retained
in that subsidiary and (i) the Company’s share of
the net assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining
goodwill relating to that subsidiary and any related
accumulated foreign currency translation reserve.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised
profits are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly,
to the Company. Non-controlling interests are
presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position and consolidated statement of changes in
equity within equity. Non-controlling interests are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between the non-controlling
shareholders and owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
shareholders even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest
in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of
control are accounted for as equity transactions
(i.e. transactions with owners in their capacity as
owners). The carrying amounts of the controlling and
non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary.
Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted and the
fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to the
owners of the Company.

Joint arrangements

A joint arrangement is an arrangement of which two
or more parties have joint control. Joint control is
the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about
the relevant activities require the unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control. Relevant activities
are activities that significantly affect the returns of
the arrangement. When assessing joint control, the
Group considers its potential voting rights as well
as potential voting rights held by other parties, to
determine whether it has joint control. A potential
voting right is considered only if the holder has the
practical ability to exercise that right.

A joint arrangement is either a joint operation
or a joint venture. A joint operation is a joint
arrangement whereby the parties that have joint
control of the arrangement have rights to the assets,
and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the
arrangement. A joint venture is a joint arrangement
whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
arrangement.

In relation to its interest in a joint operation, the
Group recognises in its consolidated financial
statements, its assets, including its share of any
assets held jointly; its liabilities, including its share
of any liabilities incurred jointly; its revenue from the
sale of its share of the output arising from the joint
operation; its share of the revenue from the sale of
the output by the joint operation; and its expenses,
including its share of any expenses incurred jointly,
in accordance with the HKFRSs applicable to the
particular assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2019

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Joint arrangements (Continued)

Investment in a joint venture is accounted for
in the consolidated financial statements by the
equity method and is initially recognised at cost.
Identifiable assets and liabilities of the joint venture
in an acquisition are measured at their fair values
at the acquisition date. The excess of the cost of
acquisition over the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the joint venture’s identifiable assets and
liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The goodwill is
included in the carrying amount of the investment
and is tested for impairment together with the
investment at the end of each reporting period when
there is objective evidence that the investment is
impaired. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over
the cost of acquisition is recognised in consolidated
profit or loss.

The Group’s share of a joint venture’s post-
acquisition profits or losses is recognised in
consolidated profit or loss, and its share of the post-
acquisition movements in reserves is recognised
in the consolidated reserves. The cumulative post-
acquisition movements are adjusted against the
carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group’s share of losses in a joint venture equals or
exceeds its interest in the joint venture, including
any other unsecured receivables, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint
venture. If the joint venture subsequently reports
profits, the Group resumes recognising its share of
those profits only after its share of the profits equals
the share of losses not recognised.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a joint venture
that results in a loss of joint control represents
the difference between (i) the fair value of the
consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any
investment retained in that joint venture and (ii)
the Group’s share of the net assets of that joint
venture plus any remaining goodwill relating to that
joint venture and any related accumulated foreign
currency translation reserve. If an investment in a
joint venture becomes an investment in an associate,
the Group continues to apply the equity method and
does not remeasure the retained interest.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2019

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Joint arrangements (Continued)

Unrealised profits on transactions between the
Group and its joint ventures are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interests in the joint ventures.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of joint
ventures have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars which is the Group’s presentation
currency.

(b) Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated
into the functional currency on initial recognition
using the exchange rates prevailing on the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities in foreign currencies are translated at
the exchange rates at the end of each reporting
period. Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or
loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
values in foreign currencies are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates when the fair
values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income.
When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in profit or loss, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PC
(Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(c) Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the
Group entities that have a functional currency
different from the Company’s presentation
currency are translated into the Company’s
presentation currency as follows:

° Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated
at the closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

° Income and expenses are translated
at average exchange rates (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are
translated at the exchange rates on the
transaction dates); and

e All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in the translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment in foreign
entities and of borrowings are recognised in the
translation reserve. When a foreign operation is
sold, such exchange differences are recognised in
consolidated profit or loss as part of the gain or loss
on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2019

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for
the acquisition of a subsidiary in a business
combination. The cost of acquisition is measured at
the acquisition-date fair value of the assets given,
equity instruments issued, liabilities incurred and
contingent consideration. Acquisition-related costs
are recognised as expenses in the periods in which
the costs are incurred and the services are received.
Identifiable assets and liabilities of the subsidiary in
the acquisition are measured at their acquisition-date
fair values.

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the
Company’s share of the net fair value of the
subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities is
recorded as goodwill. Any excess of the Company’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition
is recognised in consolidated profit or loss as a
gain on bargain purchase which is attributed to the
Company.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest in the subsidiary is
remeasured at its acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gain or loss is recognised in consolidated
profit or loss. The fair value is added to the cost of
acquisition to calculate the goodwill.

If the changes in the value of the previously held
equity interest in the subsidiary were recognised in
other comprehensive income (for example, available-
for-sale investment), the amount that was recognised
in other comprehensive income is recognised on the
same basis as would be required if the previously
held equity interest were disposed of.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combination and goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that it might be impaired. Goodwill is
measured at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. The method of measuring impairment losses
of goodwill is the same as that of other assets as
stated in the accounting policy below. Impairment
losses of goodwill are recognised in consolidated
profit or loss and are not subsequently reversed.
Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units that
are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition for the purpose of impairment testing.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are
initially measured at the non-controlling shareholders’
proportionate share of the net fair value of the
subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities at the
acquisition date.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
are recognised in profit or loss during the period in
which they are incurred.

HREMBHRRMET 2

A 220196 HA30H I F/Z

4. FTESTHE(E)
E¥BEHREE(E)
HmEeGFHETHRENNSE SHRBERRE
AR RE R BRI A TR BRI - 8

BERARZTRERBETE - HERES
BZAERT AR TXEFFBRRAMMZ Ei
BEZFENENER - AEBZREBERES
B NER - BREERANTRE - SURERAHM
5 AEREROEEEMENE ZHRMEN
EENGcREELEMN -

INGIENCIPE S S 2iE 22l G &
HEMBARNWRBE R ZATENEEREE
ZRFELHIFE -

WE - BB R RETIEKAR R T E RMEM
BERESIE - W% - BERKEEB KA
BREBEERSZEEERHE R EEE
RAE M AL B B (] B iR FER AR ©

fHEZIAE B2 BREEMEA A ERAR
SE - RZIAR KRR SEAHER - BIERK
ARGt ABERTERER S @R EE (1058
) - FrAEMMERFREREELSHIMESR

3L Toh
mER ©

4 # ANNUAL REPORT 2019

79



80

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2019

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost
less their residual values over the estimated useful
lives on a straight-line basis. The principal annual
rates are as follows:

Freehold land and buildings 2% — 10%
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter
of the term of the

lease, or 20%

Furniture, fixtures and office 20% — 33%
equipment
Motor vehicles 20%

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
the end of each reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation. An investment
property including property that is being constructed
or developed for future use as investment property is
measured initially at its cost including all direct costs
attributable to the property.

After initial recognition, the investment property is
stated at its fair value based on valuation by an
external independent valuer. Gains or losses arising
from changes in fair value of the investment property
are recognised in profit or loss for the period in which
they arise.

The gain or loss on disposal of an investment
property is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the property,
and is recognised in profit or loss.

BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED {HRMEEZR AR A A

A

B EBmRME 2

A 220196 H30H I F/Z

4.

ETREHBEA)

M- BERRE (H)

ME  BELRREBIITE  REAMBEKAR
ﬁiﬂﬁéﬁﬁfﬁzmm M E R A H M
BAAAE  TEFERMT

KAFERE T RIETF 2% — 10%

HEmMEEE T4 F Hs820%

(BB H %)

B HREBRBEAE 20% — 33%
B

E 20%

BE EAFHRTEZENSWERRE
HiReT kAR (ER) -

HEME BRI BB AL E SR
FREREMEE REERE 2 MEE KA
R -

REME
REVERAKDRES R/ REREEMRHFE
MYE - REVME  BREEREXFEER
KEBREMENOYE - NRBRKATE  EhE
RZMEREABEEKA

TG HERIR - REMFZE A FEYIR - BIER
ﬁl\ﬁﬁhiﬁfﬁﬁﬂi#iZfﬂE c REMEAFE
""""" SFHELNES  EEELHRNBEDE

17
o ©

HE—EREMEZWRKERRZMEHEE
ISR IEFREMEEME AN ERE W=
Epﬁgwu"




SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PC
(Continued)

Acquired players’ registration
Costs of acquisition of players’ registration are
initially recognised at cost at the date of acquisition
and amortised over the period of the respective
player’s contract, being between one to five
years. A provision is made in accruals, where
in management’s opinion, the club is likely to
achieve a contractually agreed number of first
team appearances. Where the outcome of this is
uncertain, the maximum amount payable is disclosed
as a contingent liability.

For the purposes of impairment testing, acquired
players’ registration are classified as a single cash
generating unit until the point at which:

o it is made clear that the player no longer
remains as an active member of the playing
squad. In these circumstances the carrying
value of the players’ registration is reviewed
against a measurable net realisable value; or

° the carrying amount of a registration will be
recovered through sale. The measurement of
such registration is at the lower of (i) fair value
(less costs of disposal) and (i) carrying value.
Amortisation of such registration is suspended
at the time of reclassification, although
impairment charges still need to be made if
applicable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2019

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases
The Group as lessee
Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group
all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are
accounted for as operating leases. Lease payments
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Finance leases

Leases that substantially transfer to the Group
all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets
are accounted for as finance leases. At the
commencement of the lease term, a finance lease is
capitalised at the lower of the fair value of the leased
asset and the present value of the minimum lease
payments, each determined at the inception of the
lease.

The corresponding liability to the lessor is included
in the statement of financial position as finance
lease payable. Lease payments are apportioned
between the finance charge and the reduction of the
outstanding liability. The finance charge is allocated
to each period during the lease term so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability.

Assets under finance leases are depreciated the
same as owned assets.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using the
weighted average basis. The cost of finished goods
and work in progress comprises raw materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
all production overhead expenditure, and where
appropriate, subcontracting charges. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised in the statement of financial position
when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the
contractual rights to receive cash flows from the
assets expire; the Group transfers substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets; or
the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets
but has not retained control on the assets. On
derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis where the purchase or sale
of an asset is under a contract whose terms require
delivery of the asset within the timeframe established
by the market concerned, and are initially recognised
at fair value, plus directly attributable transaction
costs except in the case of investments at fair value
through profit or loss. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of investments at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2019

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets of the Group are classified under the
following category:

- Financial assets at amortised cost:

Financial assets (including trade and other
receivables) are classified under this category if they
satisfy both of the following conditions:

()  the assets are held within a business model
whose objective is to hold assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

(i)  the contractual terms of the assets give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

They are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method less loss
allowance for expected credit losses.

Loss allowances for expected credit losses

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit losses on financial assets at amortised cost.
Expected credit losses are the weighted average of
credit losses with the respective risks of a default
occurring as the weights.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
measures the loss allowance for a financial
instrument at an amount equal to the expected
credit losses that result from all possible default
events over the expected life of that financial
instrument (“lifetime expected credit losses”) for
trade receivables, or if the credit risk on that financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

HREMBHRRMET 2

For the year ended 30 June 2019 B 220196 A30H IFF/ZE
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. TESHEEXE)
(Continued)

Loss allowances for expected credit losses EHEESENEERE(E)

(Continued)

If, at the end of the reporting period, the credit
risk on a financial instrument (other than trade
receivables) has not increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Group measures the loss
allowance for that financial instrument at an amount
equal to the portion of lifetime expected credit losses
that represents the expected credit losses that result
from default events on that financial instrument that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting
period.

The amount of expected credit losses or reversal to
adjust the loss allowance at the end of the reporting
period to the required amount is recognised in profit
or loss as an impairment gain or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents represent cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other
financial institutions, and short-term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant
risk of change in value. Bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of
the Group’s cash management are also included as
a component of cash and cash equivalents.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are
classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument
is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for
specific financial liabilities and equity instruments are
set out below.

R RERAR - ©RITE (BRE HBEREIN)
15 B B B ) 25 HE AR LA SR I S K g hn - Al
AEEEREFRRRZEEB T AR HEHE
T A AR REE ERZ QO FE Mo BURRIE
EFEEnNcHEREERREONEEAER
BT RNERERE -

BHEEERSRANARRSMRBRERE
EfFeRMERR SR MNMERER R E

B -

ReRBEEEEER

RREREXRTE REMBLFEBEBHER
TRFERAE  FROBITREMTBEEIEL
AHES WRESSRAN 2RE (7 A
BRMACDARBERS AR GRMEES
RiFAR) - ReRREFERE TEEAR
EREENSAEEERRSEE B 2R
1T e

THAEERREATIA
EHBERRATATNREBEANLZEZEERN
BARBAYBHREEATERABRRAT
BAZEZTUNE - RATERAIBIARNEE
BEMRARBERRNEETHE 2 RIfERS
ZEMER - R ERF 2 ERABRERAT
BB G BERR T X#T -

4 # ANNUAL REPORT 2019




86

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2019

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

Share options granted to employees and
directors

Pursuant to the terms of the Company’s share option
scheme, the Group may issue equity-settled share-
based payments to participants including, among
others, directors, employees and consultants.

Equity-settled share-based payments to directors
and employees are measured at the fair value
(excluding the effect of non market-based vesting
conditions) of the equity instruments at the date
of grant. The fair value determined at the grant
date of the equity-settled share-based payments is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, based on the Group’s estimate of shares that
will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect of non
market-based vesting conditions.

Equity-settled share-based payments to consultants
are measured at the fair value of the services
rendered or if the fair value of the services rendered
cannot be reliably measured, at the fair value of
the equity instruments granted. The fair value
is measured at the date the Group receives the
services and is recognised as an expense.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net
of transaction costs incurred, and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the reporting period.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PC
(Continued)

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Contract liabilities

Contract liabilities relates to amounts received from
sponsorships and sale of season tickets and is
released to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the period to which it relates.

Capital grants

Grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and the grants will be
received.

Grants and donations received in respect of
safety work and stadium developments are initially
recognised as deferred capital grants in the
consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss over the expected useful
life of the assets to which they relate. Football Trust
grants received are released to profit or loss when
the related expenditures are incurred.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideration
specified in a contract with a customer with
reference to the customary business practices
and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third
parties. For a contract where the period between
the payment by the customer and the transfer of the
promised product or service exceeds one year, the
consideration is adjusted for the effect of a significant
financing component.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2019

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

The Group recognises revenue when it satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring control over a
product or service to a customer. Depending on the
terms of a contract and the laws that apply to that
contract, a performance obligation can be satisfied
over time or at a point in time. A performance
obligation is satisfied over time if:

- the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance;

—  the Group’s performance creates or enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the asset
is created or enhanced; or

— the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

If a performance obligation is satisfied over time,
revenue is recognised by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a
point in time when the customer obtains control of
the product or service.

Other revenue

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2019

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Segment reporting

Operating segments and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purpose of allocating resources
and assessing the performance of the Group’s
various lines of business.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of productions processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

Employee benefits
(i) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and
long service leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave and long
service leave as a result of services rendered
by employees up to the end of the reporting
period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the time
of leave.

(ii) Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by
the Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The
retirement benefit scheme cost charged to profit
or loss represents contributions payable by the
Group to the funds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2019

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)
(iiij) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of the dates when the Group can no
longer withdraw the offer of those benefits
and when the Group recognises restructuring
costs and involves the payment of termination
benefits.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally
and used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying
asset, the amount of borrowing costs eligible
for capitalisation is determined by applying a
capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that asset.
The capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the
borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the
Group that are outstanding during the period, other
than borrowings made specifically for the purpose of
obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the profit
or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2019

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit
recognised in profit or loss because it excludes items
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses
or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow
all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2019

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax is
recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is
also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and
liabilities reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects,
at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle
the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the carrying amounts of
such properties are presumed to be recovered
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted.
The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business
model of the Group whose business objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale. If the presumption is
rebutted, deferred tax for such investment properties
are measured based on the expected manner as to
how the properties will be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when
they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its
current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PC
(Continued)

Related parties
BER AL BERE L AT ES

A related party is a person or entity that is related to

the Group.
(@) A person or a close member of that person’s (a) fWEBIAT AL @ BIRZATSZATRER
family is related to the Group if that person: A B RSB G REE
(i)  has control or joint control over the Group; (i) EHIREERZEHEHAREE
(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or (i) HEAEEBEEATE: 3
(i) is a member of the key management iy BARAKAARBFRAANEEE
personnel of the Company or of a parent BEMNKE

of the Company.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the (b) 1H1f"rAT§|HE1—HI % BEREAEEE
following conditions applies: A&
()  The entity and the Company are members i) ZERBEARABR-—SEBEZKE
of the same group (which means that each AEl (ANERATF - MBARIRER
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is B AR Rt EABEE) -

related to the others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture iy — Eﬁ,a‘%“"z%;u EEEE A%
of the other entity (or an associate or joint EhE(KS—EBRKERARAZ
venture of a member of a group of which %I}jﬁTﬁkﬁ/‘ AlZBE NTHE
the other entity is a member). B -

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same (i) MEAEBEHAR-—F=AHN&ZEDL
third party. ¥

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity ivy —"HERBARE=FEEBNEED
and the other entity is an associate of the ¥ ME—EBEBAZF-FEEN
third entity. iR/ I

(vy The entity is a post-employment benefit v) ERAASBENHEAEEHBFHE
plan for the benefit of employees of either E BT B 72 3R 37 A BE B 4= A 5
the Group or an entity related to the 2o MARBARFEEZTE R
Group. If the Group is itself such a plan, HEPWEETTEAEEFHE -

the sponsoring employers are also related
to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2019

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (Continued)

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Company or to a parent of the Company.

Impairment of assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life
or not yet available for use are reviewed annually
for impairment and are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets except inventories and receivables
to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of any impairment loss. Where it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2019

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-
generating unit is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
or cash-generating unit is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset
is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating
unit is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of
amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset or cash-generating
unit in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss
is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount,
in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation increase.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditures expected to settle
the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow is remote.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2019

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide
additional information about the Group’s position at
the end of the reporting period or those that indicate
the going concern assumption is not appropriate are
adjusting events and are reflected in the financial
statements. Events after the reporting period that are
not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements when material.

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENT AND KEY ESTIMATES

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies,
the directors have made the following judgements
that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements (apart from
those involving estimations, which are dealt with
below).

Going concern basis

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis, the validity of
which depends upon the financial support of Trillion
Trophy and two third parties and the facilities at
a level sufficient to finance the working capital
requirements of the Group. Details of which are
explained in note 2.

Deferred tax for investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the directors have reviewed
the Group’s investment property portfolios and
concluded that the Group’s investment properties
are held under a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time,
rather than through sale. Therefore, in determining
the Group’s deferred tax for investment properties,
the directors have rebutted the presumption that
investment properties measured using the fair value
model are recovered through sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2019

HREMBHRRMET 2

A 220196 HA30H I F/Z

CRITICAL JUDGEMENT AND KEY ESTIMATES BEHEREEMT (&)
(Continued)
Joint control assessment 1 2 5 A

The Group’s joint arrangements are structured
as limited companies and provide the Group and
the parties to the agreements with rights to the
net assets of the limited companies under the
arrangements. Therefore, these entities are classified
as joint ventures of the Group.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of the reporting period, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, are discussed below:

(a) Depreciation of property, plant and

equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful
lives, residual values and related depreciation
charges for the Group’s property, plant and
equipment. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives
and residual values of property, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions. The
Group will revise the depreciation charge where
useful lives and residual values are different to
those previously estimated, or it will write-off or
write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold.

(b) Impairment of property, plant and

equipment

This requires an estimation of the recoverable
amount which was determined by either based
on fair value less cost of disposal method.
The fair value of the assets were determined
by management based on recent market
transactions. The market approach involves a
direct comparison of the assets being appraised
to similar assets that have sold in the same or in
a similar market.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2019

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENT AND KEY ESTIMATES

(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(c) Impairment of trade and other receivables

The directors of the Company periodically
review its receivables to assess whether
impairment exists. In determining whether
impairment should be provided, the directors
of the Company evaluated individually each
account for impairment after taking into account
the value of each client account’s underlying
collateral and the latest financial position of

those clients in default of settlement.

(d) Player transfer costs

Management has to make certain judgements
as to whether a liability should be recognised
under the terms of the contracts with other
football clubs in respect of player transfers. This
includes whether in the management’s opinion,
at the end of the reporting period, the football
club is likely to retain English Football League
Championship status in the next season. It also
requires certain judgements as to whether a
player will continue to make the contractually
agreed number of first team appearances.
Based on these judgements, management
will decide on a player by player basis as
to whether the liability should be disclosed
as a contingent liability in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements or whether it
becomes a liability and is recognised in transfer
fee payable in the consolidated statement of

financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2019

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENT AND KEY ESTIMATES

(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(e) Intangible assets - acquire players’

(f)

registration

At the end of each reporting period, the
management considers the recoverability of the
acquired players’ registration based on current
estimated fair values. Management considers
the economic life of the players’ registration
to be between one to five years, based on
the respective players’ contracts. These are
reviewed annually on a player by player basis
to determine whether there are indicators of
impairment. Determining whether the players’
registration should be impaired at the end of
the reporting period is based on management’s
judgement of whether the player will no longer
remain an active member of the playing squad
and an assessment of the football club’s
likeliness to retain English Football League
Championship status in the next season as well
as the current market value of the players.

Intangible assets - trademark

In accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment
of Assets”, the Group completed its annual
impairment test for trademark by comparing
their recoverable amount to its carrying amount
as at 30 June 2019. The Group has conducted
a valuation of the trademark based on its fair
value less cost of disposal. The impairment
test has resulted no impairment loss on the
fair value of trademark for the year ended 30
June 2019 was approximately equal to their
carrying amount. This valuation uses the relief
from royalty method to determine the present
worth of future after-tax royalties derived from
ownership. Management believes that any
reasonably foreseeable change in any of the
above key assumptions would not cause the
aggregate carrying amount of trademark to
exceed the aggregate recoverable amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2019

CRITICAL JUDGEMENT AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(g) Fair values of investment properties

The Group appointed an independent
professional valuer to assess the fair values of
the investment properties. In determining the
fair values, the valuer has utilised a method of
valuation which involves certain estimates. The
directors have exercised their judgement and
are satisfied that the method of valuation is
reflective of the current market conditions.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s principal financial instruments
comprise interest-bearing loans, and cash and cash
equivalents. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise funding for the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial
assets and liabilities, such as trade receivables
and trade payables, which arise directly from its
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are foreign currency risk, interest rate
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of
directors of the Company reviews and agrees on
policies for managing each of these risks and they
are summarised below:

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s businesses are mainly located in the
UK and are mainly transacted and settled in Pounds
Sterling, as such, the Group has minimal exposure to
foreign currency risk.

Celestial Fame Investment (Cambodia) Co., Ltd.
(“Celestial Fame Cambodia”) and Deep Blue Trade
(Cambodia) Co., Ltd. (“Deep Blue”), two wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Company, are engaged in
properties investment business in Cambodia and are
mainly transacted and settled in US dollars. Since
Hong Kong dollars is pegged to US dollars, the
risk of volatility between US dollars and Hong Kong
dollars is limited and the directors of the Company
consider that the foreign currency risk is minimal.

BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED {HRmME 5 ZR AR A A

SREMBHRRMT )

A 220196 H30H I F/Z
5. BARHERFEME(E)

fhEt RRE M 2 T ERR (&)

(9) REYFZLFiE
AEBERIBLEXRGEMUGTRE
MEZ AFE - REEXTER - H{ERM
EBRPRETEFZHETE ESCE
H #3015 49 1 B 75 A 7T R B E BT T 35

TEREREE
FEBEZIESRIABEFRER  kEE
IREEEER ZFEMTEANTIERET
RAEBEESEURANEE AEBEHEAEMA
EBREREENTREMESREEREE -
ENE ZHIARENE H5KA

ANEBE SR T EEANEBER AINMERK
FERR  FERRERBESRAR - A2
ZESERIRBEEE LS RBABEK -
Bt an R -

S8 [ B
HRAEEEBIEUNRE  HEXTEX 5T
NEREEE - F AR B 2 HMNE R &%

/N o

Celestial Fame Investment (Cambodia) Co.,
Ltd. ([ Celestial Fame Cambodia |) K Deep
Blue Trade (Cambodia) Co., Ltd. ([ Deep
Bluel) (MEH AEARG 22 EMBAR) R
RIBENREMHEREES  TEUETRHR
HE o RS EE T - R BT 2 M
ZEBRERRER - AR AEEREBINE R R
o




HREMBHRRMET 2

A 220196 HA30H I F/Z

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2019

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Interest rate risk

The Group did not have any long-term loans with a
floating interest rate during the years ended 30 June

2019 and 2018, so the Group was not exposed to
the risk of changes in market interest rates.

Credit risk
The carrying amount of (i) bank balances and cash
and (ii) trade and other receivables included in

the consolidated statement of financial position
represents the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk in relation to the Group’s financial assets.

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit
risk.

It has policies in place to ensure that sales are made
to customers with an appropriate credit history.

The credit risk on cash and bank balances is limited
because the counterparties are banks with high
credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

The Group considers whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk of financial assets
on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting
period by comparing the risk of a default occurring
as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at
the date of initial recognition. It considers available
reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking
information. Especially the following information is
used:

internal credit rating;

— actual or expected significant adverse changes
in business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant change
to the debtor’s ability to meet its obligations;

- actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of the debtor;

— significant increases in credit risk on other
financial instruments of the same debtor;

— significant changes in the value of the collateral
or in the quality of guarantees or credit
enhancements; and

- significant changes in the expected
performance and behaviour of the debtor,
including changes in the payment status of
debtor.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2019

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

A significant increase in credit risk is presumed if a
debtor is more than 30 days past due in making a
contractual payment. A default on a financial asset
is when the counterparty fails to make contractual
payments within 60 days of when they fall due.

Financial assets are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a debtor
failing to engage in a repayment plan with the Group.
The Group normally categorises a loan or receivable
for write off when a debtor fails to make contractual
payments greater than 360 days past due. Where
loans or receivables have been written off, the
Group, if practicable and economical, continues to
engage in enforcement activity to attempt to recover
the receivable due.

The Group uses two categories for non-trade loan
receivables which reflect their credit risk and how
the loan loss provision is determined for each of the
categories. In calculating the expected credit loss
rates, the Group considers historical loss rates for
each category and adjusts for forward looking data.

Category Definition Loss provision

Performing Low risk of default and 12 month expected
strong capacity to pay losses

Non-performing  Significant increase in Lifetime expected
credit risk losses

All of non-trade loans are considered to have low risk
and under the ‘Performing’ category because they
have a low risk of default and have strong ability to
meet their obligations.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities
as at the end of each reporting period, based on the
contractual undiscounted payment, was as follows:
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEME

Liquidity risk (Continued)

At 30 June 2019 H20196/5307
Within one In the third
year or on Inthe to fifth years, Over
demand  second year inclusive five years Total
RE=FZE
R-FR FRE
HRER RE-F (BREREWE) RENE X
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FEr FET FAT FET FEn
Transfer fee payables EffEes 26,693 - - - 26,693
Trade payables BB SR 23,394 - - - 23,394
Accruals and other payables  FEGtFURRE MEMNFA 124,358 4,547 - - 128,905
Borrowings BN 130,004 79,702 18 4,792 214,516
Notional interest on transfer fee ENEEE 7 4EF 8
payables 1,484 - - - 1,484
Interest portion of borrowings ~ EF 2 F S 14,922 2,493 1,386 15,983 34,784
320,855 86,742 1,404 20,775 429,776
At 80 June 2018 R2018F6A30H
Within one In the third
year or on In the to fifth years, Over
demand  second year inclusive five years Total
RE=FZ
R—FR F0F
FREX REZF (BREEREF) RENE fak
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FiEm FiE FET FiET
Transfer fee payables EfEeE 60,626 25,650 - = 86,276
Trade payables BB SHEHR 13,507 - - = 13,507
Accruals and other payables JEET A KA FER 2R 48,604 7,883 - = 56,487
Borrowings =5 66,201 95,194 10 4,610 166,015
Notional interest on transfer fee  [EfEEE 7 £%F| 8
payables 3,080 855 - - 3,935
Interest portion of borrowings &2 Fl 855 8,063 8,062 1,384 16,402 33,911
200,081 137,644 1,394 21,012 360,131
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

SREMBHRRMT )

A 220196 H30H I F/Z

6. TEEREEE)

Categories of financial instruments SRIAER
2019 2018
20195 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TFET
Financial assets: CREE
Financial assets at amortised cost REBERATE 2 eMEE
(including cash and cash equivalents) (BFERENELEZEEEH) 138,377 130,706
Financial liabilities: TREE:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost BEERATHE 2 ERAE 393,508 322,285

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The following disclosures of fair
value measurements use a fair value hierarchy that
categorises into three levels the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
Group can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices
included within level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of any of the three levels as of the date
of the event or change in circumstances that caused
the transfer.

BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED {HRMEEZR AR A A

7. DFEE
AFEZEERATHSRENTERRETZ
AR S H &R EPTUIR R S &P A
ZBI% - UTAFEFERBEERZATEE
B #EH R DT AR 2 M E BT AR AR
BAR=EER

F—RBARE  AEBERFER RIS
MWEREEXA BN ERT S 2 ME CREH

) -

F_RBABE HEEXRABERAME
A BR 2B ABE (F-RABENRER
)

F=RBARE - BEXRBENTAEEHA
B -

AEBEZHRRAERBERFAIKREHE
HzEB s B2 E=ASR 2 EREAR
B -
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For the year ended 30 June 2019

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(@) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy

HREMBHRRMET 2

A 220196 HA30H I F/Z

7. AVEFGEGE)
(@) RFEEREE

Fair value measurements using Total
Description FERAUTHAZEZ
it DEEE st
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2019
E—R E-® B=R 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Recurring fair value BEMATETE
measurements:
Investment properties BREMZE
Commercial and residential BEREE
- Cambodia — RIPE - 553,020 - 558,020
Total recurring fair value BEMATETELE
measurements - 558,020 - 558,020
Fair value measurements using Total
Description FERANTHABEZ
it DNREE Hat
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2018
E— B8R B 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET FET FET
Recurring fair value REMALETE
measurements:
Investment properties BEM
Commercial and residential BENEE
— Cambodia — RIF%E - 393,908 - 393,908
Total recurring fair value REMATESELE
measurements - 393,908 - 393,908
(b) Disclosure of valuation process used by the (b) LEEEAEEREFRAFEHE
Group and valuation techniques and inputs BT FRH 8912 (8 135 17 % B A 2495 9 5 75
used in fair value measurements
Level 2 fair value measurements E_RATFEFE
Fair value
AFE
Description Valuation Technique Inputs 2019 2018
it fh B B i BABE 20194 2018%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Commercial and Market comparable Price per square 553,020 393,908
residential investment approach meter
properties
EEREERENE iSO BYFRER
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BHREE

For the year ended 30 June 2019 E 220196 H30H IFF/Z
8. REVENUE 8. W=
An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year is as AEBRAFEE 2RSS DNBT :
follows:
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
Disaggregation of revenue: Wso ¥
Recognised at a point in time RE— I 2R
Commercial income BEWA 39,132 38,082
Match day receipts REHWA 23,708 22,362
62,840 60,444
Recognised over time R—BREFE AR
Commercial income WA 16,564 20,529
Broadcasting &+ 81,053 81,156
Match day receipts FRER WA 28,663 29,466
126,280 131,151
Revenue from contracts with HEEFEHz2 W :
customers: 189,120 191,595
Revenue from other sources: H 3Rz i s
Commercial income EEILIN 16,670 16,418
Rental income e WA 4,647 -
21,317 16,418
210,437 208,013

All revenue from contracts with customers were
generated from the Group’s operation of a
professional football club in the UK.

Revenue represents amount receivable for goods
sold and services provided to external customers
in the normal course of business and rental
income from investment properties, after deducting

AR °

discounts and excluding value added tax or other

sales related taxes.

BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED {H# &

BEERERAR

B & R P 25 ¥ 3k & AN SR B
R FG B R IRIRE -

WaDERAERHERTRAISEFLER
o MR IRTE 2 EUGRIBA RIS EME 2 S
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REVENUE (Continued)
Operation of a professional football club

The Group’s commercial income from shop
sales, lottery, catering and programme sales are
recognised when control of the products has been
transferred or when the services are rendered.

The Group’s commercial income from advertising
and sponsorship are recognised over the contract
period.

The Group’s revenue from match day receipts for the
football match are recognised when the match was
held. The Group’s revenue from match day receipt
for sales of season tickets are recognised on a yearly
basis.

The Group’s revenue from broadcasting are
recognised over the contract period.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue
and results by operating segments, based on the
information provided to the chief operating decision
maker representing the Board, for the purposes of
allocating resources to segments and assessing their
performance. This is also the basis upon which the
Group is arranged and organised.

The Group has two (2018: two) reportable and
operating segments are as follows:

()  operation of a professional football club in the
UK; and

(i) investment in properties.

fﬁ%Zﬁ%”ﬁU\ﬁ"Euu? HlEDEE
PR 75 BE R ©

AREREERERENZEBHERARE X HRE
HERR

AEERE BHRLEZREARAMEENK
SENBTHRERER - AREREHEFTR
BRERARAMELENKRERNSFER -

AEBzEREEENGOHMER -

2 EE R
UTRBREERTEFTERRZIEBLERK
ARREDEER T BRFEERBANER
ﬁﬁ1’ﬁﬁ2$%?ﬂ%%%ﬁﬁiﬂ"ZH&ﬁT&&%%

DT o ARBETARBU AL DR 2 ZEREE R
MK -

ANEBHEMME (201845 : ME) 2l 2H K%
LS EINT ¢

i) REBKEBERRIRE &

iy WEHRE -




o AR ()
oEWBBEREE

AT RARE RS RFERAI2RREED B
-l ig

For the year ended HZ2019%6H30H Investment in
30 June 2019 IEFEE Football club properties Total
ERRE YERE st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET
Segment revenue 7 EB Uk
External sales HINHEE 205,790 4,647 210,437
Results E4
Segment results DEPELE (310,737) 27,343 (283,394)
Interest revenue A EME= 49
Other income HAplg A 922
Corporate expenses T¥EA (54,205)
Share-based payments LARR D BERE 2
expense R ZH (4,398)
Finance costs BRE R A (21,978)
Share of loss of a joint venture [E(R & &M% 7 EE (46)
Loss before taxation R 75 AT B 18 (363,050)
Income tax expense s (1,640)
Loss for the year KEZEE (364,690)




SEGMENT INFORMATION (Con

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

For the year ended #HZE2018F6H30H Investment in
30 June 2018 IEFE Football club properties Total
RIRIRE MR E FEE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FEIT FAET FET
Segment revenue P EP IR
External sales HINHE 208,013 = 208,013
Results E
Segment results DEPELE (388,140) - (388,140)
Interest revenue F B U z8 123
Other income Hilg A 328
Corporate expenses EER (42,190)
Finance costs BRAE R A (7,917)
Share of loss of a joint venture [E{5& &% 2 EE (172)
Loss before taxation MRELRIE 1B (437,968)
Income tax credit FEHiEE 266
Loss for the year REERE (437,702)

Segment results represents the profit or loss incurred
by each segment without allocation of certain interest
revenue, other income, corporate expenses, share-
based payments expense, finance costs, share of
loss of a joint venture and income tax (expense)/

credit.

DEMEERSHMERDESE TH B U
HA  tEER - ARODBER 2R
B BERAN  BERELEZEERMAEN
(XH) /B emRR a8 fREEZESR -
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9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets
and liabilities by reportable and operating segments:

9. IHWER(E)
THEERAE
TIRAKEEERAGERA

D2

Investment in

Football club properties Total
ERRE YIERE st
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET FET
As at 30 June 2019 E"2019$6H 30H
Segments assets DEEE 411,919 553,028 964,947
Segments liabilities DEEE (1,122,490) (521,765) (1,644,255)
As at 30 June 2018 A2018%6 A30H
Segments assets DEEE 502,259 393,917 896,176
Segments liabilities DEPEE (1,014,904) (386,469) (1,401,373)
Reconciliations of reportable assets and liabilities: AE2REERBEZEHE
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Assets BE
Total assets of reportable segments AIEHHEb s EEBE 964,947 896,176
Unallocated corporate assets RAOMRBIEE 69,568 53,639
Consolidated total assets REBEBE 1,034,515 949,815
Liabilities =Fi
Total liabilities of reportable segments AIZ2MmoIBERE (1,644,254) (1,401,373)
Elimination of payable to corporate S 55 FE A Bl 4B Bl 518
headquarters 1,325,351 1,184,603
Other liabilities HEMEE (140,103) (167,035)
Consolidated total liabilities e BERE (459,006) (383,805)

BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED {HRmME 5 ZR AR A A




SEGMENT INFORMATION (Con

Geographical information

The following is an analysis of geographical location
of the Group’s (i) revenue from external customers;
and (i) non-current assets presented based on the

DG
RBEEZMES
BEZHRET -

o T

location of operations and geographical location of

assets respectively.

(i) Revenue from external customers

(i) KENBEFZ Kz

2019 2018
20194 2018%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
The UK T
Revenue from contracts with HEEA4) 2 -
customers:
Recognised at a point in time RE— 2R 62,840 60,444
Recognised over time R—E R AR 126,280 131,151
Revenue from other sources HAth SOR 2 Wz 16,670 16,418
205,790 208,013
Cambodia RIFE
Revenue from other sources E 3R 2 e 4,647 -
4,647 -
210,437 208,013
(i) Non-current assets (i) FrnBEE
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Hong Kong B 9,090 14,887
The PRC =8 244 1,604
Cambodia RIEEE 553,020 393,908
The UK 2H 325,017

vy
4«!"'_3:,"!!
W4 ST e

T TV,
- [
- el
: .

- i
&
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10. OTHER INCOME 10. EHfbug A
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
Subsidies received from the Premier BERREER IR EES
League (Note) W% (#fat) 7,002 7,688
Reversal of provision for directors’ fee B BERD 232 328
Gain on disposal of property, plant and  HFEWE - KE REE 2 ke
equipment - 30
Foreign exchange gain, (net) SNEM S - CFRR) 470 -
Sundry income HMTFUT A 1,099 600
8,803 8,646
Note: During the year ended 30 June 2019, the Kzt - RNEE2019F6H30R IFEE » AEEH 2

Group’s professional football operation received
funding of approximately HK$7,002,000
(2018: approximately HK$7,688,000) from the
Premier League in the UK under the Elite Player
Performance Plan upon fulfillment of certain
terms and conditions.

B RERE BN A TR RIGHERE -
BIEBRIRERRTEN A RE 2 HEHE
FRARL REREE B IE1S E & 497,002,000 7T
(20184 : #77,688,0008 7T) °

11. FINANCE COSTS 11. @EK A
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$°000 HK$’000
FETT FAET
Interest expenses on: LTEBEZHERAY
— Other borrowings —HtER 21,978 7,641
- Finance leases —BERLD 464 276
- Notional interest on transfer fee —ERNEeE 22558
payables 5,566 11,153
28,008 19,070
12. INCOME TAX (EXPENSE)/CREDIT 12. FiSH (ZH) R
Income tax (expense)/credit in consolidated mEBERRkEMEEBERAZAER (ZH)
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive SRR
income represents:
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$°000 HK$'000
FETT FAET
Deferred taxation IERERLIE
Current year NEE (1,640) 266
(1,640) 266

BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED {HRmME 5 ZR AR A A




INCOME TAX (EXPENSE)/CRED

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been
made as the Group had no assessable profits arising
from Hong Kong for the two years ended 30 June
2019 and 2018.

The Group’s subsidiaries in the UK are subject
to Corporation Tax in the UK (“Corporation Tax”).
Corporation Tax is calculated at 19% of the estimate
assessable profit for the year ended 30 June 2019
(2018: 19%)).

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at
the rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions. No
provision for profits tax is made in other jurisdictions
as the subsidiaries operating in other jurisdictions
have no assessable profits for the years ended 30
June 2019 and 2018.

The reconciliation between the income tax (expense)/
credit and the loss before taxation is as follows:

AEBRHEEZWEAREMNERER
([EFR]) - HE2019F6 308 FFE 20
B IREFERT RN 219%5T & (2018
F:19%) °

HihrAlAEREEZHIEE BB aAEE 2R
THERTE - AREEMANERECE 2K B
NEIRE E20194 20186 4308 IFFEH
EA M ERFEF - R EHIRE MR ERE
2 RS TR -

P88t (ST i) /% BLRR 7 Al A5 18 2 #T AR 40
T

2019 2018
20195 20184
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Loss before taxation [ F5 AT 5 18 (363,050) (437,968)
Taxation calculated at respective BHEBRFER AT
domestic statutory tax rate HERFTEZRIEA 66,393 82,024
Effect of income not taxable and BARBRIA R0
expenses not deductible T H 2 B (17,483) (11,016)
Tax effect of temporary differences not AERELREB RS E
recognised (720) (661)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERRBEBBHETE (49,830) (70,081)

Income tax (expense)/credit

Frisii () R

(1,640) 266




FEER
AFEEBRENR GIA) THISEBRER :

2019 2018
Jg— 2019F 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHTL
Staff costs (including directors’ BINA(BRESFZHE)
remuneration):
— Salaries and wages (excluding share- —TE&ERFS (TEEURS
based payments expense) BERZARIZL) 313,062 383,930
— Retirement benefits scheme — IR KB FI 5 &I 3K
contributions 37,386 40,512
350,448 424,442
Share-based payments expense AR AER 2R Z
(Note 34) (Ht7234)
— Directors — &= 2,068 -
- Employees — B8 2,330 -
4,398 =
Total staff costs BIRAKEE 354,846 424,442
Auditors’ remuneration BN B 2 1,299 1,148
Amortisation of intangible assets L E N 76,583 80,445
Depreciation of property, plant and ME BERZEZTE
equipment 16,747 12,051
Minimum lease payments under LERNET 2 xEHEERIE :
operating lease in respect of:
- Properties — W 6,850 7,227
— Others —H b 2,344 2,591
Cost of inventories recognised as BREBAX ZFERA
expense 18,374 16,383
Impairment loss on intangible assets EREEZRERE 14,746 4,804

Foreign exchange (gain)/loss, net HNEE (Uezs) 518 - R (470) 242




14. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the
directors of the Company, disclosed pursuant the
applicable Listing Rules and Companies Ordinance,
were as follows:

For the year ended 30 June 2019

BZ201956A30A L FE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits  Discretionary benefits Share-based
Fees in kind bonus scheme  payments
(Note (iv))  (Note (iv)) (Note (v))  contributions expense Total
¥¢ 28R R B
we  BUEA HiEEa BHREN  REEZ
(W) (W) (W) FEME  ARXHE a5
Name of director Notes  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEps iz FEn FEn TEn AT TET TEn
Executive directors BiTES
Mr. Zhao Wenaing (Chairman) #8305 %4 (2/8) - 1,995 150 - 1,034 3,179
Mr. Huang Dongfeng ERELAE
(Chief Executive Officer) (778 ##) - 1,995 150 - 1,034 3,179
Ms. Chan Yuk Yee REERL fi - 337 30 15 - 382
Mr. Yiu Chun Kong REEEE - 266 20 13 - 29
Mr. Hsiao Charng Geng ERELAE - 900 40 - - 940
Dr. Guo Honglin PAMEL (i) - 171 - - - 1
- 5,664 390 28 2,068 8,150
Non-executive director FaTES
Mr. Sue Ka Lok BR4rE 266 - - - - 266
266 - - - - 266
Independent non-executive BYEHITES
directors
Mr. To Yan Ming, Edmond ~ #t BB %4 (i) 201 - - - - 201
Mr. Pun Chi Ping i i 201 - - - - 201
Ms. Leung Pik Har, Christine 2284+ 201 - - - - 201
603 - - - - 603

2,068

9,019
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14. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
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14. EEM< (&)

For the year ended 30 June 2018

BZE2018F6A30R LFE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits  Discretionary benefits
Fees in kind bonus scheme
(Note (iv))  (Note (iv)) (Note (v)) contributions Total
= 3: i
e KEWEN (SRR EEAN RRAE A
(Bizz(v)  (BiE) (K17 (v)) REGEA 1Bz
Name of director HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ESHE & T FET FET T
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Zhao Wenqing (Chairman) — #8308 &4 (£ /&) - 1,950 150 - 2,100
Mr. Huang Dongfeng BRELE
(Chief Executive Officer) (7B #%) - 1,950 150 = 2,100
Ms. Chan Yuk Yee REELL - 390 30 18 438
Mr. Yiu Chun Kong kEALE - 260 20 13 293
Mr. Hsiao Charng Geng mREEE - 900 - = 900
- 5,450 350 31 5,831
Non-executive director FEHITES
Mr. Sue Ka Lok BRETE 260 - - - 260
260 - - - 260
Independent non-executive B FHITESE
directors
Mr. To Yan Ming, Edmond BB LA 195 - - - 195
Mr. Pun Chi Ping BaTLE 195 - - - 195
Ms. Leung Pik Har, Christine REETT 195 - - - 195
585 - - - 585
Total B 845 5,450 350 31 6,676
Notes: Bisr

(i) Resigned on 3 May 2019.

(i)  Appointed on 3 May 2019.

(i)  Passed away on 28 August 2019.

(iv)  The directors’ emoluments are determined by
the Board and the Remuneration Committee
of the Company with reference to their duties
and responsibilities with the Group, the Group’s

performance and the prevailing market situation.

(v) Discretionary bonus is determined with reference
to the annual results of the Group and the

employees’ performance.

BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED {HRMEEZR AR A A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2019

15. THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The five highest paid individuals in the Group do not
include any directors of the Company during the year
and last year. The emoluments of the highest paid
individual are set out as below:

HREMBHRRMET 2

A 220196 HA30H I F/Z

15.

TEBREHFMAL

RAFEEREFER  AEELZREHFHMA
THTBREMARRES - ZF&HHHA
TZMEm T

2019 2018

20195 2018%F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FAET FET

Basic salaries and allowances EARF & K2R 79,264 94,674
Discretionary bonus B TEAT 320 52
Retirement benefit scheme contributions iR {K3EF5H 214 5% 10,861 12,984
90,445 107,710

The emoluments of the 5 highest paid individuals
during the year (2018: 5) fall within the following
band:

RAFERNAS (20185 : BE) REHFMA
L2 MEN T TFRE -

Number of individuals

AE

2019 2018

20194 20184

HK$13,000,001 — HK$13,500,000 13,000,001 7t — 13,500,000 7T 1 -
HK$13,500,001 — HK$14,000,000 13,500,001 7T — 14,000,000 7T 1 -
HK$14,500,001 — HK$15,000,000 14,500,001 7T — 15,000,000 7T 1 -
HK$15,000,001 - HK$15,500,000 15,000,001 T — 15,500,000 7T - 1
HK$18,000,001 — HK$18,500,000 18,000,001} 7T —18,500,000/% 7T - 1
HK$20,000,001 — HK$20,500,000 20,000,001 7t — 20,500,000 7T - 1
HK$20,500,001 — HK$21,000,000 20,500,001 7T —21,000,0007% 7T - 1
HK$21,000,001 — HK$21,500,000 21,000,001 7T — 21,500,000 7T, 1 -
HK$27,500,001 — HK$28,000,000 27,500,001 T — 28,000,000 7T 1 -
HK$33,000,001 - HK$33,500,000 33,000,001 7T — 33,500,000 7T - 1

During the year ended 30 June 2019, no
emoluments were paid or payable to the five highest
paid individuals as an inducement to join the Group
or as a compensation for loss of office (2018:
approximately HK$14,141,000).

16. DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed for the years
ended 30 June 2019 and 2018, nor has any dividend
been proposed since the end of the reporting
periods.

16.

REZE2019F6 A30B IEFER » WED S
SELFzHETFREERTHAL  EAR
1 00 A AN S5 @ sk 1 7 B 2R R BT 2 B2 {8 (2018
& : #914,141,000% 7T) °

9N
B E=2019%F 201846 A30 A LL F E I FIR
SEUIRAR B, + T B R o HA R 18 A5 A 45 A 1]

B o

TN
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For the year ended 30 June 2019

17. LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS
OF THE COMPANY

Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share is based
on the loss for the year attributable to owners
of the Company of HK$360,927,000 (2018:
HK$425,027,000) and the weighted average number
of 13,5689,382,012 (2018: 9,087,922,508 (restated))
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for
the year ended 30 June 2018 for the purposes of
calculating basis loss per share have been adjusted
for the issue of new shares by way of rights issue
which took place on 23 April 2019.

Diluted loss per share

For the year ended 30 June 2019, the computation
of diluted loss per share does not assume the
exercise of share options as they would decrease
the loss per share attributable to the owners of the
Company and have anti-dilutive effect.

For the year ended 30 June 2018, the computation
of diluted loss per share was the same as the basic
loss per share as there was no potential dilutive
ordinary share in issue during the period.

BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED {HRMEEZR AR A A

SREMBHRRMT )

A 220196 H30H I F/Z
17. XAFHEEAELERER
FRELXER

FRERNEBEDEANFEZRNRTHESB AEMN
/E518360,927,0007% 7t (20184F : 425,027,000
Bor) RF RN BT BRI E TS H
13,589,382,012f% (20184F : 9,087,922,508f%
(&EF)))EHE -

AT EEH E2018F6A30H I FENEFRER
B 2 T AR N B R BN 2019F 4 A
23R RBHR BT ZF RO IEHAE -

FREBEEE

H 201966 A30H L F & - ARTTFEERE
BRAORNRAIERE ARGEREE BAER
BEYE  AURTESREESERTER
RIBREEITE -

H E2018F6A30H It FE ' AR AHH I &
BETAHEEH 2 LTER  FAititE SR
HEBREGRANEEER -




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
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HREMBHRRMET 2

For the year ended 30 June 2019 B 220196 A30H IFF/ZE
18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. W% BMERRZE
Furniture,

fixtures and

Freehold land  Leasehold office Motor
and buildings improvements  equipment vehicles Total
KAFELHE HEME &AL RE
RETF % REBARE RE BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET
COSTS A
At 1 July 2017 ®2017%7H1R 245,231 725 73,159 4,104 323,219
Additions NE - 8,889 10,777 2,216 21,882
Disposals HE - - - (247) (247)
Exchange realignment B i, 2,536 20 619 32 3,207
At 30 June 2018 and 201856 A30A Rk
1 July 2018 2018F7A1H 247,767 9,634 84,555 6,105 348,061
Additions NE 178 - 3,042 272 3,492
Written off ik = = (35) - (35)
Exchange realignment & 1, (8,578) 32 (2,801) (165) (11,576)
At 30 June 2019 RW2019%6H30H 239,367 9,602 84,761 6,212 339,942
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION R FiERRAE
AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1 July 2017 R2017467H1H 57,970 20 63,195 3,027 124,212
Charge for the year AEEXH 6,056 1,014 4,115 866 12,051
Disposals HE - - - (219) (219)
Exchange realignment B i, R 446 @) 550 17 1,010
At 30 June 2018 and 201856 A30A Rk
1 July 2018 2018F7A1H 64,472 1,031 67,860 3,691 137,054
Charge for the year AEEZH 5,851 4,672 5,211 1,013 16,747
Written off ik = = (32) - (32)
Exchange realignment BN AR (2,372) (14) (2,435) (141) (4,962)
At 30 June 2019 #2019%6H30H 67,951 5,689 70,604 4,563 148,807
CARRYING VALUE REE
At 30 June 2019 H2019F6H30H 171,416 3,913 14,157 1,649 191,135
At 30 June 2018 20186 H30H 183,295 8,603 16,695 2,414 211,007
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED mEMBHmRME R
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 30 June 2019 E 220196 H30H IFF/Z
INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19. B EE
Players’
Registration Trademark Total
R 8 (5L FEE ]
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
COSTS 5%
At 1 July 2017 R2017F7 A1H 151,307 467,823 619,130
Additions NE 162,324 — 162,324
Disposals HE (44,076) - (44,076)
Exchange realignment PE % A (1,483) 4,837 3,354
At 30 June 2018 MR201846 H30H
and 1 July 2018 &2018%F7H1H 268,072 472,660 740,732
Additions NE 75,594 - 75,594
Disposals HE (83,078) - (83,078)
Exchange realignment [ 5, %L (9,096) (16,354) (25,450)
At 30 June 2019 7"2019F6 A30H 251,492 456,306 707,798
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION Rt EHEREE
AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1 July 2017 R2017F7 A1H 38,416 439,125 477,541
Amortisation for the year RNEFFEH 80,445 - 80,445
Impairment loss BBEEE 4,804 = 4,804
Disposals e (22,401) - (22,401)
Exchange realignment B 55, 5 B (1,222) 4,541 3,319
At 30 June 2018 ®R201846 430H
and 1 July 2018 %2018 7H1H 100,042 443,666 543,708
Amortisation for the year INF Y 76,583 - 76,583
Impairment loss B E 18 = 14,746 14,746
Disposals HE (50,182) = (50,182)
Exchange realignment PE 5 A (4,095) (15,705) (19,800)
At 30 June 2019 7A201966 A30H 122,348 442,707 565,055
CARRYING VALUE BRE{E
At 30 June 2019 7201946 A30H 129,144 13,599 142,743
At 30 June 2018 1201846 H30H 168,030 28,994 197,024

BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED {Hf %
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2019

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Notes:

(0

(i)

(il)

Amortisation is recognised in profit or loss as
follows:

Players’
registration

Based on respective
players’ contracts terms
from 1-5 years

Trademark Not amortised

The players’ registration is considered to have a
useful life ranging from 1 to 5 years and is tested
for impairment at the end of the reporting period.

Any players whom BCFC, a subsidiary of the
Company, do not consider to be a long-term part
of the first team squad and who will therefore not
contribute to future cash flows earned by BCFC
are assessed for impairment by considering the
carrying value with BCFC’s best estimate of fair
value (being post year-end sales proceeds or
expected sales proceeds) less costs of disposal.
No impairment was made for the year ended 30
June 2019 (2018: approximately HK$4,804,000).

The trademark was acquired in the business
combination of Birmingham City PLC, which is
considered to have an indefinite useful life and was
tested for impairment as at the end of the reporting
period.

The Group carried out reviews of the recoverable
amount of the trademark for the year ended 30
June 2019. The recoverable amount has been
determined based on its fair value less costs of
disposal, with reference to the valuation prepared
by an independent professional valuer, JP Assets
Consultancy Limited. The fair value less costs of
disposal of the trademark falls within level 3 of the
fair value hierarchy. The valuation technique used
to measure the fair value less costs of disposal is
the relief-from-royalty method, which determines
the present worth of future after-tax royalties
derived from ownership. Indication of value is
developed by discounting future after-tax royalties
attributable to the trademark to their present worth
at market-derived rate of return appropriate for
the risks of the trademark. The valuer adopted a
discount rate of 25.55%.

The impairment test has resulted in impairment
loss on trademark of approximately
HK$14,746,000 in the year ended 30 June 2019.
(2018: nil).

HREMBHRRMET 2

A 220196 HA30H I F/Z

BVEE (&)

(0

(il)

Hat

BN IRRERNT

X8 i BIEEBRKREZEAEH
FEH1-5FE
[k 5 8

IRE M 2 A e A AR B 1 265
W R E B ARETRER -

BAEE A D R B A FIBCFCT R AR — &
BBk 2 KHiRK 8 h 1~ 2 $BCFCH AL & & 7k
BeERETRERMZIKE Y EBITHET
& AR AZEREEEBCFCH A& (A
FHERBZIHENMERBRTERHEENER
IH) B B KA 2 R EMET - Bl Z=2019466
A30B IEFfE - ANE B £ EH FE (2018
£ 1 494,804,000/ 7T) °

B 1Z T3 7 Birmingham City PLC Z 274 4f
RUCEE  WRABRERAFEREE  THIR
& HRE TR E B E -

AEEEEREIZHEE2019F6 4308 (EF
EzrkE s - JRESBI2ZEB Y E
i EMMETEERNAR AT ZME &
ERFEBREEXKAETE - HEQAFERD
EXRABRAFEBRF=E - ARTER
FEREERAZ EERM ARSI
BEX  ZETEREEMEE 2R KR
REFTFRERBNRRER - BEEBED
ARG AR RS R ST EERABIRER
REZEER 2 MSTEDREINEHIR
B o [HERMRA 2 8h 38 & 525.55% °

SRE B B E E2019F6 A30H IFFER
12 2 W (B E5 18 4914,746,0005 7T (20184 :
') o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

SREMBHRRMT )

For the year ended 30 June 2019 E 220196 H30H IFF/Z
20. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 20. REWH
Notes HK$’000
ik FETT
At 1 July 2017 R2017€7H18 -
Additions NE 393,908
At 30 June 2018 and 1 July 2018 7201846 H30H &2018F7H1H 393,908
Additions = 0] 134,940
Changes in fair value recognised in profit and loss RIERERZ AFEEE) (i) 23,160
Exchange realignment PE H 5 1,012
At 30 June 2019 A20196 A30H 553,020

Notes:

Atz -

(0

(i)

BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED {HRMEEZR AR A A

The Group entered into a long term lease
agreement on 28 August 2018 with GRED
to acquire certain residential properties at a
consideration of approximately US$16,304,000
(the “2018 Long Term Lease Agreement”). The
consideration of the 2018 Long Term Lease
Agreement was satisfied as to approximately
US$10,108,000 by the allotment and issue of
832,610,000 shares of the Company at the
issue price of HK$0.0947 per share; and as
to approximately US$6,196,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$48,326,000) by cash payable
no later than seven (7) business days in Cambodia
following the delivery date of the properties. The
2018 Long Term Lease Agreement constitutes
a sharebased payment under HKFRS 2 “Share-
based Payment” which require the fair value of
the goods and services received to be measured
at the date the entity obtains the goods or the
counterparty renders the services. The 2018
Long Term Lease Agreement was completed
on 13 December 2018 and the fair value of the
properties on completion basis was approximately
US$17,300,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$134,940,000). The residential properties were
delivered to the Group in August 2019. Details
of the 2018 Long Term Lease Agreement and
its completion were disclosed respectively in the
circular of the Company dated 20 November 2018
and the announcement of the Company dated 13
December 2018.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties
at 30 June 2019 and 30 June 2018 have been
arrived at on the basis of valuations carried out
on the respective dates by JP Assets Consultancy
Limited, an independent qualified professional
valuer. JP Assets Consultancy Limited has
appropriate qualifications and recent experience in
the valuation of properties in the relevant locations.
The increase in fair value of investment properties
of HK$23,160,000 has been recognised directly
in profit or loss for the year ended 30 June 2019
(2018: nil).

(i)

AN £ B 7201848 A28 H EGRED:] i &
HEEHH NRBETEEDE &R
{8 %#916,304,000% 7T ([ 20184F K HAT & #
#]) 2018 FRHAEHZEZRE - EF
#910,108,000% TR 1TEEAR0.0947% T
fit 3% | 2% 17832,610,0000% 28 A & A% 19 K2 49
6,196,000 7t (18 % 1 £48,326,000/% 7T)
REBEYEINBLE7)ERBEZLEEAR
UIBE X - BE2018FER A S 2K
BRI ME LR Fo5% [ AR AR 2+
RITHABRDBERZ AR ZEBEE
FINEE RS2 A FEENEBERNE
MERRSHEFIRMEREE BEE - 2018F K
B E % 2 R2018F12 B13H TRk » 1%
EREENTFENE  ZEMEZLAFED
£17,300,000% 7t (48 & 7 49134,940,000
BIL) c ZEEEMEE R2019F88 X+
FAREE - 2018F RPHAEHZ N E TK
ZHBEBNARRBEA2018511A
208 2B AN A BE A20185412H13
HZ RS -

REBEIGE YER 201996 A30H 20184
6A30B Z AT ENRBILIABKRBEEMGE
METEERMBRARNS BEMETZ
HESE BIEEBHNERAREESE
BRI ERBNENE KR - B2
20196 A30R L FE - BEMEZ A TFE
#1123,160,00078 7T 2 B #1825 (2018
F | o




21.

INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTUR

Unlisted investment FELEMIRE
Share of net assets BEEEFE - 1,073
The following table shows, in aggregate, the Group’s TR A B (iR =AY R 2 BT A (&R
share of the amounts of all individually immaterial TEREESDHE ZHZE o
joint ventures that are accounted for using the equity
method.
2019 2018
2019%F 20184
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
At 30 June: A6H308 :
Carrying amounts of interests EmEEE - 1,073
Year ended 30 June: BZ6A30ALEE :
Loss from operations R TS 2 1R (91) (337)
Total comprehensive loss ZHEEGBEE (91) (337)
During the year, the members of the joint venture FR AECEIRERERIEEELENE
agreed to cease the business of the joint venture. e ANETHAELE  AEERAL AT
As a result of deregistration, the Group received [8] & 7K 3R 7% 49986,000/4 JT, ©

approximately HK$986,000 as the capital refund
from the joint venture.




R E 2R

AATR2019%E K2018E6 A308 2 X EHE

NEFHBEET :
Percentage of equity
Country of Particulars of issued attributable
Name of company incorporation and operation  and paid-up capital to the Company Principal activities
ARER AMRIRSERR BEARBREARE AQAELREEAL TEER
2019 2018
2019% 20184
Directly hold
HERE
Birmingham City PLC the UK (GBP8,150,000 ordinary ~ 96.64% 96.64% Investment holding
5 8,150,005 5 &3k RERR
Birmingham City Stadium Limited the UK GBP100 ordinary 100% - Properties investment
HE 1008 EEBR NERE
Indirectly hold
BiEsE
Birmingham City Football Club PLC the UK (BP6,252,838 ordinary ~ 96.64% 96.64% Football club
HE 6,252,838 R LR RIRke
(2018: GBP752,838
ordinary)
(20184 : 752,838
RELRR)
Birmingham City Women Football Club Limited  the UK GBP1 ordinary 96.64% 96.64% Football club
(Formely known as: Birmingham City Ladies % 1EELER RiRE
Football Club Limited)
(#17: Birmingham City Ladies Football Club
Limited)
Celestial Fame Investment (Cambodia) Cambodia US$1,000,000 ordinary 100% 100% Properties investment
Co., Ltd. RER 1,000,000 T & i@k NERE
Deep Blue Trade (Cambodia) Co., Ltd. Cambodia US$1,000,000 ordinary 100% 100% Properties investment
REF 1,000,000% 7T % @R NERE
Celestial Fame Investments Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 ordinary 100% 100% Investment holding
ERRAES 1ETERR RABR

RERERRAT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED GREMERRME &)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2019 B 220196 A30H IFF/ZE

22. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 22.

The following table shows information of the
subsidiaries that have non-controlling interests
(“NCI”) material to the Group. The summarised
financial information represents amounts before
inter-company eliminations.

TRMEAR(A)
TREJNFEAHAKREBE AN 2 FERHERS
(MFEsEpetEm ) ZMB AR ZEF - BESE#
MERRA R EYEA 228 °

Birmingham City PLC

2019 2018
20194 2018%F
Principal place of business FELEEME, the UK the UK
and country of registration K sk Mk 32 Bl X KE Y
% of ownership interests and eV (L WA R R T
voting rights held by NCI wREEZBDL 3.36% 3.36%
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
At 30 June H6H30H
Non-current assets ERBEE 178,337 392,613
Current assets mBEE 312,339 109,646
Current liabilities nEEE (1,105,758) (945,405)
Non-current liabilities ERBBEE (22,775) (69,499)
Net liabilities A B % (637,857) (512,645)
Accumulated NCI RIS (21,432) (17,225)
Year ended 30 June B Z6H30BILLEE
Revenue U 5 226,086 218,013
Loss for the year REEEE (111,987) (377,230)
Total comprehensive loss for the year AREETHEEAR (125,222) (873,720)
Loss allocated to NCI DBCE IR = 2 B 18 (3,763) (12,675)
Net cash used in operating activities REEBAZIRE F5 (177,041) (312,414)
Net cash used in investing activities HEEEFTRA RS /FE (72,511) (102,765)
Net cash generated from financing MEERELE RS FRE
activities 241,900 418,128
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash R& MRS ZEIER
equivalents CmA) /8% 58 (7,652) 2,949
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

SREMBHRRMT )

For the year ended 30 June 2019 E 220196 H30H IFF/Z
23. INVENTORIES 23. &
2019 2018
20194 2018%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FAET
Finished goods and goods for sale IR an M2 455 3,449 6,469
24. TRADE RECEIVABLES 24. EWEZRA
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Trade receivables FEE 5 R 8,194 20,227
Less: impairment loss B B ERRIE
recognised (Note (iii)) &5 18 (B 22 (i) (898) (1,060)
7,296 19,167

Notes: Hat -

()  The average credit period of the Group’s trade (i) AEERERKESERZFHEER AR
receivables is 90 days (2018: 90 days) and (20185 : 90H) @ WIEEHBE RIREES
represents solely relate to the professional football -
operation.

(i)  The aging analysis of trade receivables based (i) REZABELITHRBEBEZEKES
on invoice date, net of impairment loss is as IR Z BRI DTN T -
follows:

2019 2018

20194 20184

HK$°000 HK$’000

FHET FEIT

Within 30 days 30BN 1,457 6,430
31 days to 90 days 31HZ%E90H 1,068 9,333
91 days to 180 days 91HZ=180H 940 880
181 days to 365 days 181H£365H 3,831 2,624
7,296 19,167

BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED {HRMEEZR AR A A




24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continue
Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(iv)

The movements in the impairment on trade i)y FAREKESERZRE

receivables during the year are as follows:

2019 2018

20195 20184

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET F#T

At 1 July R7A1H 1,060 621
Written off during the year FEREH (81) (331)
Reversal of impairment loss recognised  [Bl# E #ZREE 1B (299) (118)
Impairment loss recognised ERRBEEE 252 893
Exchange realignment B 5 AR (34) ()
At 30 June MR6H30H 898 1,060
The Group applies the simplified approach under vy AEBEAESVBHELENESRET

HKFRS 9 to provide for expected credit losses
using the lifetime expected loss provision for all
trade receivables. To measure the expected credit
losses, trade receivables have been grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics and the
days past due. The expected credit losses also
incorporate forward looking information.

ZEEIERBEMERERELRE Y
P REUE 5 IR R A 2 B 18 B &5 18
B R ERBEEER  BKREZEX
ERBEAREERREERBHAHS
B-RHACEERTESAMELEESR -

Less than Over
90 days 90 days
Current past due past due Total
B A
BPEA 2 90H B0 H et
At 30 June 2019 A2019%F6830H
Expected loss rate TEHEREIE X - - 19.0%
Receivables amount (HK$'000) R & %8 (F&T) 2,525 940 4,729 8,194
Loss allowance (HK$’000) ESERE (& T) - - 898 898
At 30 June 2018 7420186 H30H
Expected loss rate TEHAES B X - - 29.6%
Receivables amount (HK$'000) FEY & %8 (F %) 15,763 880 3,584 20,227
Loss allowance (HK$’000) EBSERE (T & T) - - 1,060 1,060
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

SREMBHRRMT )

For the year ended 30 June 2019 E 220196 H30H IFF/Z
25. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 25, & FEANTEREMEKRE
RECEIVABLES
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FET
Other receivables e R IE 47,429 42,318
Less: other receivables — non-current B Hb el E—ER®
(Note (i) (Kt 720)) (473) -
46,956 42,318
Deposits and prepayments Re RIERIE 5,791 9,628
Amounts shown as current assets IERBEE &5 52,747 51,946
Note: it -
()  Included in other receivables are amounts of () 72019F6H30H « H it E KR IE B IE L
approximately HK$473,000 as at 30 June 19 473,000 7T - SR KEKREEHER -

relating to sign-on fees for acquisition of the
players which are classified as non-current (2018:
nil).

DRRIERBEE (20185 : &) ©

26. TRANSFER FEE PAYABLES 26. ENEEE
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Transfer fee payables ENEeE

— Within one year ——FR 26,693 60,626
- Due after one year — —F1&E|H - 25,650
26,693 86,276
All transfer fee payables are stated at amortised cost FrEEMNES BIRE N\ EBE 2Bk AT

that approximately equal to their fair value. HR o

BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED {HRMEEZR AR A A




28.

27.

TRADE PAYABLES

The aging analysis of trade payables based on the

invoice date is as follows: T
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
Within 30 days 308 A 9,180 8,905
31 days to 90 days 31HZE90H 7,579 2,758
91 days to 180 days 91H=180H 3,154 748
181 days to 365 days 181H=£365H 3,481 1,096
23,394 13,507
The credit periods of the Group’s trade payables REB ENE SRR —RERERSTEY
granted from suppliers averaging at 90 days (2018: 90H ZZEHi (20184 : 90H) -
90 days).
ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 28. EHRERAEMENRIE
2019 2018
20194 20184
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
Htat FET FAET
Accruals FEETFIE (i) 70,110 41,885
Agent’s fee payables ERELEANER 10,469 14,602
Amount due to GRED JEfGREDF B (i) 48,326 -
128,905 56,487
Less: Amount due after one year W R —F BB B2 5RIA (i) (4,547) (7,883)

Amounts shown as current liabilities ZI{EREI B &2 £%8 124,358 48,604




130

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 30 June 2019

28.

29.

30.

BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED {HRMEEZR AR A A

ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

Notes:

(i) Included in accruals are amounts of approximately
HK$202,000 (2018: approximately HK$434,000)
relating to accrued directors’ remuneration.

(i) Amount due to GRED represents the consideration
payable on the acquisition of properties located in
Cambodia. Details of the transaction are disclosed
in note 20 above.

(iiy  Agent’s fee of approximately HK$4,547,000 (2018:
approximately HK$7,883,000) payable for the
acquisition of football players is due after one year
according to the transfer agreement of players.

(iv)  Accruals and other payables are all non-interest

SREMBHRRMT )

A 220196 H30H I F/Z

28.

EsrREREMESKIE(Z)

Htat -

() EAZEEEEETEENE ZHNEY
202,0007% 7T (20184F : 49434,000/8 ) °

(i) FERNTGREDFRIE BUW B N R 2 FE
HRME - XHFFER £ F20FTH 5 -

(i) FLUEEER B B & 42 A B F 494,547,000/
7t (20184 : #J7,883,000/8 7T) * B IREREK
BrEemER—F&EIH-

(v) FEEFRIANEAMENFKIBY PR -

bearing.
DEFERRED CAPITAL GRANTS 29, ETE BB
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$°000 HK$°000
FrET FET
To be released: &R B Bl 2 FRIA:
— Within one year ) 564 585
— After one year ——F1& 13,913 14,996
14,477 15,5681
Deferred capital grants relate to the redevelopment BEEABRS TV EEHREMNNER @RS
of the football stadium located in Birmingham, the BEIEEME B EEEL RS BEES
UK. The grant has been treated as a deferred grant oo P ESER SN -
and is being amortised in line with the depreciable
assets to which it relates.
CONTRACT LIABILITIES 30. SHEE

Contract liabilities/deferred income mainly the
unrecognised income in relation to match receipt.
During the year, the Group adopted HKFRS 15
pursuant to which the deferred income as presented
in prior year was reclassified as contract liabilities as
at 1 July 2018.

AHEEEERAETEZRBRAEBHER
RN - TN NEBHME B I5RE %
BIZE155% « it - R EFE 25 ZiRER AR
2018F7TA1HEF D EAAHNERE -




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2019

30. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued)

HREMBHRRMET 2

A 220196 HA30H I F/Z

30. ENEEHE)

131

Disclosure of revenue-related items: W HERITE B H 5 ¢
As at As at
30 June 2019 1 July 2018
A20194F R20184F
6H30H 7H1H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Contract liabilities BHRBE 29,136 24,969

Revenue recognised in the year that was REVEF AN BB ZFERD

included in contract liabilities at TRz W N/A
beginning of the year 24,969 NiEA

Transaction prices allocated to performance
obligations unsatisfied at end of the year and

expected to be recognised as revenue in:

RHBERAIEENFRERERNZBHES
WHEHAERIA T HEER RN E

As at As at
30 June 2019 1 July 2018
A2019F 20184
6H30H 7A1H
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
— year ended 30 June 2019 —H E201966 30 L FE - 24,969
- year ended 30 June 2020 —H ZE202066 8308 L FE 29,136 -
29,136 24,969

Significant changes in contract liabilities during the EHNBEERERZEKRE

year:

2019
20194
HK$°000
FET
Transfer from deferred income B R IREWA 24,969
Increase due to operations in the year B €F (A S 75 T 38 0 35,899
Transfer of contract liabilities to revenue  EEA& B EEWZR (30,739)
Exchange realignment PE 5 (993)
29,136

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer products or services to a customer for
which the Group has received consideration (or an

BiE-

amount of consideration is due) from the customer.

ENREEASERNEFERAKECDARER
WERE (KRR ESRE) cEMIRB

4 # ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

SREMBHRRMT )

For the year ended 30 June 2019 E 220196 H30H IFF/Z
31. BORROWINGS 31. EX
2019 2018
20194 20184
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
k23 FET FET
Other loan — unsecured: HEMER— &R
— Loan from Trillion Trophy — K A Trillion Trophy Z B (i) 66,197 66,197
- Loan from third parties —REF=ZHZER (i) & (i) 143,500 95,000
— Other loan —HMER 183 189
Finance lease payable ENRERE (iv) 4,636 4,629
214,516 166,015
At 30 June 2019 and 2018, total current and non- 20194 % 201866 A308 * MBI MIEREE
current borrowings were repayable as follows: HABFEAZ AT FHIEE ¢
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Carrying amounts repayable: FEEE ZAREE -
— On demand or within one year — —EEsksi—F A 130,004 66,201
— More than one year, but not ——F L BRFUR
exceeding five years 79,720 95,204
— Over 5 years —RFE 4,792 4,610
214,516 166,015
Less: Amounts due within one & : AEEBEHIR
year shown as current —FREIE 2 FRIE
liabilities (130,004) (66,201)
Amounts shown as non-current HEIERBBEZ 2
liabilities 84,512 99,814
The average interest rate at 30 June were as follows: MREA30H ZFHFREH|MT :
2019 2018
20194 20184
Other loan — unsecured Hih B R —EEH 6.84% 4.61%

Notes:

()  On 21 December 2016 and 21 December 2018,
the Company entered into a revolving loan
facility agreement and a supplemental facility
agreement respectively, with Trillion Trophy to
provide a revolving loan facility up to a maximum
of HK$250,000,000 to the Company. The Trillion
Trophy Facility is unsecured, for a term up to 31
December 2020 and bears interest at the rate of
4.5% per annum. As at 30 June 2019, the amount
of the borrowings from and interest payable to
Trillion Trophy were approximately HK$66,197,000
(2018: approximately HK$66,197,000) and
approximately HK$3,890,000 (2018: approximately
HK$911,000) respectively.

BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED {HRMEEZR AR A A

Hrat

(0

R2016%F12 5218 K2018F12 8218 » &
‘A & E&Trillion Trophy? BT B3R E &
Bz MR E B MEARFRME &
%250,000,000%% 7T & IR B X gt & ° Trillion
Trophy®t & & K 8 - F HI 5 £2020F12
A318 » WIRFEFIERL5%1 8 o B201956
AB0R8 : Trilion Trophy 2 & 3k & & {5 Trillion
Trophy#l 8% Bl 4 £66,197,0007% 7t (2018
F : 4966,197,0007 7T ) & #38,890,000/8 7T
(2018%F : #9 911,000/ 7T) °




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2019

31.

BORROWINGS (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(il)

(iv)

On 8 May 2018, the Company and an external
lender entered into a standby loan facility,
pursuant to which such lender provided a
term loan facility up to HK$150,000,000 to the
Company (the “201805 Facility”). The 201805
Facility is unsecured, for a term up to 30 June
2020 and bears interest at the rate of 8% per
annum. As at 30 June 2019, the amount of the
outstanding principal amount and interest payable
under the 201805 Facility were approximately
HK$130,000,000 (2018: approximately
HK$95,000,000) and approximately HK$2,670,000
(2018: approximately HK$519,000) respectively.

On 10 August 2018, the Company and an external
lender entered into a standby loan facility, pursuant
to which such lender provided a term loan
facility up to HK$250,000,000 to the Company
(the “201808 Facility”). The 201808 Facility
is unsecured, for a term up to 31 December
2020 and bears interest at the rate of 8% per
annum. As at 30 June 2019, the amount of the
outstanding principal amount and interest payable
under the 201808 Facility were approximately
HK$13,500,000 and approximately HK$1,108,000
respectively.

On 30 June 2017, Celestial Fame Cambodia, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, entered
into a long-term lease agreement with GRED
to lease the right of use of a parcel of land at
Phnom Penh, Cambodia, pursuant to which
Celestial Fame Cambodia shall pay GRED in total
of US$3,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$23,340,000) by 50 equal instalments
commencing from the date of completion of the
acquisition in November 2017. The fair value of
the lease payable was approximately US$595,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$4,629,000)
on initial recognition which was measured by
computing the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the effective interest
rate of 10% per annum and was recognised
as borrowings of the Group as at the date of
completion of the acquisition in November 2017.
As at 30 June 2019, the amount of the outstanding
principal amount and interest payable under the
long-term lease agreement were approximately
US$594,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$4,636,000) and approximately US$35,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$274,000)
respectively.

As at 30 June 2019, the total carrying amount of
the borrowings of the Group was approximately
HK$214,516,000 (2018: approximately
HK$166,015,000). As at 30 June 2019, the Group
had undrawn borrowing facility of approximately
HK$424,303,000 available to it (2018:
approximately HK$238,803,000).

o)

M EBRRME 2

A 220196 HA30H I F/Z

31.

BEX(#&)
Hrat - (&)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

MR2018F5A8H « N AR EINIBE K AR
VHERERBE B BEEERARAR
AR A B E H R & &% %150,000,0005#
7T ([ 2018058 & 1) - 201805/ & /& & 1K
. FHIEH £2020F6 5308 @ Wik FF =
8%zt B 201946 A308 + 18 201805
MEZAEEACHERENFES RN A
130,000,000 7T (20184 : #795,000,000
7B JT) K #92,670,0005 5T (20184 : 4
519,000/ 7T) °

#2018&8%05 KRB ERINBERAG]
HRERRE Bt BRERABRAR
T}ﬂ B HE R E & %250,000,000/8 7T
([201808@L & |) °
FHIH 2020128318 » Wiz F Fl =
8%zt B - 20196 A308 * 1B 201808
MEZAEEASHEREMNFESROE

13,500,0007% 7t & #J1,108,0007% T °

MR2017F6A30R ' AEB 2 2EWB A
FlCelestial Fame CambodiaBEGREDZ] 32
EHAERE UWHBUARBESEN
— g A B #E - $K 1tk - Celestial Fame
Cambod.a%ﬁ MGRED i & #£3,000,000%

7t (F8 % 7 #923,340,00058 7T) * H20174F
11ﬂ%wuﬁzﬁﬁaﬁzﬁt%ﬁ5o,ﬁﬂ¢u%%ﬁ
XM EBNEERERERAERREZ A
B #1595,0003% 7t (48 F 7 #94,629,0007
TT) A BB EMERA10%HLE 5T R AR
EMEMFERBEZAAGTE @ WHR2017F
MATKKRERRARRAAAEE ZER -
R2019F6A308 ' RIERBHERZEZ K
EEARREREMNFIE D BIL A594,0003
7T (F 7 494,636,000/ T) & 4935,0003
JC (FZE R #9274,000/8 7T) °

MR201946A30H  "NEBERZE®
48 %8 4 B214,516,000% 7T (20184 :
#7166,015,0007% Jt) ° 201946 A30
H ASEBARRAUFAERBED
424,303,000/ 7T (20184 : 49238,803,000
BIL) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED R
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BMB|RKE

For the year ended 30 June 2019 AL 220196 A30H IFFZ

32. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 32.
The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position
and the movements during the year are as

FEEHBAE

Rig AR BAR R R 2 BT BIE 8 82 5K
HHRRERZBBHIT -

follows:
Revaluation Revaluation
of land of intangible
and building assets Total
B B
THREF BREE wma
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET
At 1 July 2017 MR201767AH1H 15,567 5,453 21,020
Exchange realignment bE 55, 3 =& 161 55 216
(Credited) to consolidated statement of (5 A) &2 & 8% &
profit or loss and other HEf 2 mEkaE R
comprehensive income (266) - (266)
At 30 June 2018 1201846 A30H 15,462 5,508 20,970
Exchange realignment ME 5, 38 & (535) (190) (725)

Charged/(credited) to consolidated ek (GTA) A 1ER
statement of profit or loss and other ~ R E# 2 EINZF
comprehensive income

4,374 (2,734) 1,640

At 30 June 2019 72019566 A30H

19,301 2,584 21,885

At 30 June 2019, the Group has unused tax
losses of approximately HK$572,937,000 (2018:
approximately HK$310,674,000) available for off-set
against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of such tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. Such losses
may be carried forward indefinitely.
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20196 A30H * ANEE B REHFIAEE
#9572,937,0007% 7T (20184F : #9310,674,000
YSTT) F] AR SR AORE T o /A AR s F i
AR - SR E s A BT IR B B RIE R
HEE BHABENERALSE -




33. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESER

HK$000

M it FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each FREEC.O1E Lz @R
Authorised: EE
At 30 June 2018 and 30 June 2019 201846 H30H K&201946 A30H 50,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRAR:
At 1 July 2017 R201767A18 6,293,154,672 62,932
Issue of consideration shares BORERD (i) 2,086,551,000 20,865
Issue of shares completion of 1D REBE K E
share subscriptions BTG, ()  2,594,366,000 25,944
At 30 June 2018 MR2018F6HA30H 10,974,071,672 109,741
Issue of consideration shares BOIRERD (ii) 832,610,000 8,326
Issue of shares completion of HR% e A 14 BT R D
rights issue (ifi) 5,903,340,836 59,033
At 30 June 2019 720196 A30H 17,710,022,508 177,100
Notes: Hiaz -
()  Details of movement in the issued share capital of i) BEARRBBTRAZHZFBEREAR
the Company were disclosed in the Company’s 7] B Hi A20184°9 A28 H 2 20184 F 1%

2018 annual report dated 28 September 2018. -
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33. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED {HRMEEZR AR A A

Consideration shares

The Group acquired certain properties located
in Cambodia through entering into the 2018
Long Term Lease Agreement with GRED at a
consideration of approximately US$16,304,000,
which was satisfied as to approximately
US$10,108,000 by the allotment and issue of
832,610,000 shares of the Company at the
issue price of HK$0.0947 per share and as to
approximately US$6,196,000 by cash payable no
later than seven (7) business days in Cambodia
following the delivery date of the properties.
The completion of the 2018 Long Term Lease
Agreement took place on 13 December 2018
whereby 832,610,000 shares of the Company
with an aggregate fair value of approximately
HK$86,614,000 were allotted and issued to Ever
Depot, a subsidiary of GRED. The share capital
of the Company was increased by approximately
HK$8,326,000 and an amount of approximately
HK$78,288,000 was credited to the share
premium account of the Company. Details of the
transaction and its completion were disclosed in
the circular of the Company dated 20 November
2018 and the announcement of the Company
dated 13 December 2018 respectively.

Rights issue

On 23 April 2019, the Company allotted and
issued 5,908,340,836 new shares on the basis
of one rights share for every two shares held by
qualifying shareholders at the subscription price
of HK$0.05 per rights share (“Rights Issue”).
The gross proceeds from the Rights Issue was
approximately HK$295,167,000 and costs incurred
for the Rights Issue amounted to approximately
HK$1,468,000. Details of the Rights Issue were
disclosed in the Rights Issue Announcements and
the Prospectus.

All ordinary shares issued by the Company during
both years rank pari passu with the then existing
ordinary shares in all respects.

SREMBHRRMT )

A 220196 H30H I F/Z

33. BAREE(E)

#aE - (&)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

RIERG

AN & B EEGREDF] 2018 R I & 1 3
NBBURREREZETHE REY
16,304,000% JT * & 1 410,108,0003%
JC IR B 1718 & AR0.0947 7 T BE B & % 1T
832,610,000% 2 R &A% 15 K #76,196,0003
TREEWEIMNBHE L7 ERBEZE
XAAURE XN - 2018 FERBHEEHHD
MR2018F1213A MK ' EHR A FERE
4786,614,0007% 7T 2832,610,0000% 74 2 &)
R 7 B e % & 317 FGREDZ B B A B — K
B o AR A Z AR # 498,326,000/ 7T
Ko H P& 1735 (B BR B 12 A1 4978,288,000/8 JT
ARG REEKZHBE N BIRAARAR
83 A2018F 11 208 2@ KA~ =) B
B2018F 12 13H 2 R EFTIHEE -

g e

R2019F 48230 ' AR RIIEREETRKHE
B 90.058 LIk A BRI R &5 A Mm%
1D A] B — IR AR AR 1 2 L AEp 8% R 31T
5,903,340,836% 1 A& 17 ([ 1) - HARZ
FT 18 TE %8 #) 5295,167,000/8 7 » i
B EE & 2 BN 49 A1,468,00078 7T © A B8 i
BzHFBEERERASE RERSRAMEE -

RREFEARETZMAEEBREZERRE
TRREMANEZE RS -




33. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESER
(@) The Group

(i)

(i)

(i)

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and
movements therein are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income and
consolidated statement of changes in
equity.

Share premium - the application of the
share premium account is governed by
applicable regulations of the Cayman
Islands.

Capital reserve - capital reserve
represents the waiver of amounts due to a
shareholder.

Translation reserve — translation reserve
is arising from the translation of foreign
currencies in overseas subsidiaries from
the functional currency to the Group’s
presentation currency.

Share options reserve — the share options
reserve represents the fair value of the
actual or estimated number of unexercised
share options granted to directors and
employees of the Group recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for equity-settled share-based
payments in note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements.

(i

(ii)

(iv)

REEFEZBEREHRN
sk EMEEEERARGS R
HERET -

B An i 1B — Bk 10 08 B iR 2 R X B8
SHSEARIIETE -

EARB - EARBRERREN—
HBRERFOR -

Eifm-ELHREELERES
SNt R B 2 MNE (B EE) EX
SEZ2NE -

BEREFRGE-BEREFRER/RETA
SEEEREEZRITEBRER
Bt 8B 2 AFE  REKE
BSR4 AR A H AR D 75
EM NIRRT BERETTHER
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For the year ended 30 June 2019 E 220196 H30H IFF/Z
33. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued) 33. BARFEME(E)
(b) The Company (b) &=AF
Share
Contributed Share Capital options  Accumulated
surplus premium reserve reserve losses Total
fARs it EARE  BRERR Zithg 4E
Notes HK8'000 HK8'000 HK8'000 HK8'000 HK8'000 HK8'000
i3 FAT 77 AT FAT AT FAT

At 1 July 2017 R017£7A1R 22,201 503,852 6,510 - (390,989) 231,610

Issue of consideration shares LRERD 33 - 368,174 - - - 368,174

Transaction costs attrbutableto — RERH ZZHHA

consideration shares 33() - 8 - = = 6]

Issue of shares completion of share (RN AB AL TR

subscriptions 33() - 288,964 - - - 288,964
Transaction costs attributableto ~ REZE 2 XA

shares subscription 33() - (203) - - - (203)
Total comprehensive expense RERRERREE

for the year - - - - (659,333 (669,33)
At 30 June 2018 R2018F6A30A R

and 1 July 2018 R018E7A1A 22,201 1,260,779 6,510 - (1,050,286 229,204
Issue of consideration shares BIRERH 33 - 78,288 - - - 78,268
Recognition of equity-settled TNRESE R

share-ased payments expense BER TS 3 - - - 4,398 - 4,398
Issug of shares completion of HRsRERIRG

rights issue 38l - 236,134 - - - 236,134
Transaction costs atfrbutableto — ERRKH Z X HHA

rights shares 38 - (1,468 - - - (1,468)
Total comprehensive expense AEERARREE

for the year - - - -6 (0642

At 30 June 2019 R2019%6430R 2,201 1,563,733 6,510 4,398 (1,356,710) 240,132

Notes: KBiat -

(i)  Contributed surplus — the contributed surplus ) BABBKR-—BMARBKEREEEEHE
represents the excess of the fair value of the BB AR A FEERART AR
subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group RZEMBAGIMBITZROEER
reorganisation over the nominal value of the EZEHE - RBREEBESAADE K
shares of the Company issued in exchange RAIAEE TIBEATABARBIEA
therefor. Under the Companies Law of the ZHRERRREL DK
Cayman lIslands, the contributed surplus
account is distributable to the shareholders of
the Company under certain circumstances.

(i)  Capital reserve — capital reserve represents (i) BEARZEE-BEAREHERREMN—F
the waiver of amounts due to a major FERERIA °

shareholder.

(i) Share options reserve — the share options
reserve represents the fair value of the actual
or estimated number of unexercised share
options granted to directors and employees
of the Group recognised in accordance with
the accounting policy adopted for equity-
settled share-based payments in note 4 to
the consolidated financial statements.

BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED {HRMEEZR AR A A

(i) WREFE_BREZGEARTAS
BEELES 2 ARTEEREERL
B #Ac ATE  BRESG W B
IS4 LA AR 4 B DA RR () B R S A
RN E T RFETTHER -
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H 2201946 H30H 1F F/Z

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 34. BRESE

The existing share option scheme of the Company
(the “Share Option Scheme”) was adopted by the
Company at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 30 December 2016.

On 6 December 2018, the Company granted share
options to eligible persons to subscribe for a total of
300,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company under
the Share Option Scheme. The exercise price of the
share options granted was HK$0.1084 per share
and the share options granted were exercisable in
three tranches. The first tranche amounted to one
third of the share options granted can be exercised
beginning on the date of grant and exercisable within
a period of 5 years thereafter. The second tranche
amounted to one third of the share options granted
shall be vested on the first anniversary of the date
of grant and exercisable within the period of 4 years
after being vested. The remaining tranche amounted
to one third of the share options granted shall be
vested on the second anniversary of the date of
grant and exercisable within the period of 3 years
after being vested.

On 23 April 2019, the Company completed the
Rights Issue in which 5,903,340,836 new shares on
the basis of one rights share for every two shares
were allotted and issued at the subscription price
of HK$0.05 per rights share. The number of share
of the Company that can be issued upon exercise
of the outstanding share options and the exercise
price of the outstanding share options were adjusted
in accordance with the Share Option Scheme and
the supplementary guidance regarding adjustment
of share options under Rule 17.03(13) of the Listing
Rules and reviewed by ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA
Limited, the auditor of the Company.

ARRAFNR20165FE12 8308 BT 2 ARG RE
BFXe ERMNARG ZREERES ([
AEHERTE]) -

72018F 12 B6H » AN 2 7] 1R I B A% # &1 &
MEBERMATELBRE  ATHERES K
300,000,000/% 28 2 &) & i@ AR o BT i B AR 4
ZITEEATRA7H0.10847 T @ AT L EERR
D =EBRITE - HAEHBESRERLE
BRHE =5 2 — RO REARAE S R IR S B HARE AT (1T
FERREBAFARAITE - EPE-PHEER
EREERE=SZ —MERESNIZLEBEH
BEFEEBRBBEEFARAITE - RNt
RBEREEREBRE=S 2 —NBRESR
REBHMATRERBEREBE =FRNAT
f&E o

M2019F 4 H230 * A AR E AR ERK - &
It - AR BB RRBETRHERARK0.05%8 T
R e MR AT — R 2 H%E
#it 3% K 3% 975,903,340,8360% #1 A% 19 ° 1A 1 &
FT{E R AR AR T 5 AT T 31T 2 AN A Al AR 15 BX
B REARITEBRE ZITEEDREERE
2% FTRRIE17.03(13) K B B BIERE
FIIESIEH AR - WHAR AIEAMPELR
EETMEBMERAREMN -
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Details of movements in the number of share options

e M B|REE @)

A 220196 H30H I F/Z

34. BRETE (&)
HE2019F6A30H L F[E @ BARESTEET

during the year ended 30 June 2019 under the Share BIREZHBEHNT
Option Scheme are as follows:
Adjusted
exercise price Adjustment to
per share number of
due to share options
Rights Issue Granted ~ Exercised  Cancelled/ dueto  OQutstanding
Name or category of Exercisable period Exercisable during during lapsed during  Rights Issue at 30 June
participant Date of grant (both dates inclusive) Exercise price (Note () the year the year the year (Note i) 2019
RERTF )4 v
i BRESA H2019%
SRR EREE/ 64308
SRERLIEN  RURH TES (BEERAX) fikk (i) EmeRE  FREAR b3 WA
HK$ HKS
AT AT
Directors:
E%:
Mr. Zhao Wenging 6 December 2018 6 December 2018 to 5 December 2023 0.1084 0.0973 20,000,000 = - 22802 22068042
BXERE 2018%1268 201812 A6A 2202312 A58
6 December 2019 to 5 December 2023 0.1084 009736 20,000,000 - - 2208041 22,068,041
2019612 A6 A 22023412358
6 December 2020 to 5 December 2023 0.1084 009736 20,000,000 - - 2208041 22,068,041
2020612A6A 22023512 A5R
Mr. Huang Dongfeng 6 December 2018 6 December 2018 to 5 December 2023 0.1084 0.0973 20,000,000 = - 22802 22068042
ERETE 2018F1268 201812 A6A 2202312 A58
6 December 2019 to 5 December 2023 0.1084 009736 20,000,000 - - 2208041 22,068,041
2019612A6H 22023612 A5R
6 December 2020 to 5 December 2023 0.1084 009736 20,000,000 - - 2208041 22,068,041
2020612A6H 22023512 A5A
120,000,000 - - 13608248 133608248
Employees 6 December 2018 6 December 2018 to 5 December 2023 0.1084 0,073 60,000,000 - - 6,804,128 66,604123
2 2018%1276A 2018% 12760 Z2023% 12450
6 December 2019 to 5 December 2023 0.1084 009736 60,000,000 - - 68041 06804124
2019% 12760 Z2023% 12450
6 December 2020 to 5 December 2023 0.1084 009736 60,000,000 - - 6804123 06,804,128
2020512760 Z2023% 125
180,000,000 - - 0412310 200412370
300,000,000 - - 34000618 334020618
Notes: it -

(i) As a result of the Rights Issue which was
completed on 23 April 2019, the exercise price of
the share options was adjusted from HK$0.1084
to HK$0.09736 under the Share Option Scheme
and the supplementary guidance regarding
adjustment of share options under Rule 17.03(13)
of the Listing Rule. The number of shares of the
Company that will fall to be issued upon exercise
of the outstanding share options were also
adjusted accordingly.

(i)  The closing price per share quoted on the Stock
Exchange on the trading date immediate before
the date on which the share options were granted
on 6 December 2018 was HK$0.111.

BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED {HRMEEZR AR A A

() HAHRER2019F4 A23H B @ BAHE
ZITEEERIBERER 8 & ETHRRE
17.03(13){5 B FA A B RE M #E 2 w7 f5 5l i
0.1084& L FE E0.09736/8 It ° A 1TFE B
RIERETTE RS T EITZ AR RBRMDEE IR
EEL AEFAE o

(i) BEBEREN2018F12A6EREANZRS
B EB R Fr AT 2 F A5 W & A0.111
BT e




34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Con

The binomial option pricing model was used to
estimate the fair value of the share options. The
variables and assumptions used in computing the
fair value of the share options are based on the
independent professional valuer’s best estimate. The
value of a share option varies with different variables
and certain subjective assumptions. The estimated
fair value of the share options on their respective
grant dates are as follows:

Exercisable period

B &R
MBI HES B
ERETAZERETIEMRRMED - BRK
BREBZREBHZEAAFENT

Fair value on

Share option type Grant date (both dates inclusive) grant date
1THEH REBEH B
BResR BHBEH (BfFER™MAE) 2ZAVE
HK$
T
Directors 6 December 2018 6 December 2018 to 5 December 2023 0.03398
5% 201812 A6H 201812 A6 HE2023F 12 A5H
6 December 2019 to 5 December 2023 0.03585
2019F 12 A6 H £2023% 12 A5H
6 December 2020 to 5 December 2023 0.08727
202012 A6H £2023% 12 A5H
Employees 6 December 2018 6 December 2018 to 5 December 2023 0.02380
&8 2018412 A6H 201812 A6 H £2023% 12 A5H
6 December 2019 to 5 December 2023 0.02931
2019612 A6H £2023% 12 A5H
6 December 2020 to 5 December 2023 0.03339

2020512 A6HE2023F12A5H
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The inputs into the model in respect of the share
options granted were as follows:

SREMBHRRMT )

A 220196 H30H I F/Z

34.

BIRERE (2)
ZEARE R BRERAZ2H80T:

Share option type

BREgR
Directors Employees
5% ==
Share price on grant date REL B2 RE HK$0.104 HK$0.104
0.104% 7T 0.10487T
Exercise price on grant date RIREBEZ1TEE HK$0.1084 HK$0.1084
0.1084/%8 7T 0.1084/%& 7T
Volatility b 41.529% 41.529%
Expected life FEET A 5 years 5 years
5% 5%
Risk-free rate 42 @ i FI R 2.150% 2.150%

Volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of comparable companies with business
natures and operations similar to the Company over
the previous five years.

The Group recognised share-based payments
expense of approximately HK$4,398,000 during the
year ended 30 June 2019 (2018: nil) in relation to the
share options granted by the Company.

35. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

(@) Major non-cash transaction

During the year, the Group acquired certain
investment properties (note 20) by entering into
the 2018 Long Term Lease Agreement. The
consideration of the acquisition was satisfied
by the issuance of 832,610,000 shares of
the Company and cash of US$6,196,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$48,326,000)
payable no later than seven business days
following the delivery, pursuant to the 2018
Long Term Lease Agreement. The fair values of
the investment properties were approximately
HK$134,940,000 at the date of acquisition.

BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED {HRMEEZR AR A A

35.

RIETIRBEB M E R EERARRRUZA
BUBARRBERFAZELKIEMETE °

HE2019F6A30H It FEHRH - AEBFRA
ARV H 2 B RE R AR D B EfE 2 4 3%
37 494,398,000/ 7T (20184 : ) o

FEREREBRWE

(a) TEFBRERB

FR - AEBEFEBFIV2018FRHAEE
Wl EE TIREME (M5E20) - Wi
2 R (B35 1B 3£17832,610,000% A8 2 & fi%
) K AR £6,196,0005% 7T (MERH
48,326,000/ 7T ) = 11 - iR #820184F &K Hf
ez WERBERTEHRECEE
¥EAEZT - RBIER - REMEZ AT
B 49 /5134,940,0005 7T °




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2019

35. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from

financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s
liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are
those for which cash flows were, or future
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s
consolidated statement of cash flows as cash
flows from financing activities.

SREMBHRRMET )

H 2201946 H30H 1F F/Z

35.

FEREREBRME ()

(b) MEFDRELERBZHIR

TRAMASERELZSFNELEZAE
g ERENIFREEY - RHEED
MEAZBERERIAFENRAKEEF
ERENRERNERABERDAFERE
RENEERESARKRERE

Other Interest
borrowings payables Total
Hi B EARE &5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FAET
At 1 July 2017 ®201747A1H 39,323 13,153 52,476
Changes in cash flows REREE 420,164 (13,369) 406,795
Non-cash changes IEIR & EE)
Repayment of loan by share EiERDAREEEE R

subscription (812,213) (2,695) (314,908)
Fair value of lease payable  BNHEEZ AF¥E 4,629 = 4,629
Interest payable transfer to  EEE &~ FER A S

loan 14,112 (14,112) -
Interest expenses B - 19,070 19,070
Exchange Difference EHER - 2 2
At 30 June 2018 and R2018F6 308 &

1 July 2018 20187 H1H 166,015 2,049 168,064
Changes in cash flows Benhas® 48,496 (22,114) 26,382
Non-cash changes IEIR & E)

Interest expenses FBE Sz H - 28,008 28,008

Exchange Difference EHER 5 (1) 4

At 30 June 2019 R201946 8308 214,516 7,942 202,458
36. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 36. EEEH

Certain bank credit facilities made available to BCFC
were secured by a fixed charge over a specific
bank deposit account of BCFC held with the bank.
As at 30 June 2019, the balance on this bank
deposit account was GBP800,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$7,924,000) (2018: GBP800,000
equivalent to approximately HK$8,208,000)

BCFCZ & TiR1THZZEE JH LABCFCRR R 1T
MEERTHEREFPNEERZIEAEMA -
R2019F6A30H ' ZRITHEREFEHR B
800,000% &5 (A F M #97,924,00078 7T ) (2018
£ : 800,000 £ (#HZ 7 478,208,000 7T) ) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2019

37. COMMITMENTS
Operating lease arrangements
The Group as lessor

The Group leases its investment properties. At
the end of reporting period, the future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable leases are
receivables as follows:

SREMBHRRMT )

A 220196 H30H I F/Z

37. &iE
wERERH
AEBEDLHBA

AEEATLREYE - NEEWE - FUH
SIS THIE T 2 Rl R R R E RS Hue
mF -

2019 2018

20194 20184

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Within one year —FR 24,812 -
After one year but within five years —FEERFR 28,181 -
52,993 -

Operating lease income represents rental receivables
by the Group for its investment properties. Leases
are negotiated for a term of 3 years and rentals
are fixed over the lease terms and do not include
contingent rentals.

The Group as lessee

The Group leases certain premises and motor
vehicles under operating lease arrangements. Leases
are negotiated for a term ranging from two to ninety-
nine years. The Group does not have an option
to purchase the leased assets at the expiry of the
lease period. At the end of the reporting period, the
Group’s total future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

REMEWRAEAEEREREY XK ZE
T MEEANHA=F MEEHNESRE
Eo U TBERIAEE -

EEFEDBERMA
AEERBLEANLHBEETOERA
- MEREMAHN F2EIF - AEEY E
REEMEnKABEEHEEE B 2E -1
BEMR ARERBIAUTBBELEHOZR
REREHESERENOT

2019 2018

2019 20184

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FET

Within one year —FR 7,978 9,827
After one year but within five years —FRERAFERN 4,885 16,361
After five years AF%& 61,153 65,069
74,016 91,257

38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 30 June 2019, the Group had the following
contingent liabilities:

(a) Player transfer costs

Under the terms of certain contracts with other
football clubs in respect of player transfers,
additional player transfer cost would become
payable if certain specific conditions are met.
The maximum amount not provided that could
be payable in respect of the transfers up to 30
June 2019 was approximately HK$43,513,000
(equivalent to approximately GBP4,393,000)
(2018: approximately HK$58,501,000,
equivalent to approximately GBP5,702,000).

BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED {HRmME 5 ZR AR A A

38. HAREME

2019F6 H30H * AEBEBFLUATHARLE -

(a) MEEZE
RERKEEEE M ERRERILZ
ETEHNEF MEEaETEEKE
BlENMEEINREESH - H£20195F6
A308 r] 8t 5t & = F&E < M ik R 5T IR B B
2B % 443,513,000/ 7T (FHE A4
4,393,0005 %) (20184 : #758,501,000
BT (FHZER 495,702,000 88) ) ©




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2019

38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued)

(b)

Litigation: High Court Action No. 1099 of
2013

On 9 May 2013, Mr. Lee Yiu Tung (“Mr. Lee”), a
former executive director of the Company, filed
a claim with the Labour Tribunal of Hong Kong
against the Company for, inter alia, unpaid
wages, wages in lieu of notice and expenses
allegedly paid by him on behalf of the Company
for a sum of approximately HK$1,484,000.
The Company made a counterclaim against
Mr. Lee on 8 October 2013 in respect of, inter
alia, wages paid to him in the aggregate sum
of HK$240,000 for the months from July to
October 2012 and reimbursement of out-of-
pocket expenses paid by the Company to him
during 2010 to 2012 totaling approximately
HK$2,000,000. On 4 June 2013, the Labour
Tribunal of Hong Kong made an order to
transfer the case to the High Court of Hong
Kong.

The trial hearing of this case is now fixed on 2
to 6 March 2020. The pre-trial review will be
held on 4 December 2019.

39. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES

(a)

In addition to the transactions and balances
detailed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had the following
transactions and balances with related parties
during the year:

()  During the year ended 30 June 2019,
the Group entered into a master lease
agreement with Ever Depot, a wholly
owned subsidiary of GRED. Rental
income charged for the year amount to
approximately HK$4,647,000 (2018: nil);

(i) During the year ended 30 June 2019,
the Group incurred interest expenses
of approximately HK$2,979,000 (2018:
approximately HK$1,870,000) to Trillion
Trophy;

(i) During the year ended 30 June 2019,
no interest expenses was incurred to
Dragon Villa Limited (2018: approximately
HK$3,039,000);

SREMBHRRMET )

H 2201946 H30H 1F F/Z

38. AEE (&)

(b)

A - BEERREREFRAL2013F
%£1099%

MR2013F5A89H * KRR ZRIERITE
EFRREE((FTRED)NBERBLER
HERLHEARAZHR - BR(EF
BE)RE RBANSREBREAQARAX
2z A& H41,484,000/8 7T ° KA 7]
MR2013F10A8HAMFELERERER -
BR(HEPaiE) 2012878 2108 HE
25 & 2 T & #8 %240,0000% 7T KA
2010F £2012F HiE A R R B =L &£
2 BEBRHAXEA H£42,000,0008 T ©
MR2013F6 A48 BB EEREHE =
BREEBXEFES S AR AR -

EFIRBEEIR 20203 A2H £E6 H ETH)
TR - BT 2 B %A 1K2019F
12A4H 817 -

39. HEARIRES

(a)

BRAGAEMBBRREMBOAFLNR
ZRERIN REBRFRNEBEALE
AT R 5 Rk -

() B ZE2019F6A30HILFE &%
EEKxE (GREDEEHAB 2B A
AR R ERZE - FAWE 2
% U A #74,647,0005% T (20184 :
/)

(i) EHZE2019%6H30R LFE ' &
£ EAEX R T H 42,979,000
7 JC FTrillion Trophy (20184 : 49
1,870,0007% 7T )

(i) E Z=2019F6A30BILFE ' A&
EYEMNS S HEAINFRERAR
A7) (20184 : 493,039,000/ 7T)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

For the year ended 30 June 2019

39.

40.

BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED {HRmME 5 ZR AR A A

RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (Continued)

(@) (Continued)

(iv) During the year ended 30 June 2019, no
construction contract with GRED (2018:
approximately HK$33,983,000 (equivalent
to approximately US$4,368,000));

(v) During the year ended 30 June 2019, the
Group entered into the 2018 Long Term
Lease Agreement with GRED to acquire
certain properties in Cambodia amounted
to approximately HK$134,940,000,
equivalent to approximately
US$17,300,000 (2018: nil);

(vij As at 30 June 2019, the outstanding
principal amount and interest payable
to Trillion Trophy were approximately
HK$66,197,000 (2018: approximately
HK$66,197,000) and approximately
HK$3,890,000 (2018: approximately
HK911,000) respectively;

(vii) As at 30 June 2019, no interest payable to
Dragon Villa Limited (2018: approximately
HK$342,000);

(viii) As at 30 June 2019, the lease payable to
GRED was approximately HK$4,636,000
(equivalent to approximately US$594,000)
(2018: approximately HK$4,629,000,
equivalent to approximately US$595,000);
and

(ix) As at 30 June 2019, the interest payable
to GRED was approximately HK$274,000
(2018: approximately HK$274,000).

(b) Key management compensation
Members of key management personnel during
the year comprised only of the directors of the
Company whose remuneration is set out in note
14.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

On 23 July 2019, Dooboo Tech Limited (“Dooboo
Tech”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
entered into a share acquisition agreement with /&
MKAEEXLEREARAR (Hainan Waterstone
Sports Culture Development Co. Ltd.*, “Hainan
Waterstone”), pursuant to which Dooboo Tech
agreed to purchase and Hainan Waterstone agreed
to sell the entire issued share capital of AL
dt:®) EEEMAER AT (Wangmei Online (Beijing)
Information & Technology Co., Ltd.*, “Wangmei
Online”), at a total consideration of RMB20 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$22.7 million).
Upon the completion of the acquisition, Wangmei
Online will become a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company. Details of which are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 23 July 2019.

*

for identification purpose only

o)

B EBmRME 2

A 220196 H30H I F/Z

39.

40.

BEARSRER(E)
(@ (&)
(iv) B ZE2019F6HA30HLFE ' &A%
B fE BEIGRED# R 224 [/ (2018

F : #933,983,000/8 T (HER L
4,368,000 7T))

(v) FHE2019F6H30H It FE » K&
IEﬁGREsz S2018FE R E
HEAKRBURARBEZETY
%%7134 940,000 7t (MMER Y
17,300,000 7T ) (20184F : #&) ;

(v 20196 HA30H ' fE M Trillion
TrophyZ REEXRE K F B 5 5l
#766,197,000/% Jt (20184 : 4
66,197,000/ J7t) K& £3,890,000/7%
7T (20184 : #9911,000/87T) :

(viiy PA2019F6A30H - I & fE 1 7= 88
BRAT 2 ARERFE (20185F : 49
342,000 L)

(viil) A2019%F6830H © fENGREDH &
#74,636,000/%8 7t (FHE 1 47594,000
% 70) (20184 : 494,629,000/ 7T
(FZER#595,000E7T)) + &

(ix) M2019%6H308 @ fEfH 7l 2 F
GRED#9274,0007% Jt (20184 : 43
274,000/87T) °

(b) FEEEEHE
RAEE TEEREXBERFEART
LEF  WEZHMERMEI4 -

HEHBER

R2019F7 2308 ' X ARIZEZEHNB A
BEEERA T(fyﬁwfu)éﬁilqﬁkamﬁ
MbERERAE (BRG] 7T REIK
BARE - Bt SEMECRE ﬁ%a&/ﬁ'ﬁ*
AEREHEREERZ tR) EERMAR
Qa([%TE&J)Z%*EE%ETTHX$ BERE
7 A K #20,000,0007T (8% 1 #)22,700,000
BIL) c R BRMKER  BEELEKA
ARRZEEWBAR - BHAFS E%YEA$
B H B 2201957 H283B 2 A& »




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
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2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB R&E - 1
Investment in subsidiaries KRB RRZEE 1 -
Total non-current assets EmEEELREE 1 1
Current assets REEE
Deposits, prepayments and other e EARER
receivables H fth FE U FRIE 1,087 925
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUR M B 1A R FRIE 590,619 478,971
Bank balances and cash RITHEB LIRS 49,287 24,355
Total current assets MBEERRE 640,993 504,251
Current liabilities HREBEE
Accruals and other payables FERTFRIE K HAth fE AR08 9,656 4,098
Amounts due to subsidiaries FE A BT B A R 308 4,409 12
Borrowings B 130,000 66,197
Total current liabilities mB B ERRE 144,065 70,307
Net current assets FREBEEFE 496,928 433,944
Total assets less current liabilities EEZAERADAE 496,929 433,945
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Borrowings I=EN 79,697 95,000
NET ASSETS EEFE 417,232 338,945
Capital and reserves EARRHE
Share capital N 177,100 109,741
Reserves G 240,132 229,204
TOTAL EQUITY ERBE 417,232 338,945

4 # ANNUAL REPORT 2019



148

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

AEMBHRE

For the year ended 30 June

BZ6A30ALFE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
Results eS| 2019% 201845 20175 20165 20154
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET FET FHET
(Restated) (Restated)
(eE5) (&E5)
Revenue U 25 210,437 208,013 172,950 169,333 253,584
Loss before taxation B % B B 18 (363,050) (437,968) (207,106) (60,029) (7,879)
Income tax (expense)/credit Fri3 % () /KR (1,640) 266 24,528 255 3,471
Loss for the year AEEER (364,690) (437,702) (182,578) (59,774) (4,408)
Loss for the year EEAFEEERE
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ~ A& HA A (360,927) (425,027) (177,712) (58,574) 4,161)
Non-controlling interests ~ FE#E % € %5 (3,763) (12,675) (4,866) (1,200) (247)
(364,690) (437,702) (182,578) (59,774) (4,408)
At 30 June
M6A30H
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
Assets and liabilities BEERAEE 20195 20184 20174 20164 20154
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FHET FET FET FET FHET
(Restated) (Restated)
(&E5) (E5))
Total assets BERTE 1,034,515 949,815 525,699 374,537 404,085
Total liabilities BfEmE (459,006) (383,805) (229,593) (308,643) (237,888)
Net assets BEFHE 575,509 566,010 296,106 65,894 166,197
Equity attributable to: FEfhREs
Owners of the Company KRR F#EAE A 596,941 583,235 300,774 65,534 163,274
Non-controlling interests  FF3& A% 1 %= (21,432) (17,225) (4,668) 360 2,923
Total equity T iaEE 575,509 566,010 296,106 65,894 166,197

BIRMINGHAM SPORTS HOLDINGS LIMITED {Hf %
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